
From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
To: Lydia; Chris Foley; Richards, Dennis (CPC); Fung, Frank (CPC); Johnson, Milicent (CPC); Koppel, Joel (CPC);

Moore, Kathrin (CPC); Melgar, Myrna (CPC); Aaron Jon Hyland - HPC; Black, Kate (CPC); Diane Matsuda;
Jonathan Pearlman; Richard S. E. Johns

Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: Political Activities memo
Date: Thursday, October 03, 2019 9:18:18 AM
Attachments: Political Activity 2019.pdf

 
 
Jonas P. Ionin,
Director of Commission Affairs
 
Planning Department│City & County of San Francisco
1650 Mission Street, Suite 400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 415-558-6309│Fax: 415-558-6409
 
jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
www.sfplanning.org
 

From: Rahaim, John (CPC) <john.rahaim@sfgov.org> 
Sent: Wednesday, October 02, 2019 4:35 PM
To: CTYPLN - CITY PLANNING EVERYONE <CPC.CityPlanningEveryone@sfgov.org>
Subject: Political Activities memo
 
All, please take a few minutes to read the attached memo from the City Attorney’s office about the
prohibition on the use of city resources for any ballot related item. This included both candidates
and any measures that are on the ballot.    As we approach the November election, it is important
that you have this information. Please do let me know of any questions.
 
John
 
John Rahaim
Planning Director
 
Deborah Sanders
Executive Assistant
 
john.rahaim@sfgov.org 415-558-6411
deborah.sanders@sfgov.org 415-575-8762
1650 Mission Street Suite 400
San Francisco CA 94103
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
Subject: FW: *** STATEMENT*** MAYOR LONDON N. BREED ON TRUMP ADMINISTRATION’S ENVIRONMENTAL

PROTECTION AGENCY SENDING NOTICE OF VIOLATION
Date: Thursday, October 03, 2019 9:18:01 AM
Attachments: 10.2.19 EPA Notice.pdf

 
 
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
 

From: Press Office, Mayor (MYR) <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org> 
Sent: Wednesday, October 02, 2019 5:02 PM
To: Press Office, Mayor (MYR) <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** STATEMENT*** MAYOR LONDON N. BREED ON TRUMP ADMINISTRATION’S
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY SENDING NOTICE OF VIOLATION
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Wednesday, October 2, 2019
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131
 
 

*** STATEMENT***
MAYOR LONDON N. BREED ON TRUMP

ADMINISTRATION’S ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
AGENCY SENDING NOTICE OF VIOLATION

 
San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed issued the following statement in reaction to
the Environmental Protection Agency’s decision to issue a Notice of Violation to The City and
County of San Francisco.
 
“The Environmental Protection Agency has been systematically dismantled and politicized
under this current administration. The notice of violation issued today contained a series of
mischaracterizations, inaccuracies and falsehoods, and is the latest example of the Trump
administration’s attack on our city and our state. San Francisco has a combined sewer system,
one of the best and most effective in the country, that ensures that all debris that flow into
storm drains are filtered out at the city’s wastewater treatment plants. No debris flow out into
the Bay or the Ocean. In fact, the EPA recently awarded San Francisco the largest, merit-based
award it has under its competitive loan program for water infrastructure.
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1 DR. CARLTON B. GOODLETT PLACE, ROOM 200 
SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA 94102-4681 


TELEPHONE: (415) 554-6141 
 


 


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


 
San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed issued the following statement in reaction to the 
Environmental Protection Agency’s decision to issue a Notice of Violation to The City and 
County of San Francisco. 
 
“The Environmental Protection Agency has been systematically dismantled and politicized under 
this current administration. The notice of violation issued today contained a series of 
mischaracterizations, inaccuracies and falsehoods, and is the latest example of the Trump 
administration’s attack on our city and our state. San Francisco has a combined sewer system, 
one of the best and most effective in the country, that ensures that all debris that flow into storm 
drains are filtered out at the city’s wastewater treatment plants. No debris flow out into the Bay 
or the Ocean. In fact, the EPA recently awarded San Francisco the largest, merit-based award it 
has under its competitive loan program for water infrastructure. 
 
The notice of violation flies in the face of years of good faith discussions convened between the 
City and the EPA. Like other cities across the country, San Francisco has been grappling with 
issues related to aging infrastructure. We have been working with the EPA to confront these 
challenges, many of which are currently being addressed by the Sewer System Improvement 
Program, a multibillion dollar effort that represents one of the largest infrastructure projects of its 
kind in the country.  
 
President Trump’s sudden concern for California’s environment is ironic considering he is 
undercutting the state’s ambitious vehicle emission standards and climate change plans. While 
the federal administration wastes its energy on political fights, San Francisco will continue to be 
a national leader in pushing environmental initiatives like achieving 100% renewable energy, 
electrifying our transportation sector, and keeping our bay and ocean clean, while also delivering 
safe, reliable public services to our residents.” 
 


### 





		FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:

		###





 
The notice of violation flies in the face of years of good faith discussions convened between
the City and the EPA. Like other cities across the country, San Francisco has been grappling
with issues related to aging infrastructure. We have been working with the EPA to confront
these challenges, many of which are currently being addressed by the Sewer System
Improvement Program, a multibillion dollar effort that represents one of the largest
infrastructure projects of its kind in the country.
 
President Trump’s sudden concern for California’s environment is ironic considering he is
undercutting the state’s ambitious vehicle emission standards and climate change plans. While
the federal administration wastes its energy on political fights, San Francisco will continue to
be a national leader in pushing environmental initiatives like achieving 100% renewable
energy, electrifying our transportation sector, and keeping our bay and ocean clean, while also
delivering safe, reliable public services to our residents.”
 

###
 



From: Fung, Frank (CPC)
To: Flores, Claudia (CPC)
Cc: CTYPLN - COMMISSION SECRETARY
Subject: Re: Draft Racial & Social Equity Action Plan phase I
Date: Wednesday, October 02, 2019 5:39:01 PM

Thanks. I will review.

Get Outlook for iOS

From: Flores, Claudia (CPC) <claudia.flores@sfgov.org>
Sent: Wednesday, October 2, 2019 11:52:18 AM
To: Fung, Frank (CPC) <frank.fung@sfgov.org>
Cc: CTYPLN - COMMISSION SECRETARY <CPC.COMMISSIONSECRETARY@sfgov.org>
Subject: Draft Racial & Social Equity Action Plan phase I
 
Dear Commissioner Fung,
 
It was very nice to meet you last week at the all-day training/joint hearing. As you requested, the link
below contains the memo and draft Action Plan I presented at the Commission earlier this year. I will
be bringing this back for action in November once the team incorporates feedback/ideas from last
week.
 
http://commissions.sfplanning.org/cpcpackets/2016-003351CWP.pdf
 
Let me know if you have any questions.
 
Regards,
 
Claudia
 
 
Claudia Flores
Community Equity Team Manager | Principal Planner
 
Planning Department│City and County of San Francisco
1650 Mission Street, Suite 400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 415-558-6473│Fax: 415-558-6409
Email: claudia.flores@sfgov.org
Web: www.sfplanning.org
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
Subject: FW: *** STATEMENT *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ON FEDERAL COURT RULING ON PLANNED SAFE INJECTION

SITE
Date: Wednesday, October 02, 2019 4:13:56 PM
Attachments: 10.2.19 Safe Injection Sites Ruling.pdf

 
 
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
Sent: Wednesday, October 02, 2019 1:39 PM
To: Press Office, Mayor (MYR) <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** STATEMENT *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ON FEDERAL COURT RULING ON PLANNED
SAFE INJECTION SITE
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Wednesday, October 2, 2019
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131
 
 

*** STATEMENT ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED ON FEDERAL COURT RULING ON

PLANNED SAFE INJECTION SITE
 
San Francisco, CA — A U.S. District Judge today ruled against a Justice Department lawsuit
to stop a planned safe injection site in Philadelphia, stating that the site does not violate federal
drug laws.
 
“This ruling is a big deal for public health and addressing the drug crisis that we see every day
on our streets. Safe injection sites save lives. They help prevent overdoses, reduce public drug
use, prevent the spread of disease, and connect people to medical care that can help treat their
addiction. We will be working with the City Attorney to understand what this ruling means for
San Francisco because we need one or more of these sites in our city.” 
 
 

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
 


San Francisco, CA — A U.S. District Judge today ruled against a Justice Department lawsuit to 


stop a planned safe injection site in Philadelphia, stating that the site does not violate federal 


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
Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED AND SUPERVISOR VALLIE BROWN CELEBRATE

GROUNDBREAKING OF NEW MAXINE HALL HEALTH CENTER
Date: Wednesday, October 02, 2019 4:13:42 PM
Attachments: 10.02.19 Maxine Hall Health Center Groundbreaking.pdf

 
 
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
Sent: Wednesday, October 02, 2019 1:49 PM
To: Press Office, Mayor (MYR) <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED AND SUPERVISOR VALLIE BROWN
CELEBRATE GROUNDBREAKING OF NEW MAXINE HALL HEALTH CENTER
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Wednesday, October 2, 2019
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131
 

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED AND SUPERVISOR VALLIE
BROWN CELEBRATE GROUNDBREAKING OF NEW

MAXINE HALL HEALTH CENTER
The new health center in the Western Addition will have more patient exam rooms and will be

seismically safe
 

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed, along with Supervisor Vallie Brown and
City officials, today broke ground on renovations at the Maxine Hall Health Center. Following
construction, the building will be seismically safe and will make room for larger exam rooms,
seven additional patient rooms, and an accessible patient group meeting room.
 
“This renovation will allow the Maxine Hall Health Center to continue serving thousands of
people in the Western Addition for decades to come,” said Mayor Breed. “People rely on this
health center for medical care and to get access to other resources, like food, shelter, clothing
and transportation. We want to make sure it’s designed to keep meeting the needs of the
community. Not only will the new facility have an expanded clinic with additional patient
rooms, but it will also be seismically safe and will be able to provide refuge in the event of an
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


MAXINE HALL HEALTH CENTER  
The new health center in the Western Addition will have more patient exam rooms and will be 


seismically safe  
 


San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed, along with Supervisor Vallie Brown and City 
officials, today broke ground on renovations at the Maxine Hall Health Center. Following 
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
health center for medical care and to get access to other resources, like food, shelter, clothing and 
transportation. We want to make sure it’s designed to keep meeting the needs of the community. 
Not only will the new facility have an expanded clinic with additional patient rooms, but it will 
also be seismically safe and will be able to provide refuge in the event of an earthquake.”  
 
Once the building updates are complete, patients will be able to receive primary care, such as 
regular check-ups, behavioral health care, short-term counseling, and other medical services 
including lab testing in one location. Co-location of services will enable Maxine Hall health care 
providers and staff to serve the whole patient. The remodel also will improve accessibility for 
patients with disabilities by adding an elevator, curb ramps and updating existing ramps. 
 
“Over 50 years ago, Maxine Hall Health Center started out at as radical idea—to locate 
community health services directly in the neighborhoods that needed them most,” said 
Supervisor Vallie Brown. “For so many families, elders and youth, Maxine Hall has been there; 
keeping their doors open through thick and thin, and providing more than just basic health care 
services. From fresh groceries to a prenatal care check-up or access to a warm bed, the Health 
Center has not only treated illnesses, but the whole person. The renovation of the new Maxine 
Hall Health Center preserves a tremendous asset for Western Addition residents and the 
surrounding neighborhood. Today, we’re making an investment in the health and future of our 
community for years to come.” 
 
Maxine Hall Health Center, located at 1301 Pierce St., provides care to nearly 4,000 patients and 
has served the Western Addition for more than 50 years. The clinic offers prenatal care, 
women’s health services, counseling, and support services. Most Maxine Hall patients reside 
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nearby – 23% in the Western Addition and Japantown; followed by 11% in Hayes Valley, the 
Tenderloin, and North of Market.  
 
The clinic was renamed after Maxine Hall, a community activist in the Fillmore District who was 
killed by a stray bullet in 1993. Today, the Maxine Hall staff work in the spirit of the clinic’s 
namesake and have lead efforts to achieve a 66% rate of controlled hypertension for 
Black/African American patients.  
 
“This remodel is going to help us improve patient care by giving us more room for mental health 
and substance use disorder services, group therapy, and other health services,” said Dr. Grant 
Colfax, Director of Health. “It’s also going to make our building safer in an earthquake and more 
accessible for patients with disabilities.” 
 
Construction for the remodel will start in late 2019. Starting on November 5, Maxine Hall Health 
Center will move its services during construction to 1181 Golden Gate Ave., near the Ella Hill 
Hutch Community Center. The clinic will be closed November 1st through the 4th for the move. 
During the remodel, Westside Community Services, which shares the Maxine Hall building, will 
continue to serve its patients on Pierce Street in both a temporary clinic and in part of the 
existing building. 
 
“Public Works is proud to be a part of this next step in safeguarding our City,” said Public 
Works Director Mohammed Nuru. “In collaboration with our private contractors, the project 
team will design a first-class facility that will protect patients and residents when the next big 
one hits.” 
 
The Maxine Hall remodel, totaling $14 million, was mainly funded by the 2016 Public Health 
and Safety Bond (Prop A). The Mayor’s Office on Disability also contributed $1.2 million for 
the elevator and other accessibility improvements. San Francisco Public Works is providing 
project management and design for the remodel. The Department of Public Health is leasing the 
site for the temporary clinic at 1181 Golden Gate Avenue from the City’s Real Estate Division. 
Prop A is also helping to fund capital improvements at the Castro-Mission Health Center, the 
Southeast Health Center, and on the Zuckerberg San Francisco General Hospital campus.  
 


### 







earthquake.”
 
Once the building updates are complete, patients will be able to receive primary care, such as
regular check-ups, behavioral health care, short-term counseling, and other medical services
including lab testing in one location. Co-location of services will enable Maxine Hall health
care providers and staff to serve the whole patient. The remodel also will improve accessibility
for patients with disabilities by adding an elevator, curb ramps and updating existing ramps.
 
“Over 50 years ago, Maxine Hall Health Center started out at as radical idea—to locate
community health services directly in the neighborhoods that needed them most,” said
Supervisor Vallie Brown. “For so many families, elders and youth, Maxine Hall has been
there; keeping their doors open through thick and thin, and providing more than just basic
health care services. From fresh groceries to a prenatal care check-up or access to a warm bed,
the Health Center has not only treated illnesses, but the whole person. The renovation of the
new Maxine Hall Health Center preserves a tremendous asset for Western Addition residents
and the surrounding neighborhood. Today, we’re making an investment in the health and
future of our community for years to come.”
 
Maxine Hall Health Center, located at 1301 Pierce St., provides care to nearly 4,000 patients
and has served the Western Addition for more than 50 years. The clinic offers prenatal care,
women’s health services, counseling, and support services. Most Maxine Hall patients reside
nearby – 23% in the Western Addition and Japantown; followed by 11% in Hayes Valley, the
Tenderloin, and North of Market.
 
The clinic was renamed after Maxine Hall, a community activist in the Fillmore District who
was killed by a stray bullet in 1993. Today, the Maxine Hall staff work in the spirit of the
clinic’s namesake and have lead efforts to achieve a 66% rate of controlled hypertension for
Black/African American patients.
 
“This remodel is going to help us improve patient care by giving us more room for mental
health and substance use disorder services, group therapy, and other health services,” said Dr.
Grant Colfax, Director of Health. “It’s also going to make our building safer in an earthquake
and more accessible for patients with disabilities.”
 
Construction for the remodel will start in late 2019. Starting on November 5, Maxine Hall
Health Center will move its services during construction to 1181 Golden Gate Ave., near the
Ella Hill Hutch Community Center. The clinic will be closed November 1st through the 4th for
the move. During the remodel, Westside Community Services, which shares the Maxine Hall
building, will continue to serve its patients on Pierce Street in both a temporary clinic and in
part of the existing building.
 
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
project management and design for the remodel. The Department of Public Health is leasing



the site for the temporary clinic at 1181 Golden Gate Avenue from the City’s Real Estate
Division. Prop A is also helping to fund capital improvements at the Castro-Mission Health
Center, the Southeast Health Center, and on the Zuckerberg San Francisco General Hospital
campus.
 

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
Subject: FW: *** STATEMENT *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ON SIGNING OF SENATE BILL 40
Date: Wednesday, October 02, 2019 4:13:26 PM
Attachments: 10.02.19 SB 40 Conservatorship.pdf

 
 
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
Sent: Wednesday, October 02, 2019 2:07 PM
To: Press Office, Mayor (MYR) <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** STATEMENT *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ON SIGNING OF SENATE BILL 40
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Wednesday, October 2, 2019
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131
                                                                       
                                                           

*** STATEMENT ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED ON SIGNING OF SENATE BILL 40

 
San Francisco, CA — Governor Gavin Newsom today signed Senate Bill (SB) 40, authored
by Senator Scott Wiener (D-San Francisco). The bill makes amendments to strengthen Senator
Wiener’s SB 1045, which allows San Francisco to conserve people suffering from serious
mental illness and addiction.
 
“We cannot allow people on our streets who are suffering from severe mental health and
addiction issues to continue cycling in and out of our hospitals and the criminal justice system
without getting the help they need. Allowing them to continue to get worse when they are
incapable of caring for themselves is not humane. Conservatorship allows us to provide the
wraparound services needed to stabilize them and begin their recovery to get their lives back
on track. We’re ready to get to work to help those most in need, and I want to thank Senator
Wiener and Supervisor Rafael Mandelman for their work on this important issue.”

 
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
 


San Francisco, CA — Governor Gavin Newsom today signed Senate Bill (SB) 40, authored by 


Senator Scott Wiener (D-San Francisco). The bill makes amendments to strengthen Senator 


Wiener’s SB 1045, which allows San Francisco to conserve people suffering from serious mental 


illness and addiction. 


 


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


wraparound services needed to stabilize them and begin their recovery to get their lives back on 


track. We’re ready to get to work to help those most in need, and I want to thank Senator Wiener 


and Supervisor Rafael Mandelman for their work on this important issue.”  


 


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
Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES EFFORT TO BETTER SERVE SURVIVORS OF

DOMESTIC VIOLENCE
Date: Wednesday, October 02, 2019 10:04:24 AM
Attachments: 10.02.19 Domestic Violence Pilot Program.pdf

 
 
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
Sent: Wednesday, October 02, 2019 6:04 AM
To: Press Office, Mayor (MYR) <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES EFFORT TO BETTER SERVE
SURVIVORS OF DOMESTIC VIOLENCE
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Wednesday, October 2, 2019
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131
 

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES EFFORT TO

BETTER SERVE SURVIVORS OF DOMESTIC VIOLENCE
As Domestic Violence Awareness Month kicks-off, Bayview police officers will begin using
technology to connect survivors of domestic violence with service providers as part of the

Domestic Violence Lethality Assessment Pilot Program
 

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed, in partnership with the San Francisco Police
Department (SFPD), the District Attorney’s Office, and the Department on the Status of
Women, today announced the launch of a new phone application to quickly connect survivors
of domestic violence with services. The application will enable officers in the Bayview
District to systematically and accurately screen survivors of intimate partner violence, and
then immediately connect victims who are at high-risk of death or serious injury with
community-based and confidential domestic violence advocacy and services.
 
The application, called the Honest Assessment Response Tool (H.A.R.T.), was customized
specifically for San Francisco as a screening tool to help identify people who are at high-risk
for lethality in domestic violence cases. The app guides responding officers through 11
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FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE: 
Wednesday, October 2, 2019 
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131 
 


*** PRESS RELEASE *** 
MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES EFFORT TO BETTER 


SERVE SURVIVORS OF DOMESTIC VIOLENCE 
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
Department (SFPD), the District Attorney’s Office, and the Department on the Status of Women, 
today announced the launch of a new phone application to quickly connect survivors of domestic 
violence with services. The application will enable officers in the Bayview District to 
systematically and accurately screen survivors of intimate partner violence, and then 
immediately connect victims who are at high-risk of death or serious injury with community-
based and confidential domestic violence advocacy and services.  
 
The application, called the Honest Assessment Response Tool (H.A.R.T.), was customized 
specifically for San Francisco as a screening tool to help identify people who are at high-risk for 
lethality in domestic violence cases. The app guides responding officers through 11 screening 
questions, helping them identify the risk level of the person they are assessing. Victims who 
answer “yes” to a certain number of questions are identified as “high-risk” and are encouraged to 
speak immediately by phone with an advocate from La Casa de la Madres. La Casa provides 
support to survivors of domestic violence, and operates a hotline staffed by employees who are 
trained counselors in crisis management, safety planning, and are able to perform intake for an 
emergency shelter. 
 
“When it comes to helping survivors of domestic violence, a quick response and access to 
services is critical,” said Mayor Breed. “This assessment will help our police officers more 
quickly connect survivors with advocates who can help them develop a safety plan, or get them 
into shelter. Getting that immediate assistance can make the difference for someone who is in an 
unsafe situation, and we’re excited to see how this pilot helps San Franciscans.” 
 
“San Francisco Police Department officers are committed to compassionate, responsive care for 
anyone at risk of domestic violence,” said Police Chief William Scott. “The implementation of 
this app will help bolster the success of this pilot program by automating the process for officers 
in the field to quickly link domestic violence survivors with advocates. We will continue to work 
closely with survivor advocates to improve our response and delivery of services.” 
 
The app is part of the City’s Bayview Domestic Violence Lethality Assessment Pilot Program. 
The Pilot Program was created in 2017 through a grant from the U.S. Department of Justice, 
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Office of Violence Against Women. The Bayview District was chosen for the pilot project 
because of the high number of domestic violence calls to the SFPD that originate in that 
neighborhood.  
 
Police officers participating in the Bayview Pilot Program were trained to conduct the lethality 
assessment using a paper form. Twenty-five officers will now use the app on their mobile 
devices to conduct the lethality assessment, while another 25 will continue using the paper 
version. 
 
“Domestic violence is a widespread, but preventable crime,” said Dr. Emily Murase, Director of 
the Department on the Status of Women. “This program is effective because police are 
responding to some homes that have never accessed a community domestic violence advocate 
before, and we know that connecting survivors to advocates can save lives.” 
 
“Early intervention is the key to ending domestic violence,” said Kathy Black, Executive 
Director of La Casa de las Madres. “Connecting survivors to services like La Casa’s drastically 
reduce the risk of further harm and injury. Together we are providing safer and brighter futures 
for some of the bravest and most vulnerable in our City. We are proud to be a partner in this 
work.” 
 
The District Attorney’s Office worked with the Department on the Status of Women to ensure 
that the app works to better serve victims and public safety. In addition to connecting survivors 
with resources, the phone application will expedite the availability of high-risk incident 
information to SFPD Special Victims Unit Investigators and the District Attorney’s Office. 
Domestic Violence cases are typically challenging cases to prosecute, having a clear and 
consistent means for SFPD to share the lethality assessment ensures that victim services and the 
prosecutors in the District Attorney’s Office have the information they need to best respond to 
and support the survivor. The data will also enable criminal justice agencies to better identify 
gaps, trends, and areas for intervention.  
 
All assessments will be automatically and securely sent to City and County servers as soon as a 
quality signal is detected on the device. In order to securely store assessment data, the 
Department of Technology’s Justice Tracking Information System (JUS.T.I.S.) Program will 
host the server for the H.A.R.T. application. 
 
“We are using technology and innovation to come up with new ways to serve survivors of 
domestic violence,” said District Attorney George Gascón. “Working collaboratively with our 
partners at the Mayor’s Office, SFPD, and in the community, this phone app will better connect 
survivors of domestic violence to the services they so vitally need.” 
 
“We are very proud to support the Department on the Status of Women and our criminal justice 
partners in their tireless efforts to identify and reduce Domestic Violence Lethality,” said Linda 
Gerull, Chief Information Officer for San Francisco. “This is an exemplary example technology 
enabling the collection of critical, life-saving information. Using the JUS.T.I.S. database will 
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allow us to correlate and integrate the assessments with our existing justice environment—
providing more complete dashboards for our partner agencies.” 
 
The application will be piloted at Bayview Station from October 1, 2019 to January 1, 2020, 
after which SFPD will evaluate its usability and efficiency for potential department wide 
deployment. 
 
“Bayview District Station officers are proud to participate in this important program,” said 
Bayview Station Captain Troy Dangerfield. “Domestic violence is a critical issue in all 
communities and the safety and wellbeing of survivors is a priority to all of us.” 
 
October is Domestic Violence Awareness Month. This app is part of the City’s broader efforts to 
reduce instances of domestic violence and serve survivors. The Department on the Status of 
Women operates a grant program to fund 39 programs that serve survivors of domestic violence, 
sexual assault, and human trafficking. The City Budget for Fiscal Year 2019-20 and 2020-21 
includes $8.6 million for the grant program. The organizations provide services in six core areas: 
crisis lines; counseling and case management; prevention and education; legal services; and 
emergency shelter and transitional housing.  
 
La Casa de las Madres offers two toll-free domestic violence hotlines, and their emergency 
shelter provides safe refuge and comprehensive services for child and adult survivors fleeing 
violent homes and partnerships.  
 
If you are a survivor of domestic violence and need assistance, please contact:  


• In an emergency, call 911  
• National Domestic Violence Hotline: 1-800-799-7233 
• W.O.M.A.N., Inc. Crisis Line: 415-864-4722 
• La Casa de las Madres Crisis Lines: Adult Line 1-877-503-1850,  


Teen Line 1-877-923-0700 
• Asian Women’s Shelter Crisis Line: 1-877-751-0880 
• Saint Vincent de Paul Society – Riley Center Crisis Line: 415-255-0165 


 
Resources for survivors of domestic violence can be found at https://sfgov.org/dosw/violence-
against-women-prevention-and-intervention-grants-program-0.  
 


### 
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https://sfgov.org/dosw/violence-against-women-prevention-and-intervention-grants-program-0





screening questions, helping them identify the risk level of the person they are assessing.
Victims who answer “yes” to a certain number of questions are identified as “high-risk” and
are encouraged to speak immediately by phone with an advocate from La Casa de la Madres.
La Casa provides support to survivors of domestic violence, and operates a hotline staffed by
employees who are trained counselors in crisis management, safety planning, and are able to
perform intake for an emergency shelter.
 
“When it comes to helping survivors of domestic violence, a quick response and access to
services is critical,” said Mayor Breed. “This assessment will help our police officers more
quickly connect survivors with advocates who can help them develop a safety plan, or get
them into shelter. Getting that immediate assistance can make the difference for someone who
is in an unsafe situation, and we’re excited to see how this pilot helps San Franciscans.”
 
“San Francisco Police Department officers are committed to compassionate, responsive care
for anyone at risk of domestic violence,” said Police Chief William Scott. “The
implementation of this app will help bolster the success of this pilot program by automating
the process for officers in the field to quickly link domestic violence survivors with advocates.
We will continue to work closely with survivor advocates to improve our response and
delivery of services.”
 
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
 
“Domestic violence is a widespread, but preventable crime,” said Dr. Emily Murase, Director
of the Department on the Status of Women. “This program is effective because police are
responding to some homes that have never accessed a community domestic violence advocate
before, and we know that connecting survivors to advocates can save lives.”
 
“Early intervention is the key to ending domestic violence,” said Kathy Black, Executive
Director of La Casa de las Madres. “Connecting survivors to services like La Casa’s
drastically reduce the risk of further harm and injury. Together we are providing safer and
brighter futures for some of the bravest and most vulnerable in our City. We are proud to be a
partner in this work.”
 
The District Attorney’s Office worked with the Department on the Status of Women to ensure
that the app works to better serve victims and public safety. In addition to connecting
survivors with resources, the phone application will expedite the availability of high-risk
incident information to SFPD Special Victims Unit Investigators and the District Attorney’s
Office. Domestic Violence cases are typically challenging cases to prosecute, having a clear
and consistent means for SFPD to share the lethality assessment ensures that victim services
and the prosecutors in the District Attorney’s Office have the information they need to best
respond to and support the survivor. The data will also enable criminal justice agencies to



better identify gaps, trends, and areas for intervention.
 
All assessments will be automatically and securely sent to City and County servers as soon as
a quality signal is detected on the device. In order to securely store assessment data, the
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
partners at the Mayor’s Office, SFPD, and in the community, this phone app will better
connect survivors of domestic violence to the services they so vitally need.”
 
“We are very proud to support the Department on the Status of Women and our criminal
justice partners in their tireless efforts to identify and reduce Domestic Violence Lethality,”
said Linda Gerull, Chief Information Officer for San Francisco. “This is an exemplary
example technology enabling the collection of critical, life-saving information. Using the
JUS.T.I.S. database will allow us to correlate and integrate the assessments with our existing
justice environment—providing more complete dashboards for our partner agencies.”
 
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
 
October is Domestic Violence Awareness Month. This app is part of the City’s broader efforts
to reduce instances of domestic violence and serve survivors. The Department on the Status of
Women operates a grant program to fund 39 programs that serve survivors of domestic
violence, sexual assault, and human trafficking. The City Budget for Fiscal Year 2019-20 and
2020-21 includes $8.6 million for the grant program. The organizations provide services in six
core areas: crisis lines; counseling and case management; prevention and education; legal
services; and emergency shelter and transitional housing.
 
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

In an emergency, call 911
National Domestic Violence Hotline: 1-800-799-7233
W.O.M.A.N., Inc. Crisis Line: 415-864-4722
La Casa de las Madres Crisis Lines: Adult Line 1-877-503-1850,
Teen Line 1-877-923-0700

Asian Women’s Shelter Crisis Line: 1-877-751-0880
Saint Vincent de Paul Society – Riley Center Crisis Line: 415-255-0165
 

Resources for survivors of domestic violence can be found at https://sfgov.org/dosw/violence-
against-women-prevention-and-intervention-grants-program-0.
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From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
To: Chris Foley; Lydia; Richards, Dennis (CPC); Fung, Frank (CPC); Johnson, Milicent (CPC); Koppel, Joel (CPC);

Moore, Kathrin (CPC); Melgar, Myrna (CPC); Aaron Jon Hyland - HPC; Black, Kate (CPC); Diane Matsuda;
Jonathan Pearlman; Richard S. E. Johns

Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: *** MEDIA ADVISORY *** MAYOR LONDON N. BREED’S SCHEDULE OF PUBLIC EVENTS FOR TUEDAY,

SEPTEMBER 31, 2019
Date: Tuesday, October 01, 2019 3:00:16 PM
Attachments: 9.31.19 Public Schedule Media Advisory.pdf

 
 
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
Sent: Monday, September 30, 2019 6:05 PM
To: Press Office, Mayor (MYR) <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** MEDIA ADVISORY *** MAYOR LONDON N. BREED’S SCHEDULE OF PUBLIC EVENTS FOR
TUEDAY, SEPTEMBER 31, 2019
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Monday, September 30, 2019
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131
 
 

*** MEDIA ADVISORY ***
 

MAYOR LONDON N. BREED’S SCHEDULE OF PUBLIC
EVENTS FOR TUEDAY, SEPTEMBER 31, 2019

 
 
12:00 PM
Mayor London Breed to join elected and City officials and community leaders to sign
legislation creating an Office of Racial Equity.
Mayor’s Balcony, City Hall
San Francisco
 
 

Note: Mayor’s schedule is subject to change.
 

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
Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED, SUPERVISORS SANDRA LEE FEWER AND VALLIE BROWN

CREATE OFFICE OF RACIAL EQUITY
Date: Tuesday, October 01, 2019 2:54:42 PM
Attachments: 10.01.19 Office of Racial Equity.pdf

 
 
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
Sent: Tuesday, October 01, 2019 12:20 PM
To: Press Office, Mayor (MYR) <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED, SUPERVISORS SANDRA LEE FEWER AND
VALLIE BROWN CREATE OFFICE OF RACIAL EQUITY
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Tuesday, October 1, 2019
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131
 

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED, SUPERVISORS SANDRA LEE

FEWER AND VALLIE BROWN CREATE OFFICE OF RACIAL
EQUITY

Office of Racial Equity will work to repair harms from policies that previously created,
upheld, or exacerbated racial disparities

 
San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed, along with Supervisors Sandra Lee Fewer
and Vallie Brown, today celebrated the creation of the Office of Racial Equity. The new office
will promote racial equity in San Francisco and will be under the jurisdiction of the Human
Rights Commission.
 
“This office will help us address racial inequities across the City and advance toward equitable
outcomes for all our communities,” said Mayor Breed. “We know that in the past our City has
enacted policies that disproportionately harm communities of color. With this new Office of
Racial Equity, we will work to right those past wrongs and ensure that our City’s policies
going forward are equitable and just.”
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


Office of Racial Equity will work to repair harms from policies that previously created, upheld, 
or exacerbated racial disparities 


 
San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed, along with Supervisors Sandra Lee Fewer and 
Vallie Brown, today celebrated the creation of the Office of Racial Equity. The new office will 
promote racial equity in San Francisco and will be under the jurisdiction of the Human Rights 
Commission. 
 
“This office will help us address racial inequities across the City and advance toward equitable 
outcomes for all our communities,” said Mayor Breed. “We know that in the past our City has 
enacted policies that disproportionately harm communities of color. With this new Office of 
Racial Equity, we will work to right those past wrongs and ensure that our City’s policies going 
forward are equitable and just.” 
 
Supervisors Lee Fewer and Brown introduced legislation to create the new Office on May 14, 
2019. The Board of Supervisors voted unanimously to approve the legislation on July 30, and 
Mayor Breed signed the legislation on August 9.  
 
“This legislation will hold us accountable to moving the needle for racial equity in our city and 
addressing the disparities facing communities of color with regards to economic stability, 
housing, health outcomes or policing,” said Supervisor Sandra Lee Fewer. “It is long past due 
that San Francisco makes real our commitment to racial equity, and this Office of Racial Equity 
will make sure that everyone in San Francisco has an equitable opportunity to thrive.” 
 
“The Office of Racial Equity will build upon the work and legacy of the Human Rights 
Commission, and is a powerful tool to begin to break down years and years of structural and 
institutional racism in San Francisco,” said Supervisor Vallie Brown. “We need better policies 
and funding to combat deep racial disparities in housing, healthcare, education, transportation, 
and employment. This will take continued organizing and work on behalf of our Board, working 
in hand and hand with our local community. There’s no simple solution to undo pain experienced 
by our communities of color, but we need to acknowledge and address our past harm, for a more 
hopeful future.” 
 
The Office of Racial Equity seeks to advance racial equity in San Francisco and repair harms 
done by policies that have previously created, upheld, or exacerbated racial disparities. The 
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Office of Racial Equity will analyze City policies for their potential impact on various racial 
groups, and consult with City departments to establish tailored plans to address racial disparities 
both within individual departments and within the communities they serve. 
 
The City budget for Fiscal Years 2019-20 and 2020-21 includes approximately $1 million over 
two years to staff the Office of Racial Equity. The Office will have the authority to create a 
citywide Racial Equity Framework, a document outlining the City’s vision, goals and 
overarching strategies to address racism and racial disparities and advance racial equity in the 
City, with a focus on the work of City government. The framework will include metrics by 
which departments, through Racial Equity Action Plans, can measure performance to address 
racial disparities. The framework will be submitted to the Board of Supervisors no later than 
June 30, 2020. 
 
Mayor Breed has worked to advance equitable policies in San Francisco. As President of the 
Board of Supervisors, she authored legislation to eliminate $32 million in debt in criminal justice 
fees for 21,000 people. Mayor Breed worked with the Financial Justice Project in the Treasurer’s 
Office to eliminate library overdue fees, and to lift approximately 88,000 existing holds on 
driver’s licenses that were suspended due to the license holder’s failure to appear in court to pay 
traffic citations. In June, Mayor Breed and Sheriff Vicki Hennessy announced that San Francisco 
would become the first county in the nation to make all call from jail free and end commissary 
markups in jail stores by June 2020.  
 
Mayor Breed’s signature program, Opportunities for All, is an initiative focused on creating 
opportunities for youth in San Francisco to gain employment experience, build networks, and 
address inequities represented in income and wealth gaps by giving them access to paid 
internships. 
 


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
that San Francisco makes real our commitment to racial equity, and this Office of Racial
Equity will make sure that everyone in San Francisco has an equitable opportunity to thrive.”
 
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
and employment. This will take continued organizing and work on behalf of our Board,
working in hand and hand with our local community. There’s no simple solution to undo pain
experienced by our communities of color, but we need to acknowledge and address our past
harm, for a more hopeful future.”
 
The Office of Racial Equity seeks to advance racial equity in San Francisco and repair harms
done by policies that have previously created, upheld, or exacerbated racial disparities. The
Office of Racial Equity will analyze City policies for their potential impact on various racial
groups, and consult with City departments to establish tailored plans to address racial
disparities both within individual departments and within the communities they serve.
 
The City budget for Fiscal Years 2019-20 and 2020-21 includes approximately $1 million
over two years to staff the Office of Racial Equity. The Office will have the authority to create
a citywide Racial Equity Framework, a document outlining the City’s vision, goals and
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
Board of Supervisors, she authored legislation to eliminate $32 million in debt in criminal
justice fees for 21,000 people. Mayor Breed worked with the Financial Justice Project in the
Treasurer’s Office to eliminate library overdue fees, and to lift approximately 88,000 existing
holds on driver’s licenses that were suspended due to the license holder’s failure to appear in
court to pay traffic citations. In June, Mayor Breed and Sheriff Vicki Hennessy announced that
San Francisco would become the first county in the nation to make all call from jail free and
end commissary markups in jail stores by June 2020.
 
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
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This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
To: Richards, Dennis (CPC); Fung, Frank (CPC); Johnson, Milicent (CPC); Koppel, Joel (CPC); Moore, Kathrin (CPC);

Melgar, Myrna (CPC)
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: 3610 Washington Street 2018-009175DRP
Date: Tuesday, October 01, 2019 2:52:23 PM

Please to inform you that the DR has been withdrawn.
 
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
 

From: Winslow, David (CPC) <david.winslow@sfgov.org> 
Sent: Tuesday, October 01, 2019 2:30 PM
To: CTYPLN - COMMISSION SECRETARY <CPC.COMMISSIONSECRETARY@sfgov.org>; Cook, Lorabelle
(CPC) <lorabelle.cook@sfgov.org>
Subject: FW: 3610 Washington Street 2018-009175DRP 
Importance: High
 
Withdrawal.
 

From: Sarah Hoffman <sarah@zfplaw.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, October 01, 2019 2:19 PM
To: Winslow, David (CPC) <david.winslow@sfgov.org>
Cc: Low, Allan E. (Perkins Coie) <ALow@perkinscoie.com>; Jeremy Paul - Quickdraw Permit
Consulting (jeremy@quickdrawsf.com) <jeremy@quickdrawsf.com>; Pat Buscovich
<Patrick@buscovich.com>
Subject: 3610 Washington Street 2018-009175DRP 
Importance: High
 

 

Hi David,
 
The parties have reached an agreement in relation to the above-captioned appeal. The DR
Requestor is hereby withdrawing the DR request, on the basis that the Project Sponsor will shortly
be filing modified plans. Could you please confirm when the DR Request has been taken off
calendar?
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Thank you,
 
Sarah Hoffman
Zacks, Freedman & Patterson, PC
235 Montgomery Street, Suite 400
San Francisco, CA 94104
Telephone: (415) 956-8100
Facsimile: (415) 288-9755
sarah@zfplaw.com
www.zfplaw.com
 
This communication and its contents may contain confidential and/or privileged material for the sole
use of the intended recipient. Any review or distribution by others is strictly prohibited. If you are
not the intended recipient, please contact the sender and delete all copies. Unless expressly stated,
nothing in this communication should be regarded as tax advice.
 

mailto:sarah@zfplaw.com
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From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
To: Richards, Dennis (CPC); Fung, Frank (CPC); Johnson, Milicent (CPC); Koppel, Joel (CPC); Moore, Kathrin (CPC);

Melgar, Myrna (CPC)
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC); Campbell, Cathleen (CPC)
Subject: FW: 463 Castro
Date: Monday, September 30, 2019 12:59:49 PM

Commissioners,
Please be advised that due to a posting issue, 463 Castro will need to be continued from Thursday’s hearing.
The proposed continuance date is 10/24.
 
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
 

From: Campbell, Cathleen (CPC) <cathleen.campbell@sfgov.org> 
Sent: Friday, September 27, 2019 4:01 PM
To: Ionin, Jonas (CPC) <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>
Cc: CTYPLN - COMMISSION SECRETARY <CPC.COMMISSIONSECRETARY@sfgov.org>; Washington,
Delvin (CPC) <delvin.washington@sfgov.org>
Subject: FW: 463 Castro
 
Hi Jonas,
Please see below.
A neighbor has verified the incorrect posting of a DR poster for 5 days.
The applicant was emailed the posing instructions.
The ZA has required a new 20 day posting period for the Poster.
 

Would you please allow the continuance of DR hearing to October 24th?
 
Noticed Hearing Date: October 3, 2019
Proposed Hearing Date: October 24, 2019
Record Number: 2019-012253DRP
Address: 463 CASTRO ST
Description: Potential Loss of Retail
 
Katy
Cathleen Campbell, Planner 
Southwest Team, Current Planning Division
San Francisco Planning Department 
1650 Mission Street, Suite 400 San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 415.575.8732 | www.sfplanning.org
San Francisco Property Information Map
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This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

 
 

From: Daniel Bergerac <danielbergerac@mac.com> 
Sent: Friday, September 27, 2019 12:44 PM
To: Campbell, Cathleen (CPC) <cathleen.campbell@sfgov.org>; Sanchez, Scott (CPC)
<scott.sanchez@sfgov.org>
Subject: 463 Castro
 

 

Hello, 
 
Below, please see 2 pictures of the “Notice of Public Hearing” for this location.  The first photo was
taken on September 23, 2019 and the second photo was taken this afternoon September 27, 2019.
 
Has this project been properly noticed?  This appears to be a whole week of insufficient notice.
 
I look forward to your reply.
 
Thank you, 
 
 
 

Daniel Bergerac
Mobile 510/919-8388
Office 415/231-6350
 
 
 

mailto:danielbergerac@mac.com
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
Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED AND HEALTH DEPARTMENT LAUNCH NEW PROGRAM TO

FIGHT OVERDOSES AND DEATHS
Date: Monday, September 30, 2019 12:26:21 PM
Attachments: 09.30.19 SRO Overdose Prevention Program.pdf

 
 
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
Sent: Monday, September 30, 2019 8:20 AM
To: Press Office, Mayor (MYR) <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED AND HEALTH DEPARTMENT LAUNCH NEW
PROGRAM TO FIGHT OVERDOSES AND DEATHS
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Monday, September 30, 2019
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131
 

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED AND HEALTH DEPARTMENT
LAUNCH NEW PROGRAM TO FIGHT OVERDOSES AND

DEATHS
As fentanyl threat rises, innovative overdose prevention program will focus on single room

occupancy hotels (SROs), where approximately 30 percent of overdose deaths occur
 

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed and the Department of Public Health (DPH)
today announced a new overdose prevention program for single room occupancy hotels
(SROs), to be carried out by DPH in partnership with the Harm Reduction Coalition and the
Department of Homelessness and Supportive Housing. The innovative program is in response
to the rising number of overdose deaths in San Francisco, approximately 30 percent of which
occur at SROs.
 
After years of keeping overdose deaths relatively flat, even in the face of a rising number of
overdoses, San Francisco is seeing an increase in overdose deaths. This is largely the result of
the introduction of fentanyl into the drug supply, which is a very potent opioid that carries a
high risk of death by overdose.
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
today announced a new overdose prevention program for single room occupancy hotels (SROs), 
to be carried out by DPH in partnership with the Harm Reduction Coalition and the Department 
of Homelessness and Supportive Housing. The innovative program is in response to the rising 
number of overdose deaths in San Francisco, approximately 30 percent of which occur at SROs. 
 
After years of keeping overdose deaths relatively flat, even in the face of a rising number of 
overdoses, San Francisco is seeing an increase in overdose deaths. This is largely the result of the 
introduction of fentanyl into the drug supply, which is a very potent opioid that carries a high 
risk of death by overdose.  
 
“We must do more to fight the serious danger that fentanyl presents to our community, and this 
new program will help us meet people where they are and provide SRO residents with the 
training and medication to prevent overdose deaths,” said Mayor Breed. “This effort builds on 
San Francisco’s long history of implementing innovative solutions, working with the 
community, and emphasizing harm reduction to save lives.” 
 
The number of fentanyl overdose deaths in San Francisco has increased each year since 2014. 
There were 36 fentanyl overdose deaths in 2017, 89 deaths in 2018, and in the first quarter of 
2019 there were 39 fentanyl overdose deaths. Fentanyl has driven an overall 17 percent increase 
in all drug overdose deaths in San Francisco from 222 in 2017 to 259 in 2018. For the first time, 
fentanyl has surpassed heroin and prescription opioids as the leading cause of opioid overdose 
death.  
 
“We knew fentanyl was coming and have been monitoring it closely,” said Dr. Grant Colfax, 
Director of Health. “Now it’s here. We will continue to expand our aggressive work to prevent 
overdoses and increase access to treatment.”  
 
The Health Department supports the Harm Reduction Coalition’s Drug Overdose Prevention 
(DOPE) Project, which provided over 15,000 doses of naloxone to thousands of people at risk of 
experiencing or witnessing an overdose in 2018 alone. DOPE recorded 1,658 overdose reversals 
in that year and is on track to nearly double that number in 2019. The DOPE Project continues to 
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expand operations, with new sites and mobile activities in San Francisco. In addition, DPH 
provides low barrier access to buprenorphine to treat opioid use disorder and reduce overdose 
risk. DPH expanded the Street Medicine team, which is comprised of nurses, doctors, and social 
workers. The Street Medicine team conducts outreach to homeless and marginally housed 
residents and clinicians provide prescriptions for the opioid treatment medication buprenorphine 
directly to people on the streets suffering from opioid addiction. 
 
The new program will expand overdose prevention efforts even further. Based on the successful 
Tenant Overdose Response Organizers (TORO) program from Vancouver, the SRO project will 
work closely with SRO operators and tenants to develop on-site overdose prevention programs. 
The project also will support the installation of naloxone-rescue boxes throughout the buildings 
to improve access to this critical life-saving medication. The SRO program will begin later this 
year and is supported by the California Department of Public Health, the California Department 
of Health Care Services and the federal Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services 
Administration.  
 
“By deliberately expanding overdose prevention efforts to SROs, the residents, many of whom 
are formerly homeless and have struggled with mental health and substance use issues, will be 
empowered to save lives and support their community,” said Dr. Phillip Coffin, Director of 
Substance Use Research for the Department of Public Health. 
 
The Department of Public Health reported an increase in overdose deaths in August, and earlier 
this month issued a health alert to San Francisco health providers when additional fentanyl 
overdoses occurred. Three men with no known history of opioid use required critical hospital 
care in San Francisco following fentanyl overdose, in three separate incidents. Two died from the 
overdoses and one recovered. 


 
### 







 
“We must do more to fight the serious danger that fentanyl presents to our community, and
this new program will help us meet people where they are and provide SRO residents with the
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
2019 there were 39 fentanyl overdose deaths. Fentanyl has driven an overall 17 percent
increase in all drug overdose deaths in San Francisco from 222 in 2017 to 259 in 2018. For the
first time, fentanyl has surpassed heroin and prescription opioids as the leading cause of opioid
overdose death.
 
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
(DOPE) Project, which provided over 15,000 doses of naloxone to thousands of people at risk
of experiencing or witnessing an overdose in 2018 alone. DOPE recorded 1,658 overdose
reversals in that year and is on track to nearly double that number in 2019. The DOPE Project
continues to expand operations, with new sites and mobile activities in San Francisco. In
addition, DPH provides low barrier access to buprenorphine to treat opioid use disorder and
reduce overdose risk. DPH expanded the Street Medicine team, which is comprised of nurses,
doctors, and social workers. The Street Medicine team conducts outreach to homeless and
marginally housed residents and clinicians provide prescriptions for the opioid treatment
medication buprenorphine directly to people on the streets suffering from opioid addiction.
 
The new program will expand overdose prevention efforts even further. Based on the
successful Tenant Overdose Response Organizers (TORO) program from Vancouver, the SRO
project will work closely with SRO operators and tenants to develop on-site overdose
prevention programs. The project also will support the installation of naloxone-rescue boxes
throughout the buildings to improve access to this critical life-saving medication. The SRO
program will begin later this year and is supported by the California Department of Public
Health, the California Department of Health Care Services and the federal Substance Abuse
and Mental Health Services Administration.
 
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
 
The Department of Public Health reported an increase in overdose deaths in August, and
earlier this month issued a health alert to San Francisco health providers when additional
fentanyl overdoses occurred. Three men with no known history of opioid use required critical
hospital care in San Francisco following fentanyl overdose, in three separate incidents. Two
died from the overdoses and one recovered.
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From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
To: Richards, Dennis (CPC); Fung, Frank (CPC); Johnson, Milicent (CPC); Koppel, Joel (CPC); Moore, Kathrin (CPC);

Melgar, Myrna (CPC)
Cc: CTYPLN - COMMISSION SECRETARY; CTYPLN - SENIOR MANAGERS; STACY, KATE (CAT); YANG, AUSTIN (CAT);

JENSEN, KRISTEN (CAT)
Subject: CPC Calendars for October 3, 2019
Date: Friday, September 27, 2019 1:51:50 PM
Attachments: Advance Calendar - 20191010.xlsx

20191003_cal.docx
20191003_cal.pdf
20191003_JntHealth_cal.docx
20191003_JntHealth_cal.pdf

Commissioners,
Attached are your Calendars for October 3, 2019.
 
Please be reminded that you have a Joint Session with Health starting at 10:00 am. If you are unable to attend,
please advise.
 
Enjoy the weekend,
 
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
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Advance



				To:		Planning Commission

				From:		Jonas P. Ionin, Director of Commission Affairs

				Re:		Advance Calendar

						All items and dates are tentative and subject to change.



				October 3, 2019 - Joint w/DPH

		Case No.		Moore - OUT				Continuance(s)		Planner

				CPMC						Pearl

						Informational

				October 3, 2019 - CLOSED

		Case No.		Moore - OUT				Continuance(s)		Planner

		2019-014348PCA		Exemption from Density Limits for Affordable & Unauthorized Units; Residential Care Facilities				to: 11/7		Merlone

						Planning Code Amendment

		2019-001694CUA		1500 Mission Street				to: 11/14		Weissglass

						Massage establishment in Equinox Gym

		2016-003994CUA		55 Belcher Street 				fr: 6/13; 7/11		Townes

						CUA		to: 11/21

		2019-006951CUA		1401 19th Ave				CONSENT		Campbell

						CUA Type 20 ABC License within an Existing Fuel Station Café/Retail Establishment		to: 12/5

		2018-004614DRP		16 SEACLIFF AVE				Withdrawn		Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2019-000362CUA 		1501B Sloat Blvd 				CONSENT		Cisneros

						Sprint		fr: 7/11

		2019-005201CUA		298 Munich Street				CONSENT		Fahey

						Restaurant in a Limited and Nonconforming Use

		2019-005402CUA		50 Beale Street				CONSENT		Weissglass

						Massage establishment in Equinox Gym

		2019-004164CUA 		1056-1062 Sanchez Street				CONSENT		Weissglass

						CUA per PC Section 207

		2018-013963CUA		855 Geary Street				CONSENT		Asbagh

						Partial change of use from Private Parking Garage to Public Parking Garage

				450 O’Farrell Street						Boudreaux

						Informational

		2019-005575IMP		555 Post Street						Tran

						Abbreviated Institutional Master Plan for Make School

		2019-005500CUA		2934 Cesar Chavez Street						Christensen

						171 sq ft Retail to Cannabis Retail

		2019-014433CUA		49 Duboce						Christensen

						legalization of existing cannabis cultivation facility

		2014.0334ENX		262 7th Street						Samonsky

						LPA for two 7-story bldg containing 96 SRO units & comm space

		2019-013111DRP		240 CHENERY ST						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2018-009175DRP		3610 WASHINGTON ST						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2019-012253DRP		463 CASTRO ST						Campbell

						Public-Initiated DR

				October 10, 2019 - CLOSED

		Case No.		Moore - OUT				Continuance(s)		Planner

		2018-015554CUA		95 Nordhoff St. 				fr: 4/11; 5/23; 6/27		Pantoja

						subdivision of an existing parcel into four new parcels		to: 10/24

		2018-012603CND		1046 14th Street				CONSENT		Pantoja

						6-unit Condo Conversion

		2016-009211CUA		5538 3rd Street 				CONSENT		Jardines

						vertical addition to expand an existing residential use within the M-1 

		2015-010192CWP		Potrero Power Station 						Schuett

						FEIR certification and project approvals 

		2014.0012E  		Better Market Street Project 						Delumo

						Certification of the Final Environmental Impact Report

		2016-010589ENXOFA		2300 Harrison Street 				fr: 4/25; 5/9; 6/6; 7/18; 8/22		Hoagland

						6-story vertical addition, office/24 unit mixed use building, including State Density Bonus

		2018-002179CUA		350 Masonic Ave 						May

						San Francisco Day School 

		2016-009538CUA 		905 Folsom Street						Jardines

						Demo (e) auto service station, NC 8-story residential bldg

		2018-016600CUA		2241 Chestnut Street						Wilborn

						CUA to for an Outdoor Activity Area

		2018-016040CUA		3419 Sacramento Street						Young

						legalize an existing Professional Office Use  (d.b.a. Kendall Wilkinson Design) 

		2018-002060CUA		258 Noe Street 				fr: 9/19		Horn

						Retail Cannabis

		2018-016284DRP		1299 SANCHEZ ST						Washington

						Public-Initiated DR

				October 17, 2019 - Joint w/RP

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner

		2015-005200CUAENX		1025 Howard Street						Samonsky

						Shadow

				October 17, 2019 - CLOSED

		Case No.		Koppel - OUT				Continuance(s)		Planner

		2019-006948CUA		650 Jackson Street 				CONSENT		Lindsay

						Bona fide Public Eating Place license

		2019-014525PCA		Parking Requirements						Sanchez

						Planning Code Amendment

		2019-014960PCA		Fulton Street Grocery Store SUD						Flores

						Planning Code Amendment

		2019-017266PCA		Medical Cannabis Dispensary Permits and Temporary Cannabis Business Permits						Starr

						One-Year Extension 

		2016-013312GPA		542-550 Howard Street						Foster

						General Plan Amendment (Initiation-only)

		2017-000565CWP		Community Stabilization: Policy and Program Inventory and Priorities						Nelson

						Informational

		2018-004545PRJ		351 12th Street						Flores

						State Density Bonus

		2018-016625DNX		50 Post Street 				fr: 6/6; 7/11; 8/22		Perry

						Crocker Galleria

		2019-004451CUA		2075 Mission Street				fr: 7/25		Christensen

						cosmetic school to Cannabis Retail

		2018-014774CUA		360 Spear Street 						Liang

						Internet Service Exchange (ISE) to Laboratory use.   

		2018-016955DRP		220 SAN JOSE				fr: 8/22		Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2017-012939DRP		2758 23RD ST.						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

				October 24, 2019 - CLOSED

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner

		2018-010555CUA		2412 Clay Street				CONSENT		Weissglass

						Macro wireless facilities

		2018-016814CUA		2575 Mission St 				CONSENT		Liang

						change of use from Bar to Restaurant use

		2014.1063DNX		633 Folsom Street 						Tran

						Public Art Informational

		2016-006860AHBENVIKA		65 Ocean Av						Flores

						HOME-SF, PMND, and In-Kind Agreement

		TBD		Bayview Industrial Triangle Zoning						Tong

						Initiation

				Health Care Services Master Plan						Nickolopoulos

						Initiation

				Prop M						Teague

						Office Allocation

				Water Supply 						Kern

						Informational

		2017-000655CUA 		458 Grove St						Tran

						Informational

		2018-011004CUA		146 Geary St						Tran

						change of use from retail to office at upper floors 

		2017-014849CUA		220 Post Street				fr: 8/29		Adina

						Change of Use from Retail to Office on Floors 3-5

		2019-001568CUA		101 Bay Shore Boulevard 				fr: 8/29		Liang

						Convenience store (d.b.a. Extra Mile) that sells beer and wine in an existing gas station.  

		2018-013158CUA		2956 24th Street						Jardines

						limited restaurant to full-service restaurant 

		2018-012392CUA		37 Saturn Street						Horn

						Corona Heights SUD

		2018-015554CUA		95 Nordhoff St. 				fr: 4/11; 5/23; 6/27; 10/10		Pantoja

						subdivision of an existing parcel into four new parcels

		2018-011717CUA 		1369 Sanchez Street						Cisneros

						Demo per PC Section 317

		2018-009551DRPVAR		3847-3849 18TH ST				fr: 5/9; 7/18; 8/29		Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2018-005768DRP		2209 BRODERICK ST						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

				October 31, 2019 - CANCELED

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner





				November 7, 2019 - CLOSED

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner

		2019-013522PCA		Code Clean-Up 2019						Flores

						Initiation

		2019-014348PCA		Exemption from Density Limits for Affordable & Unauthorized Units; Residential Care Facilities				fr: 10/3		Merlone

						Planning Code Amendment

				Retained Elements Special Topic Design Guidelines						Small

						Adoption

		2008.0023CUA		461 29th Street 				fr: 8/29		Townes

						Residential Demo 

		2015-006825CUA		367 Hamilton Avenue				fr: 7/11; 9/12		Flores

						317 tantamount to demo

		2018-000468CUA		3945 Judah Street						Pantoja

						HOME-SF, 20 new dwelling units

		2018-011441CUAVAR 		1846 Grove Street						Dito

						new construction of five dwelling units 

		2019-004664CUA 		57 Wentworth St.						Asbagh

						Retail to a Cocktail Bar/ Lounge

		2018-009548CUA		427 Baden St						Pantoja

						a lot line adjustment and construction of a new SFH

		2018-011430CUAVAR		1776 Green St						May

						TBD

		2018-007267OFA		865 Market Street 						Vimr

						49,999 square feet of office space on levels 7-8

		2017-013155CUA 		230 Kirkham Avenue						Ajello

						Demo SFD/Construct new two-family dwelling

		2018-001485CUA		3360 Sacramento Street						Ajello

						legalize a 1,472 sq. ft. trade office use (dba Toboni Group) on the ground floor

		2019-002758CUA 		3501 Geary Boulevard						Young

						Formula Retail Use (d.b.a. T-Mobile)

		2018-003910DRP		3252 19th St 						Sucre

						Public-Initiated DR

		2018-015288DRP		1130 POTRERO AVE						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2018-003910DRP		3252 19th Street						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

				November 14, 2019

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner

		2019-012281CUA		350 Pacific Avenue				CB3P		Weissglass

						reauthorization of a public parking lot in the C-2

		2019-016419CND 		3234 Washington Street 				CONSENT		Dito

						5 unit condo conversion

		2019-015694CND 		192 Seal Rock Drive 				CONSENT		Dito

						5 unit condo conversion

				Plan Bay Area Update 						Switzky

						Informational

		2019-017178CUA		1415 Market Street						Chandler

						formula retail use (DBA Philz Coffee) 

		2019-001627CUA  		459 Clipper Street						Horn

						Residential Demo 

		2018-012642CUA		552-554 Capp St						Liang

						Conversion of existing Residential to Community Facility use

		2019-001694CUA		1500 Mission Street				fr: 10/3		Weissglass

						Massage establishment in Equinox Gym

		2019-000745CUAVAR		1100 Thomas Street						Christensen

						Legalization of (e) Industrial Agriculture facility (Cannabis Cultivation)

		2019-001143CUA		1465 Donner Avenue						Christensen

						Legalization of (e) Industrial Agriculture facility (Cannabis Cultivation)

		2017-002545ENVAPL		2417 Green St 				fr: 9/19		Poling

						PMND Appeal

		2017-002545DRP		2417 Green St 				fr: 7/11; 9/19		May

						Public Initiated DR

		2018-011962DRP		869 ALVARADO ST				fr: 6/27; 8/29		Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2019-004377DRP		1301-1311 40th Avenue						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2018-011031DRP-03		219-223 MISSOURI ST						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

				November 21, 2019

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner

		2016-003351CWP 		Racial & Social Equity Action Plan						C. Flores

						Adoption

		2018-003800CWP		Calle 24 Special Area Design Guidelines						Francis

						Adoption

		2016-013312CUADNXMAP		542-550 Howard Street (“Parcel F”)						Foster

		OFAPCAVAR				Project Adoption 

		2016-003994CUA		55 Belcher Street 				fr: 6/13; 7/11; 10/3		Townes

						CUA

		2019-004849CUA 		2406 Bush Street						Ajello

						ENF-related CUA to legalize 2 to 1 DUM

		2018-007725DRP		244 DOUGLASS STREET						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2019-003992DRM 		26 HODGES						Winslow

						Staff-Initiated DR

				November 28, 2019 - CANCELED

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner

				December 5, 2019

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner

		2019-006951CUA		1401 19th Ave				CONSENT		Campbell

						CUA Type 20 ABC License within an Existing Fuel Station Café/Retail Establishment

		TBD		Bayview Industrial Triangle Zoning						Tong

						Adoption

		2019-000013CUA		552-554 Hill Street						Campbell

						Legalization of Dwelling Unit Merger & Relocation

		2017-012887DRP		265 OAK ST						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2019-013559DRP-02		2517 PACIFIC AVE						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

				December 12, 2019

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner

		2019-013522PCA		Code Clean-Up 2019						Flores

						Adoption

				Health Care Services Master Plan						Nickolopoulos

						Initiation

		2019-000503DRP-03		2452 GREEN ST						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2018-012442DRP		436 TEHAMA STREET						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

				December 19, 2019

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner

		2018-010941DRP		2028 LEAVENWORTH ST						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2018-011578DRP		2898 VALLEJO ST						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2018-010655DRP-03		2169 26TH AVE						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

				December 26, 2019 - CANCELED

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner

				January 2, 2020 - CANCELED

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner

				January 9, 2020

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner

				January 16, 2020

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner

				January 23, 2020

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner





				January 30, 2020

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner





				February 6, 2020

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner





				February 13, 2020

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner





				February 20, 2020 - Joint w/DPH

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner

				Health Care Services Master Plan						Nickolopoulos

						Adoption

				February 20, 2020

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner

		2017-003559ENV		3700 California St						Poling

						Certification

		2017-003559PRJ		3700 California St						May

						Project Approvals



&"Myriad Condensed Web,Bold"&20CPC ADVANCE CALENDAR
		&"Myriad Condensed Web,Regular"&T  &D


&P of &N	




Sheet1













image1.jpeg












San Francisco Planning Commission		Thursday, October 3, 2019



SAN FRANCISCO

PLANNING COMMISSION

[image: ]





Notice of Hearing

&

Agenda





Commission Chambers, Room 400

City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place

San Francisco, CA 94102-4689



Thursday, October 3, 2019

1:00 p.m.

Regular Meeting



Commissioners:

Myrna Melgar, President

Joel Koppel, Vice President

Frank Fung, Milicent Johnson, 

Kathrin Moore, Dennis Richards



Commission Secretary:

Jonas P. Ionin





Hearing Materials are available at:

Website: http://www.sfplanning.org

Planning Department, 1650 Mission Street, 4th Floor, Suite 400

Voice recorded Agenda only: (415) 558-6422





Commission Hearing Broadcasts:

Live stream: http://www.sfgovtv.org

Live, Thursdays at 1:00 p.m., Cable Channel 78

Re-broadcast, Fridays at 8:00 p.m., Cable Channel 26







Disability and language accommodations available upon request to:

 commissions.secretary@sfgov.org or (415) 558-6309 at least 48 hours in advance.




[bookmark: _Hlk20392311][bookmark: _Hlk20392361]Know Your Rights Under the Sunshine Ordinance

[bookmark: _Hlk879281]Government's duty is to serve the public, reaching its decisions in full view of the public. Commissions, boards, councils and other agencies of the City and County exist to conduct the people's business. This ordinance assures that deliberations are conducted before the people and that City operations are open to the people's review. 



For more information on your rights under the Sunshine Ordinance (Chapter 67 of the San Francisco Administrative Code) or to report a violation of the ordinance, contact the Sunshine Ordinance Task Force at City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 409; phone (415) 554-7724; fax (415) 554-7854; or e-mail at sotf@sfgov.org. Copies of the Sunshine Ordinance can be obtained from the Clerk of the Sunshine Task Force, the San Francisco Library and on the City’s website at www.sfbos.org/sunshine.

 

Privacy Policy

Personal information that is provided in communications to the Planning Department is subject to disclosure under the California Public Records Act and the San Francisco Sunshine Ordinance. Personal information provided will not be redacted. 



Members of the public are not required to provide personal identifying information when they communicate with the Planning Department and its commissions. All written or oral communications that members of the public submit to the Department regarding projects or hearings will be made available to all members of the public for inspection and copying. The Department does not redact any information from these submissions. This means that personal information including names, phone numbers, addresses and similar information that a member of the public elects to submit to the Department and its commissions may appear on the Department’s website or in other public documents that members of the public may inspect or copy.



San Francisco Lobbyist Ordinance

Individuals and entities that influence or attempt to influence local legislative or administrative action may be required by the San Francisco Lobbyist Ordinance [SF Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code Section 21.00-2.160] to register and report lobbying activity. For more information about the Lobbyist Ordinance, please contact the San Francisco Ethics Commission at 25 Van Ness Avenue, Suite 220, San Francisco, CA 94102; phone (415) 252-3100; fax (415) 252-3112; and online http://www.sfgov.org/ethics.

 

Accessible Meeting Information

Commission hearings are held in Room 400 at City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place in San Francisco. City Hall is open to the public Monday through Friday from 8:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. and is accessible to persons using wheelchairs and other assistive mobility devices. Ramps are available at the Grove, Van Ness and McAllister entrances. A wheelchair lift is available at the Polk Street entrance. 



Transit: The nearest accessible BART station is Civic Center. Accessible MUNI Metro lines are the F, J, K, L, M, N, T (exit at Civic Center or Van Ness stations). MUNI bus routes also serving the area are the 5, 6, 9, 19, 21, 47, 49, 71, and 71L. For more information regarding MUNI accessible services, call (415) 701-4485 or call 311.



Parking: Accessible parking is available at the Civic Center Underground Parking Garage (McAllister and Polk), and at the Performing Arts Parking Garage (Grove and Franklin). Accessible curbside parking spaces are located all around City Hall. 



Disability Accommodations: To request assistive listening devices, real time captioning, sign language interpreters, readers, large print agendas or other accommodations, please contact the Commission Secretary at (415) 558-6309, or commissions.secretary@sfgov.org at least 72 hours in advance of the hearing to help ensure availability. 



Language Assistance: To request an interpreter for a specific item during the hearing, please contact the Commission Secretary at (415) 558-6309, or commissions.secretary@sfgov.org at least 48 hours in advance of the hearing.



Allergies: In order to assist the City in accommodating persons with severe allergies, environmental illness, multiple chemical sensitivity or related disabilities, please refrain from wearing scented products (e.g. perfume and scented lotions) to Commission hearings.



SPANISH: Agenda para la Comisión de Planificación. Si desea asistir a la audiencia, y quisiera obtener información en Español o solicitar un aparato para asistencia auditiva, llame al 415-558-6309. Por favor llame por lo menos 48 horas de anticipación a la audiencia.



CHINESE: 規劃委員會議程。聽證會上如需要語言協助或要求輔助設備，請致電415-558-6309。請在聽證會舉行之前的

至少48個小時提出要求。



TAGALOG: Adyenda ng Komisyon ng Pagpaplano. Para sa tulong sa lengguwahe o para humiling ng Pantulong na Kagamitan para sa Pagdinig (headset), mangyari lamang na tumawag sa 415-558-6309. Mangyaring tumawag nang maaga  (kung maaari ay 48 oras) bago sa araw ng Pagdinig. 



RUSSIAN: Повестка дня Комиссии по планированию. За помощью переводчика или за вспомогательным слуховым устройством на время слушаний обращайтесь по номеру 415-558-6309. Запросы должны делаться минимум за 48 часов до начала слушания. 







ROLL CALL:		

[bookmark: _Hlk429617]		President:	Myrna Melgar		Vice-President:	Joel Koppel

		Commissioners:                	Frank Fung, Milicent Johnson, Kathrin Moore, 

Dennis Richards





A. CONSIDERATION OF ITEMS PROPOSED FOR CONTINUANCE



The Commission will consider a request for continuance to a later date.  The Commission may choose to continue the item to the date proposed below, to continue the item to another date, or to hear the item on this calendar.



1.	2019-014348PCA	(A. MERLONE: (415) 575-9129)

[bookmark: _GoBack]EXEMPTION FROM DENSITY LIMITS FOR AFFORDABLE AND UNAUTHORIZED UNITS; RESIDENTIAL CARE FACILITIES – Planning Code Amendment to provide an exception from density limit calculations for all affordable units in projects not seeking and receiving a density bonus, permit the legalization of all unauthorized dwelling units notwithstanding a history of no-fault evictions, and principally permit residential care facilities for seven or more persons in all RH (Residential, House) zoning districts; affirming the Planning Department’s determination under the California Environmental Quality Act; making findings of consistency with the General Plan, and the eight priority policies of Planning Code, Section 101.1; and adopting findings of public necessity, convenience, and general welfare under Planning Code, Section 302.

(Proposed Continuance to November 7, 2019)



2.	2019-001694CUA	(D. WEISSGLASS: (415) 575-9177)

1500 MISSION STREET – north side of Mission Street between 11th Street and Van Ness Avenue; Lots 008-011 in Assessor’s Block 3506 (District 6) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization, pursuant to Planning Code Sections 210.2 and 303, to establish a massage use within a spa (d.b.a. “The Spa”) as accessory to the primary gym use (d.b.a. “Equinox”) within a C-3-G (Downtown-General) Zoning District and 130/240-R-3, 130/400-R-3, and 85-X Height and Bulk Districts. The spa use will be operated by Equinox Gym and accessed via the main Equinox entrance at the corner of Van Ness Avenue and Mission Street. The Spa itself will occupy approximately 550 square-feet at the basement level of the 31,000 square-foot Equinox Gym and provide 2 treatment rooms in which massages will be administered. The Project is not a project under CEQA Guidelines Sections 15060(c) and 15378 because there is no direct or indirect physical change in the environment.

Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

(Proposed Continuance to November 14, 2019)



3.	2016-003994CUA	(C. TOWNES: (415) 575-9195)

55 BELCHER STREET – east side of Belcher Street between 14th Street and Duboce Avenue; Lots 098, 099, 100 in Assessor’s Block 3537 (District 8) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization pursuant to Planning Code Sections 121.7, 207(a), 209.4, 303, 303(r) to merge three lots into one lot (10,603 square foot) for the construction of an approximately 27,406 square foot, four-story building, up to 40 feet tall with 25 residential dwelling units, 12 off-street parking spaces, and 25 bicycle parking spaces. The subject property is located within a RTO (Residential Transit Oriented) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

(Continued from Regular hearing on July 11, 2019)

(Proposed Continuance to November 21, 2019)



4.	2019-006951CUA	(C. CAMPBELL: (415) 575-8732)

1401 19TH AVENUE – northwest corner of 19th Avenue, between Judah and Kirkham Streets; Lot 037 of Assessor’s Block 1834 (District 8) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization, pursuant to Planning Code Sections 202.2, 209.1, and 303, to authorize the sale of beer and wine (ABC license Type 20, off-sale beer and wine) with motor vehicle fuel (DBA Chevron) within an expanded retail automotive use establishment (gas station, neighborhood serving convenience store, and café) in a RH-3 (Residential-House, Three Family) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

(Proposed Continuance to December 5, 2019)



5.	2018-004614DRP	(D. WINSLOW: (415) 575-9159)

16 SEACLIFF AVENUE – near 25th Avenue; Lot 019 in Assessor’s Block 1301 (District 2) – Request for Discretionary Review of Building Permit Application No. 2018.0328.4792, proposing construction of a 4- story horizontal rear addition; raising the roof at the 4th floor which is setback 13’; a modified driveway to access a new attached garage; a new lightwell on the front façade; and conversion of an existing noncomplying garage in the rear into storage to an existing one-family dwelling within a RH-1 (D) (Residential, House, One-Family-Detached) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation:  Do Not Take Discretionary Review and Approve 

WITHDRAWN



B.	CONSENT CALENDAR 



All matters listed hereunder constitute a Consent Calendar, are considered to be routine by the Planning Commission, and may be acted upon by a single roll call vote of the Commission.  There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a member of the Commission, the public, or staff so requests, in which event the matter shall be removed from the Consent Calendar and considered as a separate item at this or a future hearing



6.	2019-000362CUA	(S. CISNEROS: (415) 575-9186)

[bookmark: _Hlk11399223][bookmark: _Hlk12971354]1501C SLOAT BOULEVARD – south side of Sloat Boulevard between Clearfield Drive and Everglade Drive, within the Lakeshore Plaza Shopping Center, Lot 004 of Assessor’s Block 7255 (District 7) – Request for a Conditional Use Authorization, pursuant to Planning Code Sections 303, 713, and 780.1, to permit a formula retail use (dba Sprint by Verity Wireless) in a space previously occupied by a formula retail use. The project scope of work consists of an interior remodel. The subject property is located within a NC-S (Neighborhood Commercial Shopping Center Zoning District), Lakeshore Plaza Special Use District, and 26-40-X Height and Bulk Districts. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions

(Continued from Regular hearing on July 11, 2019)



7.	2019-005402CUA	(D. WEISSGLASS: (415) 575-9177)

50 BEALE STREET – western corner of the intersection of Beale and Mission Streets; Lot 003 in Assessor’s Block 0646 (District 6) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization, pursuant to Planning Code Sections 210.2 and 303, to establish a massage use within a spa (d.b.a. “The Spa”) as accessory to the primary gym use (d.b.a. “Equinox”) within a C-3-O(SD) (Downtown Office Special Development) Zoning District and 450-S Height and Bulk District. The spa use will be operated by Equinox Gym and accessed via the main Equinox entrance on Mission Street. The Spa itself will occupy approximately 650 square-feet within the 36,000 square-foot Equinox Gym and provide 2 treatment rooms in which massages will be administered. The primary gym use is principally permitted, was established by Building Permit Application No. 2018091299903, and is currently under construction. The Project is not a project under CEQA Guidelines Sections 15060(c) and 15378 because there is no direct or indirect physical change in the environment.

Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions



8.	2018-013963CUA	(N. TRAN: (415) 575-9174)

[bookmark: _Hlk18586962][bookmark: _Hlk18587877][bookmark: _Hlk18588019]855 GEARY STREET – south side of Geary Street between Larkin and Hyde Streets; Lot 019 in Assessor’s Block 0320 (District 6) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization, pursuant to Planning Code Sections 209.3 and 303 to legalize the change of use to automotive use (private and public parking garage), within a RC-4 (Residential-Commercial) Zoning District and 80-T Height and Bulk District.  No alterations to the building envelope are proposed.  The Project is not a project under CEQA Guidelines Sections 15060(c) and 15378 because there is no direct or indirect physical change in the environment.

Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions



9.	2019-004164CUA	(D. WEISSGLASS: (415) 575-9177)

1056-1062 SANCHEZ STREET – west Side of Sanchez Street between Elizabeth and 24th Streets; Lot 002 in Assessor’s Block 3654 (District 8) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization, pursuant to Planning Code Sections 207, 209.1, and 303, to allow a dwelling unit density of one dwelling unit per 1,000 square feet within a RH-3 (Residential – House, Three Family) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. All of the units currently exist, but one is restricted from further expansion. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions



10.	2019-005201CUA	(C. FAHEY: (415) 575-9139)

298 MUNICH STREET – west side of Munich Street between Brazil Street and Excelsior Avenue; Lot 040 of Assessor’s Block 6023 (District 11) – Request for a Conditional Use Authorization, pursuant to Planning Code Sections 303 and 209.1 to allow a Limited Restaurant (d.b.a. “McLaren Park Café”) within a RH-1 (Residential – House, One Family) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. The subject property is identified as a Limited and Nonconforming Use, protected under Section 186. The Restaurant itself will occupy approximately 570 square-feet of the ground floor within the 3,000 square-foot building. The Project is not a project under CEQA Guidelines Sections 15060(c) and 15378 because there is no direct or indirect physical change in the environment.

Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions



C.	COMMISSION MATTERS 



11.	Consideration of Adoption:

· Draft Minutes for September 12, 2019

· Draft Minutes for September 19, 2019



12.	Commission Comments/Questions

· Inquiries/Announcements.  Without discussion, at this time Commissioners may make announcements or inquiries of staff regarding various matters of interest to the Commissioner(s).

· Future Meetings/Agendas.  At this time, the Commission may discuss and take action to set the date of a Special Meeting and/or determine those items that could be placed on the agenda of the next meeting and other future meetings of the Planning Commission.


D.	DEPARTMENT MATTERS



13.	Director’s Announcements



14.	Review of Past Events at the Board of Supervisors, Board of Appeals and Historic Preservation Commission

	

E.	GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT 



At this time, members of the public may address the Commission on items of interest to the public that are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Commission except agenda items.  With respect to agenda items, your opportunity to address the Commission will be afforded when the item is reached in the meeting.  Each member of the public may address the Commission for up to three minutes. When the number of speakers exceed the 15-minute limit, General Public Comment may be moved to the end of the Agenda.



F. REGULAR CALENDAR  



The Commission Hearing Procedures provide for presentations by staff; followed by the project sponsor team; followed by public comment for and against the proposal.  Please be advised that the project sponsor team includes: the sponsor(s) or their designee, lawyers, architects, engineers, expediters, and/or other advisors.



15.	2013.1535CUA	(M. BOUDREAUX: (415) 575-9140)

450-474 O’FARRELL STREET/532 JONES STREET – the block is bounded by Geary Street to the north, O’Farrell Street to the south, Taylor Street to the east, and Jones Street to the west (Assessor’s block/lot 0317/007, 0317/009, and 0317/011). (District 6); Informational Presentation on project design changes required pursuant to Condition No. 12.a. of Motion No. 20281. The Planning Commission granted Conditional Use Authorization on September 13, 2018. The proposed project would demolish the existing structures, merge the three lots, and construct a 13-story, 130-foot-tall, 226,514-sf mixed-use building with residential, ground floor commercial and institutional (church) uses.

Preliminary Recommendation: None – Informational



16.	2019-005575IMP	(N. TRAN: (415) 575-9174)

555 POST STREET – south side of Post Street between Taylor and Mason Streets, Lot 020 in Assessor’s Block 0306 (District 3); Informational presentation on Make School’s Abbreviated Institutional Master Plan (IMP), pursuant to Planning Code Section 304.5.  Receipt of this IMP does not constitute approval or disapproval of any proposed projects contained in the IMP by the Planning Commission. The Abbreviated IMP contains information on the nature and history of the institution, the location and use of affiliated buildings, and development plans. The Abbreviated IMP is available for viewing on the Planning Department’s website at: http://www.sfplanning.org, click on “Resource Center”, then “Department Publications A-Z”, then scroll to “I” for Institutional Master Plans. The IMP is also available for public viewing at the Planning Department’s Public Information Center located at 1660 Mission Street, 1st Floor, and at the Department’s reception area located at 1650 Mission Street, 4th Floor.

Preliminary Recommendation: None – Informational



17a.	2014.0334SHD	(E. SAMONSKY: (415) 575-9112)

262 7TH STREET – south side between Folsom and Howard Streets; Lot 007 of Assessor’s Block 3730 (District 6) – Request for adoption of Shadow Findings that Project shadows would not adversely affect use of public open space at Howard & Langton Mini Park, a park under the jurisdiction of or designated for acquisition by the Recreation and Park Commission (Planning Code Section 295). The Project proposes the demolition of the existing building on the site, and construction of two seven-story, 65-foot tall, mixed-use buildings, totaling approximately 38,294 square-feet (sf), with a total of 96 single room occupancy (SRO) units, 1,079 sf of commercial space, and 96 bicycle parking spaces. The subject property is located within the WMUG (Western SoMa Mixed-Use General) Zoning District, Western SoMa and Youth and Family Zone Special Use Districts and 65-X Height and Bulk District.  

Preliminary Recommendation: Adopt Findings 

	

17b.	2014.0334ENX	(E. SAMONSKY: (415) 575-9112)

262 7TH STREET – south side between Folsom and Howard Streets; Lot 007 of Assessor’s Block 3730 (District 6) – Request for Large Project Authorization, pursuant to Planning Code Section 329, for the demolition of the existing building on the site, and construction of two seven-story, 65-foot tall, mixed-use buildings, totaling approximately 38,294 square-feet (sf), with a total of 96 single room occupancy (SRO) units, 1,079 sf of commercial space, and 96 bicycle parking spaces. Under the LPA, the project is seeking exceptions to certain Planning Code requirements, including: 1) rear yard (Planning Code Section 134); 2) usable open space (Planning Code Section 135); and 3) exposure (Planning Code Section 140). The subject property is located within the WMUG (Western SoMa Mixed-Use General) Zoning District, Western SoMa and Youth and Family Zone Special Use Districts and 65-X Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions







18.	2019-005500CUA	(M. CHRISTENSEN: (415) 575-8742)

2934 CESAR CHAVEZ STREET – northeast corner of Cesar Chavez and Bryant Streets; Lot 003I in Assessor’s Block 4335 (District 9) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization, pursuant to Planning Code Sections 202.2, 249.59, 249.60, 303, and 712 to allow a 171 square foot Cannabis Retail use in the ground floor of an existing two-story mixed use building within a NC-3 (Neighborhood Commercial, Moderate Scale) Zoning District, Mission Alcoholic Beverage Special Use District, Calle 24 Special Use District, and 40-X Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions



19.	2019-014433CUA	(M. CHRISTENSEN: (415) 575-8742)

49 DUBOCE AVENUE – south side of Duboce Street between Valencia and Woodward Streets; Lot 039 in Assessor’s Block 3532 (District 9) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization, pursuant to Planning Code Sections 210.3 and 303, to allow an Industrial Agriculture use (cannabis cultivation) within a PDR-1-G (Production, Distribution and Repair – 1 – General) Zoning District and 68-X Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions



G. [bookmark: OLE_LINK2][bookmark: OLE_LINK1]DISCRETIONARY REVIEW CALENDAR  



The Commission Discretionary Review Hearing Procedures provide for presentations by staff; followed by the DR requestor team; followed by public comment opposed to the project; followed by the project sponsor team; followed by public comment in support of the project.  Please be advised that the DR requestor and project sponsor teams include: the DR requestor and sponsor or their designee, lawyers, architects, engineers, expediters, and/or other advisors.



20.	2019-012253DRP	(D. WASHINGTON: (415) 558-6443)

463 CASTRO STREET – between Market and 19th Streets; Lot 062 in Assessor’s Block 3582 District 7) – Request for Discretionary Review of Building Permit Application No. 2019.05.30.2067 for a change of use from retail to limited-restaurant (DBA Vegan Sandwich Bar) within the Castro Street Neighborhood Commercial Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District.  This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation: Do Not Take Discretionary Review and Approve



21.	2019-013111DRP	(D. WINSLOW: (415) 575-9159)

240 CHENERY STREET – between Miguel and Fairmount Streets; Lot 049 in Assessor’s Block 6685 (District 8) – Request for Discretionary Review of Building Permit Application No. 2019.0513.0493, proposing construction of property line windows to an existing one-family dwelling within a RH-2 (Residential, House, Two-Family) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation:  Do Not Take Discretionary Review and Approve 







22.	2018-009175DRP	(D. WINSLOW: (415) 575-9159)

3610 WASHINGTON STREET – between Locust and Spruce Streets; Lot 024 in Assessor’s Block 0987 (District 2) – Request for Discretionary Review of Building Permit Application No. 2019.0110.0038, proposing construction of a rear horizontal and vertical addition, excavation at the basement to add habitable space to an existing 2-story single-family dwelling within a RH-1 (Residential, House, One-Family) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation:  Do Not Take Discretionary Review and Approve



	

ADJOURNMENT


Hearing Procedures

The Planning Commission holds public hearings regularly, on most Thursdays. The full hearing schedule for the calendar year and the Commission Rules & Regulations may be found online at: www.sfplanning.org. 



Public Comments: Persons attending a hearing may comment on any scheduled item. 

· When speaking before the Commission in City Hall, Room 400, please note the timer indicating how much time remains.  Speakers will hear two alarms.  The first soft sound indicates the speaker has 30 seconds remaining.  The second louder sound indicates that the speaker’s opportunity to address the Commission has ended.



Sound-Producing Devices Prohibited: The ringing of and use of mobile phones and other sound-producing electronic devices are prohibited at this meeting. Please be advised that the Chair may order the removal of any person(s) responsible for the ringing or use of a mobile phone, pager, or other similar sound-producing electronic devices (67A.1 Sunshine Ordinance: Prohibiting the use of cell phones, pagers and similar sound-producing electronic devices at and during public meetings).



For most cases (CU’s, PUD’s, 309’s, etc…) that are considered by the Planning Commission, after being introduced by the Commission Secretary, shall be considered by the Commission in the following order:



1. A thorough description of the issue(s) by the Director or a member of the staff.

2. A presentation of the proposal by the Project Sponsor(s) team (includes sponsor or their designee, lawyers, architects, engineers, expediters, and/or other advisors) would be for a period not to exceed 10 minutes, unless a written request for extension not to exceed a total presentation time of 15 minutes is received at least 72 hours in advance of the hearing, through the Commission Secretary, and granted by the President or Chair.

3. A presentation of opposition to the proposal by organized opposition for a period not to exceed 10 minutes (or a period equal to that provided to the project sponsor team) with a minimum of three (3) speakers.  The intent of the 10 min block of time provided to organized opposition is to reduce the number of overall speakers who are part of the organized opposition.  The requestor should advise the group that the Commission would expect the organized presentation to represent their testimony, if granted.  Organized opposition will be recognized only upon written application at least 72 hours in advance of the hearing, through the Commission Secretary, the President or Chair.  Such application should identify the organization(s) and speakers.

4. Public testimony from proponents of the proposal:  An individual may speak for a period not to exceed three (3) minutes.

5. Public testimony from opponents of the proposal:  An individual may speak for a period not to exceed three (3) minutes.

6. Director’s preliminary recommendation must be prepared in writing.

7. Action by the Commission on the matter before it.

8. In public hearings on Draft Environmental Impact Reports, all speakers will be limited to a period not to exceed three (3) minutes.

9. The President (or Acting Chair) may impose time limits on appearances by members of the public and may otherwise exercise his or her discretion on procedures for the conduct of public hearings.

10. Public comment portion of the hearing shall be closed and deliberation amongst the Commissioners shall be opened by the Chair;

11. A motion to approve; approve with conditions; approve with amendments and/or modifications; disapprove; or continue to another hearing date, if seconded, shall be voted on by the Commission.



Every Official Act taken by the Commission must be adopted by a majority vote of all members of the Commission, a minimum of four (4) votes.  A failed motion results in the disapproval of the requested action, unless a subsequent motion is adopted. Any Procedural Matter, such as a continuance, may be adopted by a majority vote of members present, as long as the members present constitute a quorum (four (4) members of the Commission).



For Discretionary Review cases that are considered by the Planning Commission, after being introduced by the Commission Secretary, shall be considered by the Commission in the following order:



1. A thorough description of the issue by the Director or a member of the staff.

2. A presentation by the DR Requestor(s) team (includes Requestor(s) or their designee, lawyers, architects, engineers, expediters, and/or other advisors) would be for a period not to exceed five (5) minutes for each requestor.

3. Testimony by members of the public in support of the DR would be up to three (3) minutes each.

4. A presentation by the Project Sponsor(s) team (includes Sponsor(s) or their designee, lawyers, architects, engineers, expediters, and/or other advisors) would be for a period up to five (5) minutes, but could be extended for a period not to exceed 10 minutes if there are multiple DR requestors.

5. Testimony by members of the public in support of the project would be up to three (3) minutes each.

6. DR requestor(s) or their designees are given two (2) minutes for rebuttal.

7. Project sponsor(s) or their designees are given two (2) minutes for rebuttal.

8. The President (or Acting Chair) may impose time limits on appearances by members of the public and may otherwise exercise his or her discretion on procedures for the conduct of public hearings.



The Commission must Take DR in order to disapprove or modify a building permit application that is before them under Discretionary Review.  A failed motion to Take DR results in a Project that is approved as proposed.



Hearing Materials

Advance Submissions: To allow Commissioners the opportunity to review material in advance of a hearing, materials must be received by the Planning Department eight (8) days prior to the scheduled public hearing.  All submission packages must be delivered to1650 Mission Street, Suite 400, by 5:00 p.m. and should include fifteen (15) hardcopies and a .pdf copy must be provided to the staff planner. Correspondence submitted to the Planning Commission after eight days in advance of a hearing must be received by the Commission Secretary no later than the close of business the day before a hearing for it to become a part of the public record for any public hearing. 



Correspondence submitted to the Planning Commission on the same day, must be submitted at the hearing directly to the Planning Commission Secretary. Please provide ten (10) copies for distribution. Correspondence submitted in any other fashion on the same day may not become a part of the public record until the following hearing.



Correspondence sent directly to all members of the Commission, must include a copy to the Commission Secretary (commissions.secretary@sfgov.org) for it to become a part of the public record.



These submittal rules and deadlines shall be strictly enforced and no exceptions shall be made without a vote of the Commission.



Persons unable to attend a hearing may submit written comments regarding a scheduled item to: Planning Commission, 1650 Mission Street, Suite 400, San Francisco, CA  94103-2414.  Written comments received by the close of the business day prior to the hearing will be brought to the attention of the Planning Commission and made part of the official record.  



Appeals

The following is a summary of appeal rights associated with the various actions that may be taken at a Planning Commission hearing.



		Case Type

		Case Suffix

		Appeal Period*

		Appeal Body



		Office Allocation

		OFA (B)

		15 calendar days

		Board of Appeals**



		Conditional Use Authorization and Planned Unit Development

		CUA (C)

		30 calendar days

		Board of Supervisors



		Building Permit Application (Discretionary Review)

		DRP/DRM (D)

		15 calendar days

		Board of Appeals



		EIR Certification

		ENV (E)

		30 calendar days

		Board of Supervisors



		Coastal Zone Permit

		CTZ (P)

		15 calendar days

		Board of Appeals



		Planning Code Amendments by Application

		PCA (T)

		30 calendar days

		Board of Supervisors



		Variance (Zoning Administrator action)

		VAR (V)

		10 calendar days

		Board of Appeals



		Large Project Authorization in Eastern Neighborhoods 

		LPA (X)

		15 calendar days

		Board of Appeals



		Permit Review in C-3 Districts, Downtown Residential Districts

		DNX (X)

		15-calendar days

		Board of Appeals



		Zoning Map Change by Application

		MAP (Z)

		30 calendar days

		Board of Supervisors







* Appeals of Planning Commission decisions on Building Permit Applications (Discretionary Review) must be made within 15 days of the date the building permit is issued/denied by the Department of Building Inspection (not from the date of the Planning Commission hearing).  Appeals of Zoning Administrator decisions on Variances must be made within 10 days from the issuance of the decision letter.



**An appeal of a Certificate of Appropriateness or Permit to Alter/Demolish may be made to the Board of Supervisors if the project requires Board of Supervisors approval or if the project is associated with a Conditional Use Authorization appeal.  An appeal of an Office Allocation may be made to the Board of Supervisors if the project requires a Conditional Use Authorization.



For more information regarding the Board of Appeals process, please contact the Board of Appeals at (415) 575-6880.  For more information regarding the Board of Supervisors process, please contact the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors at (415) 554-5184 or board.of.supervisors@sfgov.org. 



An appeal of the approval (or denial) of a 100% Affordable Housing Bonus Program application may be made to the Board of Supervisors within 30 calendar days after the date of action by the Planning Commission pursuant to the provisions of Sections 328(g)(5) and 308.1(b). Appeals must be submitted in person at the Board’s office at 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 244. For further information about appeals to the Board of Supervisors, including current fees, contact the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors at (415) 554-5184. 



An appeal of the approval (or denial) of a building permit application issued (or denied) pursuant to a 100% Affordable Housing Bonus Program application by the Planning Commission or the Board of Supervisors may be made to the Board of Appeals within 15 calendar days after the building permit is issued (or denied) by the Director of the Department of Building Inspection. Appeals must be submitted in person at the Board's office at 1650 Mission Street, 3rd Floor, Room 304. For further information about appeals to the Board of Appeals, including current fees, contact the Board of Appeals at (415) 575-6880. 



Challenges

Pursuant to Government Code Section 65009, if you challenge, in court, (1) the adoption or amendment of a general plan, (2) the adoption or amendment of a zoning ordinance, (3) the adoption or amendment of any regulation attached to a specific plan, (4) the adoption, amendment or modification of a development agreement, or (5) the approval of a variance, conditional-use authorization, or any permit, you may be limited to raising only those issues you or someone else raised at the public hearing described in this notice, or in written correspondence delivered to the Planning Commission, at, or prior to, the public hearing.



CEQA Appeal Rights under Chapter 31 of the San Francisco Administrative Code

If the Commission’s action on a project constitutes the Approval Action for that project (as defined in S.F. Administrative Code Chapter 31, as amended, Board of Supervisors Ordinance Number 161-13), then the CEQA determination prepared in support of that Approval Action is thereafter subject to appeal within the time frame specified in S.F. Administrative Code Section 31.16.  This appeal is separate from and in addition to an appeal of an action on a project.  Typically, an appeal must be filed within 30 calendar days of the Approval Action for a project that has received an exemption or negative declaration pursuant to CEQA.  For information on filing an appeal under Chapter 31, contact the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors at City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 244, San Francisco, CA 94102, or call (415) 554-5184.  If the Department’s Environmental Review Officer has deemed a project to be exempt from further environmental review, an exemption determination has been prepared and can be obtained on-line at http://www.sf-planning.org/index.aspx?page=3447. Under CEQA, in a later court challenge, a litigant may be limited to raising only those issues previously raised at a hearing on the project or in written correspondence delivered to the Board of Supervisors, Planning Commission, Planning Department or other City board, commission or department at, or prior to, such hearing, or as part of the appeal hearing process on the CEQA decision.



Protest of Fee or Exaction

You may protest any fee or exaction subject to Government Code Section 66000 imposed as a condition of approval in accordance with Government Code Section 66020.  The protest must satisfy the requirements of Government Code Section 66020(a) and must be filed within 90 days of the date of the first approval or conditional approval of the development referencing the challenged fee or exaction.  For purposes of Government Code Section 66020, the date of imposition of the fee shall be the date of the earliest discretionary approval by the City of the subject development.   



The Planning Commission’s approval or conditional approval of the development subject to the challenged fee or exaction as expressed in its Motion, Resolution, or Discretionary Review Action or the Zoning Administrator’s Variance Decision Letter will serve as Notice that the 90-day protest period under Government Code Section 66020 has begun.
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Know Your Rights Under the Sunshine Ordinance 
Government's duty is to serve the public, reaching its decisions in full view of the public. Commissions, boards, councils and other agencies of the City 
and County exist to conduct the people's business. This ordinance assures that deliberations are conducted before the people and that City operations 
are open to the people's review.  
 
For more information on your rights under the Sunshine Ordinance (Chapter 67 of the San Francisco Administrative Code) or to report a violation of 
the ordinance, contact the Sunshine Ordinance Task Force at City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 409; phone (415) 554-7724; fax (415) 554-
7854; or e-mail at sotf@sfgov.org. Copies of the Sunshine Ordinance can be obtained from the Clerk of the Sunshine Task Force, the San Francisco 
Library and on the City’s website at www.sfbos.org/sunshine. 
  
Privacy Policy 
Personal information that is provided in communications to the Planning Department is subject to disclosure under the California Public Records Act 
and the San Francisco Sunshine Ordinance. Personal information provided will not be redacted.  
 
Members of the public are not required to provide personal identifying information when they communicate with the Planning Department and its 
commissions. All written or oral communications that members of the public submit to the Department regarding projects or hearings will be made 
available to all members of the public for inspection and copying. The Department does not redact any information from these submissions. This 
means that personal information including names, phone numbers, addresses and similar information that a member of the public elects to submit to 
the Department and its commissions may appear on the Department’s website or in other public documents that members of the public may inspect 
or copy. 
 
San Francisco Lobbyist Ordinance 
Individuals and entities that influence or attempt to influence local legislative or administrative action may be required by the San Francisco Lobbyist 
Ordinance [SF Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code Section 21.00-2.160] to register and report lobbying activity. For more information about 
the Lobbyist Ordinance, please contact the San Francisco Ethics Commission at 25 Van Ness Avenue, Suite 220, San Francisco, CA 94102; phone (415) 
252-3100; fax (415) 252-3112; and online http://www.sfgov.org/ethics. 
  
Accessible Meeting Information 
Commission hearings are held in Room 400 at City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place in San Francisco. City Hall is open to the public Monday through 
Friday from 8:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. and is accessible to persons using wheelchairs and other assistive mobility devices. Ramps are available at the Grove, 
Van Ness and McAllister entrances. A wheelchair lift is available at the Polk Street entrance.  
 
Transit: The nearest accessible BART station is Civic Center. Accessible MUNI Metro lines are the F, J, K, L, M, N, T (exit at Civic Center or Van Ness 
stations). MUNI bus routes also serving the area are the 5, 6, 9, 19, 21, 47, 49, 71, and 71L. For more information regarding MUNI accessible services, 
call (415) 701-4485 or call 311. 
 
Parking: Accessible parking is available at the Civic Center Underground Parking Garage (McAllister and Polk), and at the Performing Arts Parking 
Garage (Grove and Franklin). Accessible curbside parking spaces are located all around City Hall.  
 
Disability Accommodations: To request assistive listening devices, real time captioning, sign language interpreters, readers, large print agendas or 
other accommodations, please contact the Commission Secretary at (415) 558-6309, or commissions.secretary@sfgov.org at least 72 hours in advance 
of the hearing to help ensure availability.  
 
Language Assistance: To request an interpreter for a specific item during the hearing, please contact the Commission Secretary at (415) 558-6309, or 
commissions.secretary@sfgov.org at least 48 hours in advance of the hearing. 
 
Allergies: In order to assist the City in accommodating persons with severe allergies, environmental illness, multiple chemical sensitivity or related 
disabilities, please refrain from wearing scented products (e.g. perfume and scented lotions) to Commission hearings. 
 
SPANISH: Agenda para la Comisión de Planificación. Si desea asistir a la audiencia, y quisiera obtener información en Español o solicitar un aparato 
para asistencia auditiva, llame al 415-558-6309. Por favor llame por lo menos 48 horas de anticipación a la audiencia. 
 
CHINESE: 規劃委員會議程。聽證會上如需要語言協助或要求輔助設備，請致電415-558-6309。請在聽證會舉行之前的 
至少48個小時提出要求。 
 
TAGALOG: Adyenda ng Komisyon ng Pagpaplano. Para sa tulong sa lengguwahe o para humiling ng Pantulong na Kagamitan para sa Pagdinig 
(headset), mangyari lamang na tumawag sa 415-558-6309. Mangyaring tumawag nang maaga  (kung maaari ay 48 oras) bago sa araw ng Pagdinig.  
 
RUSSIAN: Повестка дня Комиссии по планированию. За помощью переводчика или за вспомогательным слуховым 
устройством на время слушаний обращайтесь по номеру 415-558-6309. Запросы должны делаться минимум за 48 часов 
до начала слушания.  
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ROLL CALL:   
  President: Myrna Melgar 


 Vice-President: Joel Koppel 
  Commissioners:                 Frank Fung, Milicent Johnson, Kathrin Moore,  


Dennis Richards 
 
 
A. CONSIDERATION OF ITEMS PROPOSED FOR CONTINUANCE 
 


The Commission will consider a request for continuance to a later date.  The Commission may choose 
to continue the item to the date proposed below, to continue the item to another date, or to hear 
the item on this calendar. 


 
1. 2019-014348PCA (A. MERLONE: (415) 575-9129) 


EXEMPTION FROM DENSITY LIMITS FOR AFFORDABLE AND UNAUTHORIZED UNITS; 
RESIDENTIAL CARE FACILITIES – Planning Code Amendment to provide an exception from 
density limit calculations for all affordable units in projects not seeking and receiving a 
density bonus, permit the legalization of all unauthorized dwelling units notwithstanding a 
history of no-fault evictions, and principally permit residential care facilities for seven or 
more persons in all RH (Residential, House) zoning districts; affirming the Planning 
Department’s determination under the California Environmental Quality Act; making 
findings of consistency with the General Plan, and the eight priority policies of Planning 
Code, Section 101.1; and adopting findings of public necessity, convenience, and general 
welfare under Planning Code, Section 302. 
(Proposed Continuance to November 7, 2019) 
 


2. 2019-001694CUA (D. WEISSGLASS: (415) 575-9177) 
1500 MISSION STREET – north side of Mission Street between 11th Street and Van Ness 
Avenue; Lots 008-011 in Assessor’s Block 3506 (District 6) – Request for Conditional Use 
Authorization, pursuant to Planning Code Sections 210.2 and 303, to establish a massage 
use within a spa (d.b.a. “The Spa”) as accessory to the primary gym use (d.b.a. “Equinox”) 
within a C-3-G (Downtown-General) Zoning District and 130/240-R-3, 130/400-R-3, and 85-
X Height and Bulk Districts. The spa use will be operated by Equinox Gym and accessed via 
the main Equinox entrance at the corner of Van Ness Avenue and Mission Street. The Spa 
itself will occupy approximately 550 square-feet at the basement level of the 31,000 square-
foot Equinox Gym and provide 2 treatment rooms in which massages will be administered. 
The Project is not a project under CEQA Guidelines Sections 15060(c) and 15378 because 
there is no direct or indirect physical change in the environment. 
Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions 
(Proposed Continuance to November 14, 2019) 
 


3. 2016-003994CUA (C. TOWNES: (415) 575-9195) 
55 BELCHER STREET – east side of Belcher Street between 14th Street and Duboce Avenue; 
Lots 098, 099, 100 in Assessor’s Block 3537 (District 8) – Request for Conditional Use 
Authorization pursuant to Planning Code Sections 121.7, 207(a), 209.4, 303, 303(r) to merge 
three lots into one lot (10,603 square foot) for the construction of an approximately 27,406 
square foot, four-story building, up to 40 feet tall with 25 residential dwelling units, 12 off-
street parking spaces, and 25 bicycle parking spaces. The subject property is located within 
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a RTO (Residential Transit Oriented) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. This 
action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to 
San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h). 
Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions 
(Continued from Regular hearing on July 11, 2019) 
(Proposed Continuance to November 21, 2019) 


 
4. 2019-006951CUA (C. CAMPBELL: (415) 575-8732) 


1401 19TH AVENUE – northwest corner of 19th Avenue, between Judah and Kirkham Streets; 
Lot 037 of Assessor’s Block 1834 (District 8) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization, 
pursuant to Planning Code Sections 202.2, 209.1, and 303, to authorize the sale of beer and 
wine (ABC license Type 20, off-sale beer and wine) with motor vehicle fuel (DBA Chevron) 
within an expanded retail automotive use establishment (gas station, neighborhood serving 
convenience store, and café) in a RH-3 (Residential-House, Three Family) Zoning District and 
40-X Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for 
the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h). 
Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions 
(Proposed Continuance to December 5, 2019) 


 
5. 2018-004614DRP (D. WINSLOW: (415) 575-9159) 


16 SEACLIFF AVENUE – near 25th Avenue; Lot 019 in Assessor’s Block 1301 (District 2) – 
Request for Discretionary Review of Building Permit Application No. 2018.0328.4792, 
proposing construction of a 4- story horizontal rear addition; raising the roof at the 4th floor 
which is setback 13’; a modified driveway to access a new attached garage; a new lightwell 
on the front façade; and conversion of an existing noncomplying garage in the rear into 
storage to an existing one-family dwelling within a RH-1 (D) (Residential, House, One-
Family-Detached) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes 
the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco 
Administrative Code Section 31.04(h). 
Preliminary Recommendation:  Do Not Take Discretionary Review and Approve  
WITHDRAWN 
 


B. CONSENT CALENDAR  
 
All matters listed hereunder constitute a Consent Calendar, are considered to be routine by the 
Planning Commission, and may be acted upon by a single roll call vote of the Commission.  There 
will be no separate discussion of these items unless a member of the Commission, the public, or staff 
so requests, in which event the matter shall be removed from the Consent Calendar and considered 
as a separate item at this or a future hearing 


 
6. 2019-000362CUA (S. CISNEROS: (415) 575-9186) 


1501C SLOAT BOULEVARD – south side of Sloat Boulevard between Clearfield Drive and 
Everglade Drive, within the Lakeshore Plaza Shopping Center, Lot 004 of Assessor’s Block 
7255 (District 7) – Request for a Conditional Use Authorization, pursuant to Planning Code 
Sections 303, 713, and 780.1, to permit a formula retail use (dba Sprint by Verity Wireless) in 
a space previously occupied by a formula retail use. The project scope of work consists of an 
interior remodel. The subject property is located within a NC-S (Neighborhood Commercial 
Shopping Center Zoning District), Lakeshore Plaza Special Use District, and 26-40-X Height 



http://library.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll/California/administrative/chapter31californiaenvironmentalqualitya?f=templates$fn=default.htm$3.0$vid=amlegal:sanfrancisco_ca$anc=JD_31.04

http://library.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll/California/administrative/chapter31californiaenvironmentalqualitya?f=templates$fn=default.htm$3.0$vid=amlegal:sanfrancisco_ca$anc=JD_31.04

http://library.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll/California/administrative/chapter31californiaenvironmentalqualitya?f=templates$fn=default.htm$3.0$vid=amlegal:sanfrancisco_ca$anc=JD_31.04

https://commissions.sfplanning.org/cpcpackets/2019-000362CUAc1.pdf
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and Bulk Districts. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the 
purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h). 
Preliminary Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions 
(Continued from Regular hearing on July 11, 2019) 
 


7. 2019-005402CUA (D. WEISSGLASS: (415) 575-9177) 
50 BEALE STREET – western corner of the intersection of Beale and Mission Streets; Lot 003 
in Assessor’s Block 0646 (District 6) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization, pursuant 
to Planning Code Sections 210.2 and 303, to establish a massage use within a spa (d.b.a. 
“The Spa”) as accessory to the primary gym use (d.b.a. “Equinox”) within a C-3-O(SD) 
(Downtown Office Special Development) Zoning District and 450-S Height and Bulk District. 
The spa use will be operated by Equinox Gym and accessed via the main Equinox entrance 
on Mission Street. The Spa itself will occupy approximately 650 square-feet within the 
36,000 square-foot Equinox Gym and provide 2 treatment rooms in which massages will be 
administered. The primary gym use is principally permitted, was established by Building 
Permit Application No. 2018091299903, and is currently under construction. The Project is 
not a project under CEQA Guidelines Sections 15060(c) and 15378 because there is no direct 
or indirect physical change in the environment. 
Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions 


 
8. 2018-013963CUA (N. TRAN: (415) 575-9174) 


855 GEARY STREET – south side of Geary Street between Larkin and Hyde Streets; Lot 019 in 
Assessor’s Block 0320 (District 6) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization, pursuant to 
Planning Code Sections 209.3 and 303 to legalize the change of use to automotive use 
(private and public parking garage), within a RC-4 (Residential-Commercial) Zoning District 
and 80-T Height and Bulk District.  No alterations to the building envelope are proposed.  
The Project is not a project under CEQA Guidelines Sections 15060(c) and 15378 because 
there is no direct or indirect physical change in the environment. 
Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions 
 


9. 2019-004164CUA (D. WEISSGLASS: (415) 575-9177) 
1056-1062 SANCHEZ STREET – west Side of Sanchez Street between Elizabeth and 24th 
Streets; Lot 002 in Assessor’s Block 3654 (District 8) – Request for Conditional Use 
Authorization, pursuant to Planning Code Sections 207, 209.1, and 303, to allow a dwelling 
unit density of one dwelling unit per 1,000 square feet within a RH-3 (Residential – House, 
Three Family) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. All of the units currently 
exist, but one is restricted from further expansion. This action constitutes the Approval 
Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative 
Code Section 31.04(h). 
Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions 


 
10. 2019-005201CUA (C. FAHEY: (415) 575-9139) 


298 MUNICH STREET – west side of Munich Street between Brazil Street and Excelsior 
Avenue; Lot 040 of Assessor’s Block 6023 (District 11) – Request for a Conditional Use 
Authorization, pursuant to Planning Code Sections 303 and 209.1 to allow a Limited 
Restaurant (d.b.a. “McLaren Park Café”) within a RH-1 (Residential – House, One Family) 
Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. The subject property is identified as a 
Limited and Nonconforming Use, protected under Section 186. The Restaurant itself will 
occupy approximately 570 square-feet of the ground floor within the 3,000 square-foot 



http://library.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll/California/administrative/chapter31californiaenvironmentalqualitya?f=templates$fn=default.htm$3.0$vid=amlegal:sanfrancisco_ca$anc=JD_31.04

https://commissions.sfplanning.org/cpcpackets/2019-005402CUA.pdf

https://commissions.sfplanning.org/cpcpackets/2018-013963CUA.pdf

https://commissions.sfplanning.org/cpcpackets/2019-004164CUA.pdf

http://library.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll/California/administrative/chapter31californiaenvironmentalqualitya?f=templates$fn=default.htm$3.0$vid=amlegal:sanfrancisco_ca$anc=JD_31.04

https://commissions.sfplanning.org/cpcpackets/2019-005201CUA.pdf
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building. The Project is not a project under CEQA Guidelines Sections 15060(c) and 15378 
because there is no direct or indirect physical change in the environment. 
Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions 


 
C. COMMISSION MATTERS  
 


11. Consideration of Adoption: 
• Draft Minutes for September 12, 2019 
• Draft Minutes for September 19, 2019 


 
12. Commission Comments/Questions 


• Inquiries/Announcements.  Without discussion, at this time Commissioners may 
make announcements or inquiries of staff regarding various matters of interest to 
the Commissioner(s). 


• Future Meetings/Agendas.  At this time, the Commission may discuss and take 
action to set the date of a Special Meeting and/or determine those items that could 
be placed on the agenda of the next meeting and other future meetings of the 
Planning Commission. 


 
D. DEPARTMENT MATTERS 


 
13. Director’s Announcements 
 
14. Review of Past Events at the Board of Supervisors, Board of Appeals and Historic 


Preservation Commission 
  


E. GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT  
 


At this time, members of the public may address the Commission on items of interest to the public 
that are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Commission except agenda items.  With respect 
to agenda items, your opportunity to address the Commission will be afforded when the item is 
reached in the meeting.  Each member of the public may address the Commission for up to three 
minutes. When the number of speakers exceed the 15-minute limit, General Public Comment may 
be moved to the end of the Agenda. 


 
F. REGULAR CALENDAR   


 
The Commission Hearing Procedures provide for presentations by staff; followed by the project 
sponsor team; followed by public comment for and against the proposal.  Please be advised that the 
project sponsor team includes: the sponsor(s) or their designee, lawyers, architects, engineers, 
expediters, and/or other advisors. 
 
15. 2013.1535CUA (M. BOUDREAUX: (415) 575-9140) 


450-474 O’FARRELL STREET/532 JONES STREET – the block is bounded by Geary Street to the 
north, O’Farrell Street to the south, Taylor Street to the east, and Jones Street to the west 
(Assessor’s block/lot 0317/007, 0317/009, and 0317/011). (District 6); Informational 
Presentation on project design changes required pursuant to Condition No. 12.a. of Motion 
No. 20281. The Planning Commission granted Conditional Use Authorization on September 
13, 2018. The proposed project would demolish the existing structures, merge the three lots, 



http://commissions.sfplanning.org/cpcpackets/20190912_cal_min.pdf

http://commissions.sfplanning.org/cpcpackets/20190919_cal_min.pdf

https://commissions.sfplanning.org/cpcpackets/2013.1535CUA_100319.pdf
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and construct a 13-story, 130-foot-tall, 226,514-sf mixed-use building with residential, 
ground floor commercial and institutional (church) uses. 
Preliminary Recommendation: None – Informational 
 


16. 2019-005575IMP (N. TRAN: (415) 575-9174) 
555 POST STREET – south side of Post Street between Taylor and Mason Streets, Lot 020 in 
Assessor’s Block 0306 (District 3); Informational presentation on Make School’s Abbreviated 
Institutional Master Plan (IMP), pursuant to Planning Code Section 304.5.  Receipt of this IMP 
does not constitute approval or disapproval of any proposed projects contained in the IMP 
by the Planning Commission. The Abbreviated IMP contains information on the nature and 
history of the institution, the location and use of affiliated buildings, and development 
plans. The Abbreviated IMP is available for viewing on the Planning Department’s website 
at: http://www.sfplanning.org, click on “Resource Center”, then “Department Publications 
A-Z”, then scroll to “I” for Institutional Master Plans. The IMP is also available for public 
viewing at the Planning Department’s Public Information Center located at 1660 Mission 
Street, 1st Floor, and at the Department’s reception area located at 1650 Mission Street, 4th 
Floor. 
Preliminary Recommendation: None – Informational 


 
17a. 2014.0334SHD (E. SAMONSKY: (415) 575-9112) 


262 7TH STREET – south side between Folsom and Howard Streets; Lot 007 of Assessor’s Block 
3730 (District 6) – Request for adoption of Shadow Findings that Project shadows would not 
adversely affect use of public open space at Howard & Langton Mini Park, a park under the 
jurisdiction of or designated for acquisition by the Recreation and Park Commission 
(Planning Code Section 295). The Project proposes the demolition of the existing building 
on the site, and construction of two seven-story, 65-foot tall, mixed-use buildings, totaling 
approximately 38,294 square-feet (sf), with a total of 96 single room occupancy (SRO) units, 
1,079 sf of commercial space, and 96 bicycle parking spaces. The subject property is located 
within the WMUG (Western SoMa Mixed-Use General) Zoning District, Western SoMa and 
Youth and Family Zone Special Use Districts and 65-X Height and Bulk District.   
Preliminary Recommendation: Adopt Findings  


  
17b. 2014.0334ENX (E. SAMONSKY: (415) 575-9112) 


262 7TH STREET – south side between Folsom and Howard Streets; Lot 007 of Assessor’s Block 
3730 (District 6) – Request for Large Project Authorization, pursuant to Planning Code 
Section 329, for the demolition of the existing building on the site, and construction of two 
seven-story, 65-foot tall, mixed-use buildings, totaling approximately 38,294 square-feet 
(sf), with a total of 96 single room occupancy (SRO) units, 1,079 sf of commercial space, and 
96 bicycle parking spaces. Under the LPA, the project is seeking exceptions to certain 
Planning Code requirements, including: 1) rear yard (Planning Code Section 134); 2) usable 
open space (Planning Code Section 135); and 3) exposure (Planning Code Section 140). The 
subject property is located within the WMUG (Western SoMa Mixed-Use General) Zoning 
District, Western SoMa and Youth and Family Zone Special Use Districts and 65-X Height and 
Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of 
CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h). 
Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions 
 
 
 



https://commissions.sfplanning.org/cpcpackets/2019-005575IMP.pdf

https://commissions.sfplanning.org/cpcpackets/2014.0334ENXSHD.pdf

https://commissions.sfplanning.org/cpcpackets/2014.0334ENXSHD.pdf

http://library.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll/California/administrative/chapter31californiaenvironmentalqualitya?f=templates$fn=default.htm$3.0$vid=amlegal:sanfrancisco_ca$anc=JD_31.04
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18. 2019-005500CUA (M. CHRISTENSEN: (415) 575-8742) 
2934 CESAR CHAVEZ STREET – northeast corner of Cesar Chavez and Bryant Streets; Lot 003I 
in Assessor’s Block 4335 (District 9) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization, pursuant 
to Planning Code Sections 202.2, 249.59, 249.60, 303, and 712 to allow a 171 square foot 
Cannabis Retail use in the ground floor of an existing two-story mixed use building within a 
NC-3 (Neighborhood Commercial, Moderate Scale) Zoning District, Mission Alcoholic 
Beverage Special Use District, Calle 24 Special Use District, and 40-X Height and Bulk District. 
This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, 
pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h). 
Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions 
 


19. 2019-014433CUA (M. CHRISTENSEN: (415) 575-8742) 
49 DUBOCE AVENUE – south side of Duboce Street between Valencia and Woodward Streets; 
Lot 039 in Assessor’s Block 3532 (District 9) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization, 
pursuant to Planning Code Sections 210.3 and 303, to allow an Industrial Agriculture use 
(cannabis cultivation) within a PDR-1-G (Production, Distribution and Repair – 1 – General) 
Zoning District and 68-X Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action 
for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code 
Section 31.04(h). 
Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions 


 
G. DISCRETIONARY REVIEW CALENDAR   
 


The Commission Discretionary Review Hearing Procedures provide for presentations by staff; 
followed by the DR requestor team; followed by public comment opposed to the project; followed 
by the project sponsor team; followed by public comment in support of the project.  Please be 
advised that the DR requestor and project sponsor teams include: the DR requestor and sponsor or 
their designee, lawyers, architects, engineers, expediters, and/or other advisors. 


 
20. 2019-012253DRP (D. WASHINGTON: (415) 558-6443) 


463 CASTRO STREET – between Market and 19th Streets; Lot 062 in Assessor’s Block 3582 
District 7) – Request for Discretionary Review of Building Permit Application No. 
2019.05.30.2067 for a change of use from retail to limited-restaurant (DBA Vegan Sandwich 
Bar) within the Castro Street Neighborhood Commercial Zoning District and 40-X Height and 
Bulk District.  This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of 
CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h). 
Preliminary Recommendation: Do Not Take Discretionary Review and Approve 


 
21. 2019-013111DRP (D. WINSLOW: (415) 575-9159) 


240 CHENERY STREET – between Miguel and Fairmount Streets; Lot 049 in Assessor’s Block 
6685 (District 8) – Request for Discretionary Review of Building Permit Application No. 
2019.0513.0493, proposing construction of property line windows to an existing one-family 
dwelling within a RH-2 (Residential, House, Two-Family) Zoning District and 40-X Height and 
Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of 
CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h). 
Preliminary Recommendation:  Do Not Take Discretionary Review and Approve  
 
 
 



https://commissions.sfplanning.org/cpcpackets/2019-005500CUA.pdf

http://library.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll/California/administrative/chapter31californiaenvironmentalqualitya?f=templates$fn=default.htm$3.0$vid=amlegal:sanfrancisco_ca$anc=JD_31.04
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22. 2018-009175DRP (D. WINSLOW: (415) 575-9159) 
3610 WASHINGTON STREET – between Locust and Spruce Streets; Lot 024 in Assessor’s Block 
0987 (District 2) – Request for Discretionary Review of Building Permit Application No. 
2019.0110.0038, proposing construction of a rear horizontal and vertical addition, 
excavation at the basement to add habitable space to an existing 2-story single-family 
dwelling within a RH-1 (Residential, House, One-Family) Zoning District and 40-X Height and 
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



https://commissions.sfplanning.org/cpcpackets/2018-009175DRP.pdf
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Hearing Procedures 
The Planning Commission holds public hearings regularly, on most Thursdays. The full hearing schedule for the calendar year and 
the Commission Rules & Regulations may be found online at: www.sfplanning.org.  
 
Public Comments: Persons attending a hearing may comment on any scheduled item.  
 When speaking before the Commission in City Hall, Room 400, please note the timer indicating how much time remains.  


Speakers will hear two alarms.  The first soft sound indicates the speaker has 30 seconds remaining.  The second louder sound 
indicates that the speaker’s opportunity to address the Commission has ended. 


 
Sound-Producing Devices Prohibited: The ringing of and use of mobile phones and other sound-producing electronic devices are 
prohibited at this meeting. Please be advised that the Chair may order the removal of any person(s) responsible for the ringing or 
use of a mobile phone, pager, or other similar sound-producing electronic devices (67A.1 Sunshine Ordinance: Prohibiting the use 
of cell phones, pagers and similar sound-producing electronic devices at and during public meetings). 
 
For most cases (CU’s, PUD’s, 309’s, etc…) that are considered by the Planning Commission, after being introduced by the 
Commission Secretary, shall be considered by the Commission in the following order: 
 


1. A thorough description of the issue(s) by the Director or a member of the staff. 
2. A presentation of the proposal by the Project Sponsor(s) team (includes sponsor or their designee, lawyers, architects, 


engineers, expediters, and/or other advisors) would be for a period not to exceed 10 minutes, unless a written request 
for extension not to exceed a total presentation time of 15 minutes is received at least 72 hours in advance of the hearing, 
through the Commission Secretary, and granted by the President or Chair. 


3. A presentation of opposition to the proposal by organized opposition for a period not to exceed 10 minutes (or a period 
equal to that provided to the project sponsor team) with a minimum of three (3) speakers.  The intent of the 10 min block 
of time provided to organized opposition is to reduce the number of overall speakers who are part of the organized 
opposition.  The requestor should advise the group that the Commission would expect the organized presentation to 
represent their testimony, if granted.  Organized opposition will be recognized only upon written application at least 72 
hours in advance of the hearing, through the Commission Secretary, the President or Chair.  Such application should 
identify the organization(s) and speakers. 


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
8. In public hearings on Draft Environmental Impact Reports, all speakers will be limited to a period not to exceed three (3) 


minutes. 
9. The President (or Acting Chair) may impose time limits on appearances by members of the public and may otherwise 


exercise his or her discretion on procedures for the conduct of public hearings. 
10. Public comment portion of the hearing shall be closed and deliberation amongst the Commissioners shall be opened by 


the Chair; 
11. A motion to approve; approve with conditions; approve with amendments and/or modifications; disapprove; or continue 


to another hearing date, if seconded, shall be voted on by the Commission. 
 
Every Official Act taken by the Commission must be adopted by a majority vote of all members of the Commission, a minimum of 
four (4) votes.  A failed motion results in the disapproval of the requested action, unless a subsequent motion is adopted. Any 
Procedural Matter, such as a continuance, may be adopted by a majority vote of members present, as long as the members present 
constitute a quorum (four (4) members of the Commission). 
 
For Discretionary Review cases that are considered by the Planning Commission, after being introduced by the Commission 
Secretary, shall be considered by the Commission in the following order: 
 


1. A thorough description of the issue by the Director or a member of the staff. 
2. A presentation by the DR Requestor(s) team (includes Requestor(s) or their designee, lawyers, architects, engineers, 


expediters, and/or other advisors) would be for a period not to exceed five (5) minutes for each requestor. 
3. Testimony by members of the public in support of the DR would be up to three (3) minutes each. 
4. A presentation by the Project Sponsor(s) team (includes Sponsor(s) or their designee, lawyers, architects, engineers, 


expediters, and/or other advisors) would be for a period up to five (5) minutes, but could be extended for a period not 
to exceed 10 minutes if there are multiple DR requestors. 


5. Testimony by members of the public in support of the project would be up to three (3) minutes each. 
6. DR requestor(s) or their designees are given two (2) minutes for rebuttal. 



http://www.sfplanning.org/





San Francisco Planning Commission  Thursday, October 3, 2019 


 


Notice of Hearing & Agenda        Page 11 of 12 
 


7. Project sponsor(s) or their designees are given two (2) minutes for rebuttal. 
8. The President (or Acting Chair) may impose time limits on appearances by members of the public and may otherwise 


exercise his or her discretion on procedures for the conduct of public hearings. 
 
The Commission must Take DR in order to disapprove or modify a building permit application that is before them under 
Discretionary Review.  A failed motion to Take DR results in a Project that is approved as proposed. 
 
Hearing Materials 
Advance Submissions: To allow Commissioners the opportunity to review material in advance of a hearing, materials must be 
received by the Planning Department eight (8) days prior to the scheduled public hearing.  All submission packages must be 
delivered to1650 Mission Street, Suite 400, by 5:00 p.m. and should include fifteen (15) hardcopies and a .pdf copy must be 
provided to the staff planner. Correspondence submitted to the Planning Commission after eight days in advance of a hearing 
must be received by the Commission Secretary no later than the close of business the day before a hearing for it to become a part 
of the public record for any public hearing.  
 
Correspondence submitted to the Planning Commission on the same day, must be submitted at the hearing directly to the 
Planning Commission Secretary. Please provide ten (10) copies for distribution. Correspondence submitted in any other fashion 
on the same day may not become a part of the public record until the following hearing. 
 
Correspondence sent directly to all members of the Commission, must include a copy to the Commission Secretary 
(commissions.secretary@sfgov.org) for it to become a part of the public record. 
 
These submittal rules and deadlines shall be strictly enforced and no exceptions shall be made without a vote of the Commission. 
 
Persons unable to attend a hearing may submit written comments regarding a scheduled item to: Planning Commission, 1650 
Mission Street, Suite 400, San Francisco, CA  94103-2414.  Written comments received by the close of the business day prior to the 
hearing will be brought to the attention of the Planning Commission and made part of the official record.   
 
Appeals 
The following is a summary of appeal rights associated with the various actions that may be taken at a Planning Commission 
hearing. 
 


Case Type Case Suffix Appeal Period* Appeal Body 
Office Allocation OFA (B) 15 calendar days Board of Appeals** 
Conditional Use Authorization and Planned Unit 
Development 


CUA (C) 30 calendar days Board of Supervisors 


Building Permit Application (Discretionary 
Review) 


DRP/DRM (D) 15 calendar days Board of Appeals 


EIR Certification ENV (E) 30 calendar days Board of Supervisors 
Coastal Zone Permit CTZ (P) 15 calendar days Board of Appeals 
Planning Code Amendments by Application PCA (T) 30 calendar days Board of Supervisors 
Variance (Zoning Administrator action) VAR (V) 10 calendar days Board of Appeals 
Large Project Authorization in Eastern 
Neighborhoods  


LPA (X) 15 calendar days Board of Appeals 


Permit Review in C-3 Districts, Downtown 
Residential Districts 


DNX (X) 15-calendar days Board of Appeals 


Zoning Map Change by Application MAP (Z) 30 calendar days Board of Supervisors 
 
* Appeals of Planning Commission decisions on Building Permit Applications (Discretionary Review) must be made within 15 days of the 
date the building permit is issued/denied by the Department of Building Inspection (not from the date of the Planning Commission 
hearing).  Appeals of Zoning Administrator decisions on Variances must be made within 10 days from the issuance of the decision letter. 
 
**An appeal of a Certificate of Appropriateness or Permit to Alter/Demolish may be made to the Board of Supervisors if the project 
requires Board of Supervisors approval or if the project is associated with a Conditional Use Authorization appeal.  An appeal of an Office 
Allocation may be made to the Board of Supervisors if the project requires a Conditional Use Authorization. 
 
For more information regarding the Board of Appeals process, please contact the Board of Appeals at (415) 575-6880.  For more 
information regarding the Board of Supervisors process, please contact the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors at (415) 554-5184 or 
board.of.supervisors@sfgov.org.  



mailto:commissions.secretary@sfgov.org

mailto:board.of.supervisors@sfgov.org
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An appeal of the approval (or denial) of a 100% Affordable Housing Bonus Program application may be made to the Board of 
Supervisors within 30 calendar days after the date of action by the Planning Commission pursuant to the provisions of Sections 
328(g)(5) and 308.1(b). Appeals must be submitted in person at the Board’s office at 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 244. For 
further information about appeals to the Board of Supervisors, including current fees, contact the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 
at (415) 554-5184.  
 
An appeal of the approval (or denial) of a building permit application issued (or denied) pursuant to a 100% Affordable Housing 
Bonus Program application by the Planning Commission or the Board of Supervisors may be made to the Board of Appeals within 
15 calendar days after the building permit is issued (or denied) by the Director of the Department of Building Inspection. Appeals 
must be submitted in person at the Board's office at 1650 Mission Street, 3rd Floor, Room 304. For further information about 
appeals to the Board of Appeals, including current fees, contact the Board of Appeals at (415) 575-6880.  
 
Challenges 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 65009, if you challenge, in court, (1) the adoption or amendment of a general plan, (2) the 
adoption or amendment of a zoning ordinance, (3) the adoption or amendment of any regulation attached to a specific plan, (4) 
the adoption, amendment or modification of a development agreement, or (5) the approval of a variance, conditional-use 
authorization, or any permit, you may be limited to raising only those issues you or someone else raised at the public hearing 
described in this notice, or in written correspondence delivered to the Planning Commission, at, or prior to, the public hearing. 
 
CEQA Appeal Rights under Chapter 31 of the San Francisco Administrative Code 
If the Commission’s action on a project constitutes the Approval Action for that project (as defined in S.F. Administrative Code 
Chapter 31, as amended, Board of Supervisors Ordinance Number 161-13), then the CEQA determination prepared in support of 
that Approval Action is thereafter subject to appeal within the time frame specified in S.F. Administrative Code Section 31.16.  This 
appeal is separate from and in addition to an appeal of an action on a project.  Typically, an appeal must be filed within 30 calendar 
days of the Approval Action for a project that has received an exemption or negative declaration pursuant to CEQA.  For information 
on filing an appeal under Chapter 31, contact the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors at City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, 
Room 244, San Francisco, CA 94102, or call (415) 554-5184.  If the Department’s Environmental Review Officer has deemed a project 
to be exempt from further environmental review, an exemption determination has been prepared and can be obtained on-line at 
http://www.sf-planning.org/index.aspx?page=3447. Under CEQA, in a later court challenge, a litigant may be limited to raising 
only those issues previously raised at a hearing on the project or in written correspondence delivered to the Board of Supervisors, 
Planning Commission, Planning Department or other City board, commission or department at, or prior to, such hearing, or as part 
of the appeal hearing process on the CEQA decision. 
 
Protest of Fee or Exaction 
You may protest any fee or exaction subject to Government Code Section 66000 imposed as a condition of approval in accordance 
with Government Code Section 66020.  The protest must satisfy the requirements of Government Code Section 66020(a) and must 
be filed within 90 days of the date of the first approval or conditional approval of the development referencing the challenged fee 
or exaction.  For purposes of Government Code Section 66020, the date of imposition of the fee shall be the date of the earliest 
discretionary approval by the City of the subject development.    
 
The Planning Commission’s approval or conditional approval of the development subject to the challenged fee or exaction as 
expressed in its Motion, Resolution, or Discretionary Review Action or the Zoning Administrator’s Variance Decision Letter will 
serve as Notice that the 90-day protest period under Government Code Section 66020 has begun. 
 


 



http://www.sf-planning.org/index.aspx?page=3447
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Commission Chambers - Room 400

City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place

San Francisco, CA 94102-4689





Thursday, October 3, 2019

10:00 a.m.

Special Meeting



PLANNING COMMISSION: 	President: 	Myrna Melgar 

	Vice-President: 	Joel Koppel

	Commissioners		Frank Fung, Milicent Johnson, Kathrin Moore, Dennis Richards



HEALTH COMMISSION:	President: 		James Loyce, Jr., M.S. 

	Vice-President: 	Dan Bernal

	Commissioners:	Edward A. Chow, M.D., Cecilia Chung, Laurie Green, M.D.,

			Tessie Guillermo



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

	

PLANNING 

COMMISSION:		President:	Myrna Melgar		Vice-President:	Joel Koppel

Commissioners:		Frank Fung, Milicent Johnson, Kathrin Moore, Dennis Richards



HEALTH 
COMMISSION:		President: 	James Loyce, Jr., M.S. 

		Vice-President: 	Dan Bernal

		Commissioners:	Edward A. Chow, M.D., Cecilia Chung, Laurie Green, M.D.,

			Tessie Guillermo

	

A. SPECIAL CALENDAR



1. 2012.0403W	(E. PURL: (415) 575-9028) 

CALIFORNIA PACIFIC MEDICAL CENTER (CPMC) ANNUAL COMPLIANCE STATEMENT - Joint Informational Hearing of the Planning and Health Commissions to review and comment on CPMC’s Annual Compliance Statement for 2018 and the City’s Report on CPMC’s Compliance Statement, in accordance with Section 8.2 of their Development Agreement with the City and County of San Francisco (Planning Department Case No. 2012.0403W; Ordinance No. 138-13). The 2018 Compliance Statement and the City Report are available for viewing on the Planning Department’s website (http://sf-planning.org/cpmc-annual-compliance-statements).  

Preliminary Recommendation: None – Informational



ADJOURNMENT
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HEALTH COMMISSION: President:   James Loyce, Jr., M.S.  
 Vice-President:  Dan Bernal 
 Commissioners: Edward A. Chow, M.D., Cecilia Chung, Laurie Green, M.D., 
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

http://www.sfgovtv.org/

mailto:commissions.secretary@sfgov.org





 


Know Your Rights Under the Sunshine Ordinance 
Government's duty is to serve the public, reaching its decisions in full view of the public. Commissions, boards, councils and other agencies of the 
City and County exist to conduct the people's business. This ordinance assures that deliberations are conducted before the people and that City 
operations are open to the people's review.  
 
For more information on your rights under the Sunshine Ordinance (Chapter 67 of the San Francisco Administrative Code) or to report a violation of 
the ordinance, contact the Sunshine Ordinance Task Force at City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 409; phone (415) 554-7724; fax (415) 
554-7854; or e-mail at sotf@sfgov.org. Copies of the Sunshine Ordinance can be obtained from the Clerk of the Sunshine Task Force, the San 
Francisco Library and on the City’s website at www.sfbos.org/sunshine. 
  
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
means that personal information including names, phone numbers, addresses and similar information that a member of the public elects to submit 
to the Department and its commissions may appear on the Department’s website or in other public documents that members of the public may 
inspect or copy. 
 
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
Commission hearings are held in Room 400 at City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place in San Francisco. City Hall is open to the public Monday 
through Friday from 8:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. and is accessible to persons using wheelchairs and other assistive mobility devices. Ramps are available at 
the Grove, Van Ness and McAllister entrances. A wheelchair lift is available at the Polk Street entrance.  
 
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
other accommodations, please contact the Commission Secretary at (415) 558-6309, or commissions.secretary@sfgov.org at least 72 hours in 
advance of the hearing to help ensure availability.  
 
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
COMMISSION:  President: Myrna Melgar 


 Vice-President: Joel Koppel 
Commissioners:  Frank Fung, Milicent Johnson, Kathrin Moore, Dennis Richards 


 
HEALTH  
COMMISSION:  President:  James Loyce, Jr., M.S.  
  Vice-President:  Dan Bernal 
  Commissioners: Edward A. Chow, M.D., Cecilia Chung, Laurie Green, M.D., 
   Tessie Guillermo 
  
A. SPECIAL CALENDAR 
 


1. 2012.0403W (E. PURL: (415) 575-9028)  
CALIFORNIA PACIFIC MEDICAL CENTER (CPMC) ANNUAL COMPLIANCE STATEMENT - Joint 
Informational Hearing of the Planning and Health Commissions to review and comment on 
CPMC’s Annual Compliance Statement for 2018 and the City’s Report on CPMC’s 
Compliance Statement, in accordance with Section 8.2 of their Development Agreement 
with the City and County of San Francisco (Planning Department Case No. 2012.0403W; 
Ordinance No. 138-13). The 2018 Compliance Statement and the City Report are available 
for viewing on the Planning Department’s website (http://sf-planning.org/cpmc-annual-
compliance-statements).   
Preliminary Recommendation: None – Informational 


 
ADJOURNMENT 



https://commissions.sfplanning.org/cpcpackets/2012.0403W_100319.pdf



		Personal information that is provided in communications to the Planning Department is subject to disclosure under the California Public Records Act and the San Francisco Sunshine Ordinance. Personal information provided will not be redacted.

		Members of the public are not required to provide personal identifying information when they communicate with the Planning Department and its commissions. All written or oral communications that members of the public submit to the Department regarding...

		San Francisco Lobbyist Ordinance

		Individuals and entities that influence or attempt to influence local legislative or administrative action may be required by the San Francisco Lobbyist Ordinance [SF Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code Section 21.00-2.160] to register and report l...





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
Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES THE ACQUISITION AND PRESERVATION OF

FIRST SMALL SITES BUILDING IN THE SUNSET
Date: Friday, September 27, 2019 1:29:37 PM
Attachments: 09.27.19 Taraval Small Sites.pdf

 
 
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
Sent: Friday, September 27, 2019 1:09 PM
To: Press Office, Mayor (MYR) <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES THE ACQUISITION AND
PRESERVATION OF FIRST SMALL SITES BUILDING IN THE SUNSET
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Friday, September 27, 2019
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131
 

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES THE ACQUISITION

AND PRESERVATION OF FIRST SMALL SITES BUILDING IN
THE SUNSET

With Small Sites Program acquisition, six multi-generational families will be able to remain in
their homes in the Outer Sunset neighborhood

 
San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed, Supervisor Gordon Mar, and community
leaders today celebrated the acquisition and preservation of 3544 Taraval Street, a building
with six two-bedroom homes in the Outer Sunset neighborhood. It is the first Small Sites
Program (SSP) acquisition in District 4, and one of only three SSP acquisitions on the
Westside of San Francisco.
 
“As we work to build more affordable housing, we need to also preserve the affordable
housing we already have,” said Mayor Breed. “Thanks to our Small Sites Program and the
acquisition of 3544 Taraval, six long-time Outer Sunset families will be able to stay in their
neighborhood—without worrying about rising rent.”
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mailto:Frank.Fung@sfgov.org
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
leaders today celebrated the acquisition and preservation of 3544 Taraval Street, a building with 
six two-bedroom homes in the Outer Sunset neighborhood. It is the first Small Sites Program 
(SSP) acquisition in District 4, and one of only three SSP acquisitions on the Westside of 
San Francisco.  
 
“As we work to build more affordable housing, we need to also preserve the affordable housing 
we already have,” said Mayor Breed. “Thanks to our Small Sites Program and the acquisition of 
3544 Taraval, six long-time Outer Sunset families will be able to stay in their neighborhood—
without worrying about rising rent.” 
 
The apartments at 3544 Taraval St. currently serve low- to moderate-income households with an 
average income of 62% of Area Median Income. Supervisor Mar identified the site and engaged 
Mission Economic Development Agency (MEDA), which moved expeditiously to acquire the 
property this month and preserve it as permanently affordable housing. The acquisition was 
financed with a $2.48 million loan provided by the San Francisco Housing Accelerator Fund 
(SFHAF). The Mayor’s Office of Housing and Community Development (MOHCD) expects to 
provide MEDA with permanent financing for the building in September 2020 following the 
completion of critical repairs and upgrades.   
 
“The Sunset’s very first Small Sites property at 3544 Taraval Street is a significant turning point 
for a district with the lowest investment of new affordable housing built and acquired,” said 
Supervisor Gordon Mar. “As we work on new construction projects like the Francis Scott Key 
educator housing, we also need to preserve and protect existing affordable housing and longtime 
residents—our senior, immigrant, and working class neighbors—so they keep the Sunset a place 
where complete communities can thrive.” 
  
The rehabilitation plan includes approximately $400,000 in crucial repairs to the building, 
including seismic strengthening, installation of a building-wide fire alarm system, exterior 
renovations, and in-unit upgrades, including water heater replacements, updating electrical 
systems and refurbishing bathrooms and kitchens. 
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The Small Sites Program was established in 2014 and is MOHCD’s main program for acquiring 
and preserving at-risk rental housing with three to 25 units. The program was created to establish 
long-term affordable housing in smaller properties throughout San Francisco that are particularly 
vulnerable to market pressure that results in property sales, increased evictions and rising tenant 
rents. In the face of the increasing pressure, SSP helps San Franciscans avoid displacement or 
eviction by providing loans to nonprofit organizations to successfully remove these sites from 
the market and restrict them as permanently affordable housing. 
 
“Preventing displacement and preserving affordability is critical to stabilizing this community.  
We could not be more thrilled to acquire our first Small Sites property here in District 4,” said 
Jonah Lee, Director of Portfolio Management and Preservation for MOHCD. “Thank you to the 
SFHAF and MEDA for your partnership, which is helping scale our acquisition programs to 
reach other communities in need. We look forward to continuing to preserve affordable homes 
throughout San Francisco.” 
 
“Preservation is an effective tool to stem the tide of displacement, which relies on the availability 
of quick, flexible capital,” said Rebecca Foster, CEO of the San Francisco Housing Accelerator 
Fund. “We were thrilled to provide the bridge funding necessary to make the first preservation 
deal in District 4 a reality. Our work is made possible by our generous funders, and we are 
grateful to the Bettye Poetz Ferguson Foundation for providing critical funding for 
3544 Taraval.”  
 
The San Francisco Housing Accelerator Fund innovates smart approaches that put public, 
private, and philanthropic money to work to expand the supply of affordable housing in 
San Francisco. SFHAF was incubated in the Mayor’s Office to complement the public sector’s 
funding mechanisms. The fund was kick-started with investments from the City, Citi Community 
Development, Dignity Health, and The San Francisco Foundation. In less than three years of 
operation, SFHAF has raised and deployed over $100 million to fund the preservation and 
construction of 433 permanently affordable units in San Francisco.  
 
“This is MEDA’s 25th Small Sites Program acquisition overall—and our first in San Francisco 
District 4,” says MEDA Associate Director of Community Real Estate Johnny Oliver. “MEDA 
was honored to be part of this collaborative effort of the resilient residents of 3544 Taraval St., 
Supervisor Mar, MOHCD and the San Francisco Housing Accelerator Fund to preserve 
affordable housing for these tenants who would otherwise be at risk of displacement.” 
 
“As retired seniors with limited income here for 28 years, we couldn’t sleep since this building 
went up for sale, worried a developer would evict us older tenants,” said Ming Yong Lee 
李民勇. “It is very important San Francisco supports the elderly and people on fixed incomes. 
We are thankful for Supervisor Mar and Mayor Breed for choosing our building so we can 
continuing living in the Sunset, where it is safe, where we can shop at Chinese businesses, and 
where there are places to walk and senior services nearby.” 
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Over $83 million of City funds have been committed for acquisition and preservation programs. 
Through the City’s acquisition programs, 34 buildings consisting of 278 units have been 
acquired, and another 12 buildings with 110 total units are in the pipeline. The Small Sites 
Program has stabilized over 500 San Francisco residents to date. 
 


### 







The apartments at 3544 Taraval St. currently serve low- to moderate-income households with
an average income of 62% of Area Median Income. Supervisor Mar identified the site and
engaged Mission Economic Development Agency (MEDA), which moved expeditiously to
acquire the property this month and preserve it as permanently affordable housing. The
acquisition was financed with a $2.48 million loan provided by the San Francisco Housing
Accelerator Fund (SFHAF). The Mayor’s Office of Housing and Community Development
(MOHCD) expects to provide MEDA with permanent financing for the building in September
2020 following the completion of critical repairs and upgrades. 
 
“The Sunset’s very first Small Sites property at 3544 Taraval Street is a significant turning
point for a district with the lowest investment of new affordable housing built and acquired,”
said Supervisor Gordon Mar. “As we work on new construction projects like the Francis Scott
Key educator housing, we also need to preserve and protect existing affordable housing and
longtime residents—our senior, immigrant, and working class neighbors—so they keep the
Sunset a place where complete communities can thrive.”
 
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
 
The Small Sites Program was established in 2014 and is MOHCD’s main program for
acquiring and preserving at-risk rental housing with three to 25 units. The program was
created to establish long-term affordable housing in smaller properties throughout San
Francisco that are particularly vulnerable to market pressure that results in property sales,
increased evictions and rising tenant rents. In the face of the increasing pressure, SSP helps
San Franciscans avoid displacement or eviction by providing loans to nonprofit organizations
to successfully remove these sites from the market and restrict them as permanently affordable
housing.
 
“Preventing displacement and preserving affordability is critical to stabilizing this
community.  We could not be more thrilled to acquire our first Small Sites property here in
District 4,” said Jonah Lee, Director of Portfolio Management and Preservation for MOHCD.
“Thank you to the SFHAF and MEDA for your partnership, which is helping scale our
acquisition programs to reach other communities in need. We look forward to continuing to
preserve affordable homes throughout San Francisco.”
 
“Preservation is an effective tool to stem the tide of displacement, which relies on the
availability of quick, flexible capital,” said Rebecca Foster, CEO of the San Francisco
Housing Accelerator Fund. “We were thrilled to provide the bridge funding necessary to make
the first preservation deal in District 4 a reality. Our work is made possible by our generous
funders, and we are grateful to the Bettye Poetz Ferguson Foundation for providing critical
funding for 3544 Taraval.”
 
The San Francisco Housing Accelerator Fund innovates smart approaches that put public,
private, and philanthropic money to work to expand the supply of affordable housing in
San Francisco. SFHAF was incubated in the Mayor’s Office to complement the public sector’s
funding mechanisms. The fund was kick-started with investments from the City, Citi
Community Development, Dignity Health, and The San Francisco Foundation. In less than
three years of operation, SFHAF has raised and deployed over $100 million to fund the



preservation and construction of 433 permanently affordable units in San Francisco.
 
“This is MEDA’s 25th Small Sites Program acquisition overall—and our first in San Francisco
District 4,” says MEDA Associate Director of Community Real Estate Johnny Oliver.
“MEDA was honored to be part of this collaborative effort of the resilient residents of 3544
Taraval St., Supervisor Mar, MOHCD and the San Francisco Housing Accelerator Fund to
preserve affordable housing for these tenants who would otherwise be at risk of
displacement.”
 
“As retired seniors with limited income here for 28 years, we couldn’t sleep since this building
went up for sale, worried a developer would evict us older tenants,” said Ming Yong Lee 李民
勇. “It is very important San Francisco supports the elderly and people on fixed incomes. We
are thankful for Supervisor Mar and Mayor Breed for choosing our building so we can
continuing living in the Sunset, where it is safe, where we can shop at Chinese businesses, and
where there are places to walk and senior services nearby.”
 
Over $83 million of City funds have been committed for acquisition and preservation
programs. Through the City’s acquisition programs, 34 buildings consisting of 278 units have
been acquired, and another 12 buildings with 110 total units are in the pipeline. The Small
Sites Program has stabilized over 500 San Francisco residents to date.
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This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

From: CPC-Commissions Secretary
To: Flores, Veronica (CPC)
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: Proposed development at 65 Ocean Avenue
Date: Friday, September 27, 2019 12:00:19 PM

 
 
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
 

From: sarah wilson <sarahewilson@gmail.com> 
Sent: Friday, September 27, 2019 11:52 AM
To: Melgar, Myrna (CPC) <myrna.melgar@sfgov.org>; Koppel, Joel (CPC) <joel.koppel@sfgov.org>;
Fung, Frank (CPC) <frank.fung@sfgov.org>; Johnson, Milicent (CPC) <milicent.johnson@sfgov.org>;
Moore, Kathrin (CPC) <kathrin.moore@sfgov.org>; Richards, Dennis (CPC)
<dennis.richards@sfgov.org>
Cc: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>
Subject: Proposed development at 65 Ocean Avenue
 

 

Dear Commissioners:

I am writing regarding the housing development that Presidio Bay Ventures is proposing to build at
65 Ocean Avenue.

I live on London Street a few blocks from the proposed development.  I am also the parent of a child
who attended The Crayon Box Preschool.  Our family’s preschool was located at 65 Ocean Avenue
until a few years ago, when the developer purchased the property and the school had to move to a
different neighborhood.

Recently I learned that the developer’s plans include a space for the preschool to return to the 65
Ocean site.  While it would be wonderful for Crayon Box to be able to return to its former site, I am
concerned about how this proposed housing project will affect the surrounding neighborhood.

Development of high-end luxury rental housing in the Excelsior and nearby neighborhoods is already
increasing pressure on the people who live here.  I understand that 75% of the units in the proposed
65 Ocean development would be rented out at market rate, which would make them totally

mailto:commissions.secretary@sfgov.org
mailto:Veronica.Flores@sfgov.org
mailto:Josephine.Feliciano@sfgov.org
mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
http://www.sfplanning.org/


inaccessible to the many poor and working-class people who already live in the district.  A project
that adds as many market-rate units as this project would exacerbate the upward pressure on rents
across the neighborhood.  I also understand that the majority of the housing created under the
proposed project would be studios and one-bedroom apartments.  But the Excelsior is the
neighborhood with the highest proportion of families and intergenerational households in the City –
households that won’t fit into a studio apartment.

As much as I want Crayon Box to move into a new space at 65 Ocean, I am concerned that allowing
the Presidio Bay Ventures development to go forward as proposed will hurt my neighborhood and
bring even further displacement of my neighbors.  I am asking you to make sure that any project
that the Planning Commission approves at 65 Ocean Avenue is a 100% affordable housing
development, where Excelsior residents can afford the rent – and that it include a ground floor
space for the Crayon Box Preschool to return to and stay long-term.  I know this can be done, just
as a 100% affordable housing project was approved and is moving forward at the former Valente
Marini Perata funeral home site a few blocks away on Mission Street.   

The 65 Ocean Avenue site can serve families with young children and, at the same time, provide
housing for working-class families in the Excelsior and help keep them from being pushed out of the
neighborhood and the City.  It is up to you  to make sure that any development at the site does all of
these things.  Thanks for your consideration.

Sincerely,
 
Sarah Wilson
378 London Street
San Francisco 94112



 
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
Cc: Asbagh, Claudine (CPC); Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: October 24 Hearing-Letter of Support for CU at 220 Post
Date: Friday, September 27, 2019 10:28:13 AM

 
 
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
 

From: Karin Flood <Karin@unionsquarebid.com> 
Sent: Thursday, September 26, 2019 12:05 PM
To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>
Subject: October 24 Hearing-Letter of Support for CU at 220 Post
 

 

Dear Planning Commission Secretary, 
 
I am writing to submit the Union Square Business Improvement District's formal support of the
conditional use application for 220 Post to convert retail to office. This item will be heard at
the October 24 meeting. Please include the attached letter of support in the meeting
materials. 
 
Thank you,
Karin Flood
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
Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED CELEBRATES GROUNDBREAKING FOR 167 NEW

AFFORDABLE HOMES IN SUNNYDALE NEIGHBORHOOD
Date: Wednesday, September 25, 2019 12:20:58 PM
Attachments: 09.25.2019 Sunnydale Block 6 Groundbreaking.pdf

 
 
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
Sent: Wednesday, September 25, 2019 12:18 PM
To: Press Office, Mayor (MYR) <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED CELEBRATES GROUNDBREAKING FOR 167
NEW AFFORDABLE HOMES IN SUNNYDALE NEIGHBORHOOD
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Wednesday, September 25, 2019
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131
 

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED CELEBRATES

GROUNDBREAKING FOR 167 NEW AFFORDABLE HOMES
IN SUNNYDALE NEIGHBORHOOD

Sunnydale HOPE SF begins construction on second affordable family building at historic
mixed‑income development

 
San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed today celebrated the groundbreaking of
Sunnydale Block 6, a six-story building that will provide 167 permanently affordable homes
for low-income families, including 125 apartments set aside for Sunnydale residents living in
public housing. She was joined by Senator Scott Wiener, Assemblymember David Chiu,
California Board of Equalization Chair Malia Cohen, and Supervisor Shamann Walton.
 
“Every San Franciscan deserves to live in quality housing, and we are committed to making
that a reality through projects like this one at Sunnydale Block 6,” said Mayor Breed. “This
new development will provide safe and modernized homes for 167 families in the Sunnydale
neighborhood. As we work to build more housing in San Francisco, we must make sure that
all our neighborhoods benefit from new construction and investment so that no one gets left
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


GROUNDBREAKING FOR 167 NEW AFFORDABLE HOMES IN 
SUNNYDALE NEIGHBORHOOD 


Sunnydale HOPE SF begins construction on second affordable family building at historic 
mixed-income development 


 
San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed today celebrated the groundbreaking of 
Sunnydale Block 6, a six-story building that will provide 167 permanently affordable homes for 
low-income families, including 125 apartments set aside for Sunnydale residents living in public 
housing. She was joined by Senator Scott Wiener, Assemblymember David Chiu, California 
Board of Equalization Chair Malia Cohen, and Supervisor Shamann Walton. 
 
“Every San Franciscan deserves to live in quality housing, and we are committed to making that 
a reality through projects like this one at Sunnydale Block 6,” said Mayor Breed. “This new 
development will provide safe and modernized homes for 167 families in the Sunnydale 
neighborhood. As we work to build more housing in San Francisco, we must make sure that all 
our neighborhoods benefit from new construction and investment so that no one gets left 
behind.” 
 
Once completed, the re-envisioned Sunnydale neighborhood will be affordable for up to 1,700 
low- and middle-income families. The neighborhood is being developed according to the non-
displacement principles of the Mayor’s HOPE SF initiative. The master developers are Related 
California and Mercy Housing California, which in partnership with the Mayor’s Office of 
Housing and Community Development and the San Francisco Housing Authority, were selected 
to partner with residents to transform Sunnydale into an inclusive, equitable, and mixed-income 
community.  
 
“San Francisco has a severe shortage of affordable housing for our low income residents, and we 
must do more to ensure people have homes they can afford,” said Senator Scott Wiener (D-
San Francisco). “This is a great example of what we can do when we prioritize housing for 
San Franciscans.” 
 
“Today’s groundbreaking is a big step forward for our southeast neighborhoods,” said 
Assemblymember David Chiu (D-San Francisco). “This historic project will help ensure families 
are able to remain in the neighborhood they have called home for decades.” 
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San Francisco’s HOPE SF initiative is the nation’s first large-scale community development 
effort aimed at disrupting intergenerational poverty, reducing social isolation, and creating 
vibrant communities without mass displacement. Backed by significant local funding, including 
the 2015 $310 million affordable housing bond, HOPE SF places residents first, ensuring that the 
households currently living in the community have the first chance to move into new housing as 
development progresses. Two of the four HOPE SF sites, Alice Griffith and Hunters View, have 
largely completed their public housing transformation. The remaining two sites, Potrero Hill and 
Sunnydale, are at the beginning of the multi-year, multi-phase transformation process.  
 
“With this groundbreaking we take another step forward towards honoring the promises we 
made to residents of the Southeast decades ago,” said Malia Cohen, Chair of the California 
Board of Equalization and former San Francisco Supervisor. “During my eight years serving the 
people of District 10, I proudly fought for the rebuilding of Sunnydale and made it a priority of 
mine to revitalize this public housing site.”  
 
“The Sunnydale community is the largest public housing site in San Francisco and the most 
isolated for generations,” said Supervisor Shamann Walton. “We are excited to see the 167 new 
units and what’s to come. My office will continue to push for more affordable homes across the 
City and keep developments responsible.” 
 
“No place in the country has made a commitment to community like HOPE SF, so we are 
thrilled to take this major step forward with the rebuilding of Sunnydale,” said Doug Shoemaker, 
President of Mercy Housing California.  
 
“The revitalization of the Sunnydale community is about creating a true neighborhood that 
improves the lives of the current residents while adding new housing for a mix of incomes—two 
major priorities in San Francisco that we have focused on throughout our 30-year history,” said 
Bill Witte, Chairman and CEO of Related California.  
 
This affordable housing development at Sunnydale Block 6 is made possible by financing from 
the San Francisco Mayor’s Office of Housing and Community Development, San Francisco 
Housing Authority and Wells Fargo. Sunnydale Block 6 has an expected move-in date of fall 
2022. 
 


### 







behind.”
 
Once completed, the re-envisioned Sunnydale neighborhood will be affordable for up to 1,700
low- and middle-income families. The neighborhood is being developed according to the non-
displacement principles of the Mayor’s HOPE SF initiative. The master developers are
Related California and Mercy Housing California, which in partnership with the Mayor’s
Office of Housing and Community Development and the San Francisco Housing Authority,
were selected to partner with residents to transform Sunnydale into an inclusive, equitable, and
mixed-income community.
 
“San Francisco has a severe shortage of affordable housing for our low income residents, and
we must do more to ensure people have homes they can afford,” said Senator Scott Wiener
(D-San Francisco). “This is a great example of what we can do when we prioritize housing for
San Franciscans.”
 
“Today’s groundbreaking is a big step forward for our southeast neighborhoods,” said
Assemblymember David Chiu (D-San Francisco). “This historic project will help ensure
families are able to remain in the neighborhood they have called home for decades.”
 
San Francisco’s HOPE SF initiative is the nation’s first large-scale community development
effort aimed at disrupting intergenerational poverty, reducing social isolation, and creating
vibrant communities without mass displacement. Backed by significant local funding,
including the 2015 $310 million affordable housing bond, HOPE SF places residents first,
ensuring that the households currently living in the community have the first chance to move
into new housing as development progresses. Two of the four HOPE SF sites, Alice Griffith
and Hunters View, have largely completed their public housing transformation. The remaining
two sites, Potrero Hill and Sunnydale, are at the beginning of the multi-year, multi-phase
transformation process.
 
“With this groundbreaking we take another step forward towards honoring the promises we
made to residents of the Southeast decades ago,” said Malia Cohen, Chair of the California
Board of Equalization and former San Francisco Supervisor. “During my eight years serving
the people of District 10, I proudly fought for the rebuilding of Sunnydale and made it a
priority of mine to revitalize this public housing site.”
 
“The Sunnydale community is the largest public housing site in San Francisco and the most
isolated for generations,” said Supervisor Shamann Walton. “We are excited to see the 167
new units and what’s to come. My office will continue to push for more affordable homes
across the City and keep developments responsible.”
 
“No place in the country has made a commitment to community like HOPE SF, so we are
thrilled to take this major step forward with the rebuilding of Sunnydale,” said Doug
Shoemaker, President of Mercy Housing California.
 
“The revitalization of the Sunnydale community is about creating a true neighborhood that
improves the lives of the current residents while adding new housing for a mix of incomes—
two major priorities in San Francisco that we have focused on throughout our 30-year
history,” said Bill Witte, Chairman and CEO of Related California.
 
This affordable housing development at Sunnydale Block 6 is made possible by financing



from the San Francisco Mayor’s Office of Housing and Community Development, San
Francisco Housing Authority and Wells Fargo. Sunnydale Block 6 has an expected move-in
date of fall 2022.
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From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
To: Melgar, Myrna (CPC)
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: Planning Director- Confidential
Date: Wednesday, September 25, 2019 12:01:05 PM
Attachments: DRAFT 0964 Planning Director Job Announcement final 09242019.doc
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Commissioners,
Please forward your responses directly to Commission President Melgar.
 
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
 

From: Melgar, Myrna (CPC) <myrna.melgar@sfgov.org> 
Sent: Tuesday, September 24, 2019 5:27 PM
To: Ionin, Jonas (CPC) <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>
Subject: Fw: Planning Director- Confidential
 
Hi Jonas,
 
Can you please forward this to my fellow commissioners?  This is only the first draft but we
want to be ready to post by next week.  Please send me your comments individually and use
the track changes function with your comments.  Thanks!

 
 
President Melgar,
In case it’s easier to review, here is a draft without track-changes.
 
Regards,
Shawn
_______________________________________
Shawn Sherburne | HR Consulting Services Manager
Department of Human Resources | 415.557.4811
 

From: Sherburne, Shawn 
Sent: Tuesday, September 24, 2019 11:43 AM
To: Melgar, Myrna (CPC); Callahan, Micki (HRD)
Cc: Buick, Jeanne (HRD); Biasbas, Anna (HRD); Ho, Donna (HRD); Greene, Paul (HRD); Ma, Julia (HRD);
Tugbenyoh, Mawuli (HRD)
Subject: RE: Planning Director- Confidential
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0964 Planning Director

The San Francisco Planning Department is seeking a new Planning Director. 

Compensation and Benefits:  

The City and County of San Francisco (‘City’) offers a competitive salary and benefits program. The annual salary range for this position is $201,916 - $257,686. The salary is dependent upon the qualifications and experience of the selected candidate. Appointments above this range may be considered based on documented and substantiated recruitment and retention issues or exceptional skills. A special approval process is necessary for appointment above the normal salary range. 


The City offers flexible benefit plans with pre-tax elections that include: medical and dental insurance; San Francisco Employee Retirement System (mySFERS.org); deferred compensation plan; long-term disability plan; life insurance; paid management training program; 11 paid holidays per year; 5 floating holidays; 10 to 20 vacation days per year depending on years of service; and 5 days of paid executive leave per year. Please follow this link to review a summary of benefits available for this position:  https://sfdhr.org/MEA-Miscellaneous-Benefit-Summary

Equal Opportunity:


The City and County of San Francisco is an Equal Opportunity/ADA Employer and encourages women, minorities, and persons with disabilities to apply. Applicants will be considered regardless of race, color, creed, national origin, ancestry, sex, marital status, disability, religious or political affiliation, age, sexual orientation, medical condition or pregnancy, or any other legally protected characteristics.


The Position:


San Francisco Planning Department’s mission is to shape the future of San Francisco and the region by: 

· Generating an extraordinary vision for the General Plan and in neighborhood plans; 

· Fostering exemplary design through planning controls; 

· Improving our surroundings through environmental analysis; 

· Preserving our unique heritage; 

· Guiding policy changes to encourage a broad range of housing and a diverse job base; 

· Expediting housing production; and


· Promoting racial equity and accessibility.


San Francisco Planning Department plays a central role in guiding the growth and development of our City and Region. The Planning Director must be a progressive leader with a strong vision for a thriving, sustainable city. The Planning Director will work to ensure San Francisco remains an inclusive community with economic sustainability, diversity, and high quality of life.  Partnering with other City agencies and the community, the department will strive to help balance the needs of residents, businesses, and civic leaders to protect the environment and historical resources, create inspiring and livable urban spaces, cultivate neighborhood resilience, and enforce good land use practices.

Job Description:

Reporting directly to the City Planning Commission, the Planning Director is responsible for overseeing city planning, development entitlements, housing, land use, historic preservations, transportation, and environmental reviews. The Director holds responsibility to the citizens and communities affected by the City’s changing landscape and development plans.  The Director will lead interagency efforts to support various programs like Southeast Framework and HOPE SF to develop and revitalize undeserved communities and to ensure accessibility to all citizens. The Planning Director plays a key role in carrying out the Mayor’s directives for acceleration of housing production, permit approval process improvement, and racial equity. The Director will be an example and champion of these efforts and will provide guidance to the regional Bay Area and beyond.

The Ideal Candidate:


· Ability to foster and maintain relationships at all levels and with key constituencies using excellent oral and written communication skills to generate consensus

· Ability to develop and communicate a shared vision of future needs

· Politically astute with a proven track record of collaboratively and harmoniously working with other City departments, elected officials, local, regional, and state governments, commissions/boards, outside agencies, residents, small businesses, and other key stakeholders in achieving planning goals and objectives

· Demonstrated ability in effectively leading and managing organizational development and cultural change; leading and balancing bold visioning with strategic planning and tactical implementation.

· Strong background and effective experience in management of labor relations; highly skilled and comfortable working in a strong unionized environment, with a successful track record in negotiating, communicating and working with union leadership

· Highly effective communicator with a high degree of emotional intelligence and maturity who demonstrates cultural competence, active listening, and responsiveness to the community, residents, planning staff

· Demonstrated track record of embracing diversity and advancing racial equity and inclusion


· Visibility and presence as an approachable and charismatic leader in the Planning Department and community

· Humility with and ability to leverage staff’s knowledge and technical expertise; committed to staff development and empowers staff with authority and resources to carry out their responsibilities


· Knowledgeable of legislative processes and social issues as it relates to planning and land use

· Visionary and strategic thinker who can identify and provide guidance on interrelated issues of transportation, climate change, architecture preservation, and neighborhood and community needs

· Strong advocate for affordable housing within the economy of San Francisco

· Understands and ability to address planning as it relates to the climate crisis

· Has a deep love for San Francisco, and values the City as a community 

Essential Duties:


1. Coordinates and directs the activities of the Planning Department; supervises the development and implementation of all sections of the City’s General Plan and cooperates with other affected departments or agencies in such development and implementation; formulates work program, assigns, schedules, and reviews the program of work; prepares and administers departmental budget and directs the maintenance of necessary records and reports.


2. Directs the development of a long-range and comprehensive city planning program which includes research, analysis, design, writing, and editing of reports culminating in a total city plan; acts as technical advisor to the City Planning Commission, appears before the Board of Supervisors, the Mayor, City Planning Commission, other City departments, public agencies and civic organizations to discuss long term planning and policy issues related to transportation, housing and other planning matters.

3. Reviews and makes recommendations on all planning matters heard by the City Planning Commission, including but not limited to: sustainability, transportation, long term planning, historic preservation, and cultural/architectural preservation.


4. Recommends the designation of redevelopment areas, rehabilitation areas, and conservation areas.


5. Reviews the capital improvement projects of all City departments as to their master plan conformity and recommends a program of capital improvements; reviews and reports as to master plan conformity to all legislative referrals regarding any land sale, land acquisition, changes in use of any public way transportation route, ground, open space, buildings or structures.


6. Reviews and makes recommendations on plans for public housing projects, affordable housing, community stabilization, and private subdivisions.


7. Directs the preparation of agenda for regular and special City Planning Commission meetings and reports; explains, advises and recommends action on all calendar and policy matters before the commission.


8. Represents the Department and City Planning Commission on interdepartmental committees as required by ordinance.


Minimum Qualifications:

1. Possession of a Master’s degree in city, regional, or urban planning, or a closely related field such as architecture, landscape architecture, geography, urban studies, public administration, physical sciences, historic preservation, or environmental studies; and 


2. Twelve (12) years of progressively responsible professional city or regional planning experience, including six (6) years of responsible supervisory and administrative experience.  


Application and Selection Process:

This recruitment will be conducted on a confidential basis throughout the various stages of the process. We will not contact references until mutual interest has been established. This position is “open” until a final selection has been made. Candidates must apply by [Date]. Electronic submittals to [email] are strongly preferred and should include the following:


· Cover letter with your reasons for applying; and


· Comprehensive resume


After we receive these application materials, we will invite only the most highly qualified candidates to interview
. We plan to conduct interviews in October and will forward the names of the top candidates to Mayor Breed in November.  We expect to conduct detailed background checks and to make an offer by the end of November. This timeframe is preliminary and is subject to change.  Please direct your confidential inquiries and questions regarding this career opportunity to the HR Contact Name at xxxxxx@sfgov.org.

�Removed language regarding supplemental questionnaire as this was not included in the timeline








‘Shawn Sherburne, MS, PHR
HR Consulting Services Manager

Department of Human Resources
‘One South van Ness ave. 4° Floor
San Frandseo, Ca 94103
Phone: (a15) 3574811
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Good morning President Melgar,
Please find attached the updated job announcement. We incorporated your changes and comments.
They show in track-changes so that you can see the updates. Additionally, we updated the salary and
benefits section to better highlight the City’s competitive wages and benefits. We also added an
Equal Opportunity Employer section.
 
Please review and let me know if you or your fellow Commissioners have additional edits or
questions. In the interim, I’ve sent the draft to our Workforce Development team to begin creating
the brochure.
 
Thanks,
Shawn
_______________________________________
Shawn Sherburne | HR Consulting Services Manager
Department of Human Resources | 415.557.4811
 

From: Melgar, Myrna (CPC) 
Sent: Monday, September 23, 2019 8:17 PM
To: Sherburne, Shawn; Callahan, Micki (HRD)
Cc: Buick, Jeanne (HRD); Biasbas, Anna (HRD); Ho, Donna (HRD); Greene, Paul (HRD); Ma, Julia (HRD);
Tugbenyoh, Mawuli (HRD)
Subject: Re: Planning Director- Confidential
 
Thanks Shawn!

From: Sherburne, Shawn <shawn.sherburne@sfgov.org>
Sent: Monday, September 23, 2019 9:29 AM
To: Callahan, Micki (HRD) <micki.callahan@sfgov.org>; Melgar, Myrna (CPC)
<myrna.melgar@sfgov.org>
Cc: Buick, Jeanne (HRD) <jeanne.buick@sfgov.org>; Biasbas, Anna (HRD) <anna.biasbas@sfgov.org>;
Ho, Donna (HRD) <donna.ho@sfgov.org>; Greene, Paul (HRD) <paul.greene@sfgov.org>; Ma, Julia
(HRD) <julia.f.ma@sfgov.org>; Tugbenyoh, Mawuli (HRD) <mawuli.tugbenyoh@sfgov.org>
Subject: RE: Planning Director- Confidential
 
Good morning Micki and President Melgar,
We received the recruitment timeline in a separate email and look forward to working with you and
your fellow Commissioners. We are currently updating the draft job announcement to incorporate
your comments/edits. We expect to have the updated draft back to you this afternoon or tomorrow
morning for the your and Commission’s review and any further edits.
 
Once we receive those edits, my colleagues on the DHR Workforce Development team will create
the online brochure. We’ll send the brochure to you and the Mayor for final review before posting.
 
In the interim, please do not hesitate to contact me if you have any questions or need assistance.

 
Regards,

mailto:shawn.sherburne@sfgov.org
mailto:micki.callahan@sfgov.org
mailto:myrna.melgar@sfgov.org
mailto:jeanne.buick@sfgov.org
mailto:anna.biasbas@sfgov.org
mailto:donna.ho@sfgov.org
mailto:paul.greene@sfgov.org
mailto:julia.f.ma@sfgov.org
mailto:mawuli.tugbenyoh@sfgov.org


Shawn
 

Confidentiality Notice: This email message, including any attachments, is for the sole use of the intended recipient(s) and may contain confidential and/or privileged
information. Any review, use, disclosure or distribution by persons or entities other than the intended recipient(s) is prohibited. If you are not the intended recipient,
please notify the sender by reply and destroy all copies (electronic or otherwise) of the original message.

 

From: Callahan, Micki (HRD) 
Sent: Friday, September 20, 2019 3:29 PM
To: Biasbas, Anna (anna.biasbas@sfgov.org) <anna.biasbas@sfgov.org>; Sherburne, Shawn
<shawn.sherburne@sfgov.org>
Cc: Melgar, Myrna (CPC) <Myrna.Melgar@sfgov.org>
Subject: Planning Director- Confidential
 
I just spoke with Commission President Melgar, and we agreed to the following process: 
 

1.       We will adopt her previous comments/edits on the draft job description and send it back to
her (but without the requirement to be eligible for a planning certificate);

2.       Pres. Melgar will make further edits based on input from the public hearing, and return it to
us by next week;

3.       While awaiting the final edits, we will proceed with formatting as an online brochure;
4.       We will send the final to her and to MYR for final approval;
5.       Posting period of three weeks by DHR, with circulation to industry publications and

Commission to spread the word;
6.       DHR will enroll Planning Commission in “Fairness in Hiring” online learning and will provide

link to Commission Secretary so they can take the training;
7.       DHR will determine who meets minimum qualifications, and sort into proposed “good,

better, best” categories;
8.       Commission will meet as a whole in closed session, staffed by DHR, to decide whom to

interview;
9.       DHR will prepare draft questions for Commission to use, as well as instructions and scoring

materials; and
10.   At next closed session, Commission will interview selected candidates (recommend DHR as

interview location), staffed by DHR exam manager, and will choose whom to send to Mayor.
 
Pres. Melgar will be sending us the proposed timeline based on the above.
 
Thanks all!
 

Micki Callahan
Human Resources Director
(she, her, hers)

mailto:anna.biasbas@sfgov.org
mailto:anna.biasbas@sfgov.org
mailto:shawn.sherburne@sfgov.org
mailto:Myrna.Melgar@sfgov.org


Department of Human Resources

One South Van Ness Ave., 4th Floor
San Francisco, CA 94103
Phone:  (415) 557-4845
Website:  www.sfdhr.orgConnecting People with Purpose

 
 

http://www.sfdhr.org/


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
Subject: Racial & Social Equity Training Reminder
Date: Tuesday, September 24, 2019 2:35:15 PM
Attachments: 20190926_joint_offsite.pdf
Importance: High

Commissioners,
Consider this a friendly reminder that the Racial & Social Equity Training will be held this Thursday at the Port
facilities. This is an all-day training that starts at 9 am. Agenda is attached.
 
Pastries and coffee will be provided in the morning and sandwiches in the afternoon.
 
In addition, as of today, the HPC welcomes two new Commissioners: Lydia So and Chris Foley.
 
Cheers,
 
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
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mailto:rsejohns@yahoo.com
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mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
http://www.sfplanning.org/



 


 


SAN FRANCISCO 
PLANNING COMMISSION AND  


HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION 
 
 
 


Notice of Special Meeting  
and 


Joint Hearing 
 


Bayside Conference Room 
Pier 1, The Embarcadero 
San Francisco, CA 94105  


 


 
Thursday, September 26, 2019 


9:00 a.m. – 5:00 p.m. 
Special Off-Site Training 
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 Vice-President:  Joel Koppel 


 Commissioners  Frank Fung, Rich Hillis, Milicent Johnson,  
                                  Kathrin Moore, Dennis Richards 
 


HISTORIC PRESERVATION  
COMMISSION:  
 President:   Aaron Hyland  
 Vice-President:  Diane Matsuda 
 Commissioners: Kate Black, Richard S.E. Johns, Jonathan Pearlman 


 
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
Live stream: http://www.sfgovtv.org 


 
Disability accommodations available upon request to: 


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
Ordinance [SF Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code Section 21.00-2.160] to register and report lobbying activity.  For more information about 
the Lobbyist Ordinance, please contact the San Francisco Ethics Commission at 25 Van Ness Avenue, Suite 220, San Francisco, CA 94102; phone (415) 
252-3100; fax (415) 252-3112; and online http://www.sfgov.org/ethics. 
  
Accessible Meeting Information 
Commission hearings are generally held in Room 400 at City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place in San Francisco. City Hall is open to the public 
Monday through Friday from 8:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. and is accessible to persons using wheelchairs and other assistive mobility devices. Ramps are 
available at the Grove, Van Ness and McAllister entrances. A wheelchair lift is available at the Polk Street entrance.   
 
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
 
Disability Accommodations: To request assistive listening devices, sign language interpreters, readers, large print agendas or other accommodations, 
please contact the Commission Secretary at (415) 558-6309, or commissions.secretary@fgov.org at least 48 hours in advance of the hearing. 
 
Language Assistance: To request an interpreter for a specific item during the hearing, please contact the Commission Secretary at (415) 558-6309, or 
commissions.secretary@fgov.org at least 48 hours in advance of the hearing. 
 
Allergies: In order to assist the City in accommodating persons with severe allergies, environmental illness, multiple chemical sensitivity or related 
disabilities, please refrain from wearing scented products (e.g. perfume and scented lotions) to Commission hearings. 
 
SPANISH:  Agenda para la Comisión de Preservación de Edificios y Lugares Históricos (Historic Preservation Commission).  Si desea asistir a la 
audiencia, y quisiera obtener información en Español o solicitar un aparato para asistencia auditiva, llame al 415-558-6309. Por favor llame por lo 
menos 48 horas de anticipación a la audiencia. 


CHINESE: 歷史保護委員會議程。聽證會上如需要語言協助或要求輔助設備，請致電415-558-6309。請在聽證會舉行之前的至少


48個小時提出要求。 


TAGALOG: Adyenda ng Komisyon para sa Pangangalaga ng Kasaysayan (Historic Preservation Commission Agenda). Para sa tulong sa lengguwahe o 
para humiling ng Pantulong na Kagamitan para sa Pagdinig (headset), mangyari lamang na tumawag sa 415-558-6309. Mangyaring tumawag nang 
maaga (kung maaari ay 48 oras) bago sa araw ng Pagdinig.  


RUSSIAN: Повестка дня Комиссии по защите памятников истории. За помощью переводчика или за вспомогательным 
слуховым устройством на время слушаний обращайтесь по номеру 415-558-6309. Запросы должны делаться минимум 
за 48 часов до начала слушания.



mailto:sotf@sfgov.org

http://www.sfbos.org/sunshine

http://www.sfgov.org/ethics

mailto:commissions.secretary@fgov.org
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San Francisco Planning and Historic Preservation Commission  Thursday, September 26, 2019 


 


Notice of Joint Hearing & Agenda        Page 3 of 3 


ROLL CALL:   
  
PLANNING COMMISSION: President: Myrna Melgar  
 Vice-President: Joel Koppel 
  Commissioners: Frank Fung, Rich Hillis, Milicent Johnson,  
   Kathrin Moore, Dennis Richards 
HISTORIC PRESERVATION 
COMMISSION: President:  Aaron Hyland 
 Vice-President:  Diane Matsuda 
 Commissioners: Kate Black, Richard S.E. Johns, Jonathan Pearlman 
 
 
A. SPECIAL CALENDAR   
 


1. RACIAL & SOCIAL EQUITY TRAINING 
The Bay Area Regional Health Inequities Initiative (BARHII) will lead a one-day Racial and 
Social Equity foundations training for the Commissions. The Department’s Racial & Social 
Equity Initiative included training for all staff. Commissioners will review core equity 
concepts and broadly discuss how the Historic Preservation Commission and the Planning 
Commission can more effectively communicate and advance equity to create opportunity 
for all San Franciscans through the use of shared language, the understanding of historical 
context, bias, and individual, institutional, and structural racism, and the application of a 
Racial and Social Equity Assessment Tool to relevant Commission decisions. All City 
Departments are undertaking similar efforts and participating in the Government Alliance 
on Race and Equity (GARE) through the newly created SF Office of Racial Equity under the 
SF Human Rights Commission. 
Recommendation: None - Informational 


 
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
Subject: FW: Better Market Street (Case no. 2014.0012E): Responses to Comments on a Draft EIR
Date: Tuesday, September 24, 2019 8:54:45 AM
Attachments: image001.png
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
 

From: Delumo, Jenny (CPC) <jenny.delumo@sfgov.org> 
Sent: Monday, September 23, 2019 5:15 PM
To: CTYPLN - COMMISSION SECRETARY <CPC.COMMISSIONSECRETARY@sfgov.org>
Cc: Silva, Christine (CPC) <christine.silva@sfgov.org>; Wietgrefe, Wade (CPC)
<wade.wietgrefe@sfgov.org>
Subject: Better Market Street (Case no. 2014.0012E): Responses to Comments on a Draft EIR
 
Hello,
 
The Responses to Comments (RTC) document for the Better Market Street Project (Case No.
2014.0012E), which responds to comments regarding physical environmental effects of the project
that were received on the Better Market Street Project Draft Environmental Impact Report (Draft
EIR), is now available and may be downloaded from https://sfplanning.org/project/better-market-
street-environmental-review-process#info. Please distribute this link to the Planning Commission
members.
 
Thank you,
 
Jenny Delumo
Senior Planner, Environmental Planning Division
 
Planning Department, City and County of San Francisco
1650 Mission Street, Suite 400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 415.575.9146 Fax: 415-558-6409
Email: Jenny.Delumo@sfgov.org
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
To: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: Proposed Project at 4363 26th Street
Date: Tuesday, September 24, 2019 8:52:34 AM

 
 
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
 

From: Gerry Jue <gjue@bamo.com> 
Sent: Monday, September 23, 2019 5:30 PM
To: Melgar, Myrna (CPC) <myrna.melgar@sfgov.org>; Koppel, Joel (CPC) <joel.koppel@sfgov.org>;
Fung, Frank (CPC) <frank.fung@sfgov.org>; richhillissf@gmail.com; Johnson, Milicent (CPC)
<milicent.johnson@sfgov.org>; Moore, Kathrin (CPC) <kathrin.moore@sfgov.org>; Richards, Dennis
(CPC) <dennis.richards@sfgov.org>
Cc: Ionin, Jonas (CPC) <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>; Winslow, David (CPC) <david.winslow@sfgov.org>;
ken.shurtz@gmail.com
Subject: Proposed Project at 4363 26th Street
 

 

Dear Planning Commissioners,
 
I live up the block from the proposed project at 4363 26th Street.  This large remodel recently came to my
attention, but due to my work and travel schedule I regret I wasn't able to attend the planning commission
hearing on August 29.
 
I hope it is not to late to register my strong objections to this proposed project.  My reasons include:
 

The bulk of the remodeled house both in height and depth is inconsistent with the neighborhood
and our block in particular.  The continuous open space formed by the back yards of the houses
along 26th Street has already been encroached upon, to the detriment of that open space.  The 4-
story bulk of the new remodel is a whole two stories higher than its neighbor to the east.

 
According to the Revised Notice of Bldg Permit Application, the remodel seeks to add over 26 feet
to the depth of the existing house and over 16 feet to the height.  I feel this increase in scale to the
house would be very detrimental to the character of our block, and be yet another example of the
onslaught of over-scaled, soulless, under-detailed, poorly-proportioned boring modern structures
that have negatively affected the character of Noe Valley recently.

 

mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
mailto:Josephine.Feliciano@sfgov.org
mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
http://www.sfplanning.org/


The new fourth floor of the house is only for purposes of a family room and view deck.  I don't
believe this space program justifies the negative impact it would have on the scale and character
of our block and neighborhood.  I also don't believe it should be sufficient to pull the fourth floor
back from the front façade, which is obviously an attempt to encourage your approval;  the
additional massing would negatively affect neighbors behind the house and further up the hill.   I
believe it should be sufficient for the remodel to be three stories, which would generally align it with
the neighboring 3-story house to the west.

 
I believe approval of this project, as proposed, would set a bad precedent for future remodels.

 
Your consideration of this input would be greatly appreciated.
 
Thank you,
 
Gerald Jue
1111 Douglass Street
San Francisco CA 94131
(resident since 2001)
 



From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
To: Richards, Dennis (CPC); Fung, Frank (CPC); Johnson, Milicent (CPC); Koppel, Joel (CPC); Moore, Kathrin (CPC);

Melgar, Myrna (CPC); Aaron Jon Hyland - HPC; Black, Kate (CPC); Diane Matsuda; Jonathan Pearlman; Richard
S. E. Johns

Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES CREATION OF REAL-TIME BED INVENTORY

TO IMPROVE BEHAVIORAL HEALTH SYSTEM
Date: Tuesday, September 24, 2019 8:51:56 AM
Attachments: 09.24.19 Real-time Bed Inventory.pdf

 
 
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
Sent: Tuesday, September 24, 2019 7:06 AM
To: Press Office, Mayor (MYR) <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES CREATION OF REAL-TIME
BED INVENTORY TO IMPROVE BEHAVIORAL HEALTH SYSTEM
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Tuesday, September 24, 2019
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131
 

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES CREATION OF

REAL-TIME BED INVENTORY TO IMPROVE BEHAVIORAL
HEALTH SYSTEM

New online tool from the Department of Public Health will allow service providers and clients
to see the number and location of treatment beds that are available at a given time

 
San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed, in partnership with Dr. Anton Nigusse
Bland, Director of Mental Health Reform, and the San Francisco Department of Public Health,
today announced the creation of a new real-time inventory to track the availability of
behavioral health beds in San Francisco. This inventory is part of Mayor Breed’s behavioral
health reform initiative—Heal Our City—to help the approximately 4,000 homeless San
Franciscans who have mental illness and substance use disorders.
 
The online inventory will allow potential clients and service providers to search for
availability of San Francisco’s short-term residential treatment beds, which people can request
for themselves when they are ready for care. In addition to making it easier for people to get
connected to care, the real-time inventory will inform DPH’s targeted investments in new beds
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


New online tool from the Department of Public Health will allow service providers and clients to 
see the number and location of treatment beds that are available at a given time 


 
San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed, in partnership with Dr. Anton Nigusse Bland, 
Director of Mental Health Reform, and the San Francisco Department of Public Health, today 
announced the creation of a new real-time inventory to track the availability of behavioral health 
beds in San Francisco. This inventory is part of Mayor Breed’s behavioral health reform 
initiative—Heal Our City—to help the approximately 4,000 homeless San Franciscans who have 
mental illness and substance use disorders. 
 
The online inventory will allow potential clients and service providers to search for availability 
of San Francisco’s short-term residential treatment beds, which people can request for 
themselves when they are ready for care. In addition to making it easier for people to get 
connected to care, the real-time inventory will inform DPH’s targeted investments in new beds 
and improve the efficiency of the existing referral system.  
 
“When someone is experiencing homelessness, mental illness, and a substance use disorder, the 
last thing we should be doing is making it more complicated for them to get the care they need,” 
said Mayor Breed. “With this real-time data, we’ll be able to connect people more efficiently 
with available treatment beds, make better use of our existing resources, and identify 
opportunities for improvement in our existing system of care.” 
 
This centralized, online resource will show how many of the City’s 350 short-term behavioral 
health treatment beds are available on a daily basis. DPH works with several community-based 
organizations to provide substance use treatment and mental health services. These 
community-based organizations—starting with those that provide withdrawal management and 
substance use treatment—will populate the online bed inventory with their daily bed availability. 
These organizations include Community Forward SF, Friendship House, HealthRIGHT 360, The 
Latino Commission, Epiphany Center, PRC Baker Places, and Salvation Army. 
 
This transparency will help potential clients more easily navigate to care and help providers fill 
beds in treatment programs. The web page will outline the steps to follow to receive care, and 
will provide quick links and phone numbers to other resources for people who are experiencing 
more urgent behavioral health crises.  
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Creating a real-time behavioral health bed database was one of the key recommendations in a 
September 12, 2019 research report from Tipping Point Community and the University of 
California, San Francisco. The full report, “Behavioral Health and Homelessness in San 
Francisco: Needs and Opportunities,” can be found here. A generous donation from Tipping 
Point has allowed DPH to act quickly on this project, which echoes the Director of Mental 
Health Reform’s own recommendations. 
 
“This is just one tool that can help more people get into care,” said Dr. Nigusse Bland. “We want 
to make the best possible use of the substance-use and mental health treatment resources that 
San Francisco already provides, and to make data-driven decisions about where we need to add 
services.” 
 
“The San Francisco Department of Public Health and its community-based partners strive to 
offer high-quality care as soon as someone is ready for voluntary substance use or mental health 
treatment,” said Dr. Grant Colfax, Director of Health. “An online inventory can give clients, 
their loved ones and providers easier access to treatment.” 
 
The real-time bed inventory of voluntary, self-referral treatment beds will launch in phases, with 
substance use beds added online first, followed by mental health beds. The first phase will be 
available to the public on DPH’s SF Health Network website in November. 
 
First, DPH will display the availability of the approximately 200 voluntary, residential substance 
use treatment beds in the system. These beds include withdrawal management (“detox”) and 
90-day programs.  
 
Following the addition of the substance use treatment beds in the online inventory, DPH will 
display the availability of the approximately 150 short-term, residential mental health beds in 
the system. These are voluntary programs and include beds for people with co-occurring mental 
health and substance use disorders. 
 
Concurrently, DPH is also beginning the planning for a new comprehensive bed management 
tool that will incorporate the entire behavioral health bed system within an integrated database. 
The new tool will allow the Department to better understand where vacancies exist, where there 
are extended wait times for beds, and where targeted investment will allow the entire system to 
function better for the patients under its care. The launch of this comprehensive bed management 
tool is anticipated within the next year. 
 
The new online inventory will help address several of the challenges that people face when 
trying to get the behavioral health care they need. Currently, people who are ready for substance 
use and mental health treatment, their families, and their service providers have no single source 
of information to identify available beds. Potential clients may not be aware of the places where 
they can check themselves into treatment. Providers who want to refer clients to treatment often 
spend precious time calling individual programs to find out where beds are available, and do not 
always get immediate answers. Under the current system, specialty programs, such as those 



http://chi.tippingpoint.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/09/JSI_SF-BH-and-Homelessness_2019.pdf

https://www.sfhealthnetwork.org/about-sfhn/mental-health-crisis/
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designed to serve HIV-positive, pregnant, LGBTQ or Spanish-speaking clients, are not well 
advertised.  
 
“San Francisco is always at the forefront of innovation for care,” said Nicole Ibarra, Managing 
Director of San Francisco Behavioral Health at HealthRIGHT 360. “We look forward to DPH’s 
online system that leverages technology to improve service delivery. We are especially happy to 
see the system takes into account the varying needs of diverse populations.” 
 
The information on the online inventory will be presented in the City’s five threshold 
languages—Spanish, traditional Chinese, Russian, Vietnamese, and Tagalog—in order to ensure 
equity in access to this resource. Treatment providers with multilingual capability will be 
highlighted, along with those emphasizing LGBTQ, pregnancy, HIV-positive and other 
specialized care. 


 
### 







and improve the efficiency of the existing referral system.
 
“When someone is experiencing homelessness, mental illness, and a substance use disorder,
the last thing we should be doing is making it more complicated for them to get the care they
need,” said Mayor Breed. “With this real-time data, we’ll be able to connect people more
efficiently with available treatment beds, make better use of our existing resources, and
identify opportunities for improvement in our existing system of care.”
 
This centralized, online resource will show how many of the City’s 350 short-term behavioral
health treatment beds are available on a daily basis. DPH works with several community-
based organizations to provide substance use treatment and mental health services. These
community‑based organizations—starting with those that provide withdrawal management
and substance use treatment—will populate the online bed inventory with their daily bed
availability. These organizations include Community Forward SF, Friendship House,
HealthRIGHT 360, The Latino Commission, Epiphany Center, PRC Baker Places, and
Salvation Army.
 
This transparency will help potential clients more easily navigate to care and help providers
fill beds in treatment programs. The web page will outline the steps to follow to receive care,
and will provide quick links and phone numbers to other resources for people who are
experiencing more urgent behavioral health crises.
 
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
 
“This is just one tool that can help more people get into care,” said Dr. Nigusse Bland. “We
want to make the best possible use of the substance-use and mental health treatment resources
that San Francisco already provides, and to make data-driven decisions about where we need
to add services.”
 
“The San Francisco Department of Public Health and its community-based partners strive to
offer high-quality care as soon as someone is ready for voluntary substance use or mental
health treatment,” said Dr. Grant Colfax, Director of Health. “An online inventory can give
clients, their loved ones and providers easier access to treatment.”
 
The real-time bed inventory of voluntary, self-referral treatment beds will launch in phases,
with substance use beds added online first, followed by mental health beds. The first phase
will be available to the public on DPH’s SF Health Network website in November.
 
First, DPH will display the availability of the approximately 200 voluntary, residential
substance use treatment beds in the system. These beds include withdrawal management
(“detox”) and 90‑day programs.

 

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
the system. These are voluntary programs and include beds for people with co-occurring
mental health and substance use disorders.

 
Concurrently, DPH is also beginning the planning for a new comprehensive bed management
tool that will incorporate the entire behavioral health bed system within an integrated database.
The new tool will allow the Department to better understand where vacancies exist, where
there are extended wait times for beds, and where targeted investment will allow the entire
system to function better for the patients under its care. The launch of this comprehensive bed
management tool is anticipated within the next year.
 
The new online inventory will help address several of the challenges that people face when
trying to get the behavioral health care they need. Currently, people who are ready for
substance use and mental health treatment, their families, and their service providers have no
single source of information to identify available beds. Potential clients may not be aware of
the places where they can check themselves into treatment. Providers who want to refer clients
to treatment often spend precious time calling individual programs to find out where beds are
available, and do not always get immediate answers. Under the current system, specialty
programs, such as those designed to serve HIV-positive, pregnant, LGBTQ or Spanish-
speaking clients, are not well advertised.
 
“San Francisco is always at the forefront of innovation for care,” said Nicole Ibarra, Managing
Director of San Francisco Behavioral Health at HealthRIGHT 360. “We look forward to
DPH’s online system that leverages technology to improve service delivery. We are especially
happy to see the system takes into account the varying needs of diverse populations.”
 
The information on the online inventory will be presented in the City’s five threshold
languages—Spanish, traditional Chinese, Russian, Vietnamese, and Tagalog—in order to
ensure equity in access to this resource. Treatment providers with multilingual capability will
be highlighted, along with those emphasizing LGBTQ, pregnancy, HIV-positive and other
specialized care.

 
###

 
 



From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
To: Fung, Frank (CPC); Richards, Dennis (CPC); Johnson, Milicent (CPC); Koppel, Joel (CPC); Moore, Kathrin (CPC);

Melgar, Myrna (CPC)
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: RE: Important please read - Proposed timeline for hiring of the new Director
Date: Monday, September 23, 2019 10:23:21 AM

Friendly reminder to all Commissioners,
We should refrain from conversations between Commissioners outside of a public hearing…
 
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
 

From: Fung, Frank (CPC) <frank.fung@sfgov.org> 
Sent: Monday, September 23, 2019 9:35 AM
To: Ionin, Jonas (CPC) <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>; Richards, Dennis (CPC)
<dennis.richards@sfgov.org>; Johnson, Milicent (CPC) <milicent.johnson@sfgov.org>; Koppel, Joel
(CPC) <joel.koppel@sfgov.org>; Moore, Kathrin (CPC) <kathrin.moore@sfgov.org>; Melgar, Myrna
(CPC) <myrna.melgar@sfgov.org>
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC) <josephine.feliciano@sfgov.org>
Subject: Re: Important please read - Proposed timeline for hiring of the new Director
 
I would not be interested in having HPC participate in selection process. Note I removed Rich
from this email list.
 
Get Outlook for iOS

From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC) <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>
Sent: Monday, September 23, 2019 8:55:27 AM
To: Richards, Dennis (CPC) <dennis.richards@sfgov.org>; Fung, Frank (CPC) <frank.fung@sfgov.org>;
Johnson, Milicent (CPC) <milicent.johnson@sfgov.org>; Koppel, Joel (CPC) <joel.koppel@sfgov.org>;
Moore, Kathrin (CPC) <kathrin.moore@sfgov.org>; Melgar, Myrna (CPC)
<myrna.melgar@sfgov.org>; Rich Hillis <richhillissf@gmail.com>
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC) <josephine.feliciano@sfgov.org>
Subject: FW: Important please read - Proposed timeline for hiring of the new Director
 
 
 
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
Sent: Saturday, September 21, 2019 7:35 AM
To: Ionin, Jonas (CPC) <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>
Cc: Callahan, Micki (HRD) <micki.callahan@sfgov.org>
Subject: Re: Important please read - Proposed timeline for hiring of the new Director
 
Apologies, I see I failed to attach my notes:  here they are.

From: Melgar, Myrna (CPC)
Sent: Friday, September 20, 2019 4:18 PM
To: Ionin, Jonas (CPC) <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>
Cc: Callahan, Micki (HRD) <micki.callahan@sfgov.org>
Subject: Important please read - Proposed timeline for hiring of the new Director
 
Hi Jonas and Micki,  as per our conversation, this is the timeline as I see it.  Jonas, please
forward to my fellow commissioners for their input.
 
Hello colleagues,
 
I have been working with Micki Callahan, the City's Director of Human Resources on our
process to find a new Director.  We got great input from the public yesterday, and surprisingly
broad agreement in the qualities we should be looking for.  I did my best to synthesize in the
attached document.  We have a lot of interest in the position, and have decided to post it
publicly but not hire a national firm, which would cost between $50,000 and $70,000 coming
from the Department's budget.  Instead, we will post it locally, send it to the APA and
Planetizen, and DHR staff will do the vetting, and staff us through the process
 
We are proposing the following timeline for us.
 

Week of September 23rd - Finalize job description after input from public hearing, and
Mayor's Office.
Week of September 30 - Post job description on DHR website, City website, circulate at
professional associations and hold it open for three weeks until October 18th.
Week of October 21st - FIRST CLOSED SESSION to review resumes and decide on which
candidates we want to interview.  We will be staffed by DHR for this.  Commissioner
Aaron Hyland has requested to join us for this.  I have asked Kate Stacy for advise us on
that but my feeling is that he can be a part of the process and join in the discussion but
not vote.  What do you guys think? As per Kate Stacy's memorandum, we do not have to

mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
http://www.sfplanning.org/
mailto:myrna.melgar@sfgov.org
mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
mailto:micki.callahan@sfgov.org
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disclose publicly what we decide in this closed session.
Week of October 28 - SECOND CLOSED SESSION to interview the top candidates and
agree on up to three to forward to the Mayor.  Again, as per Kate's memo, we do not
have to publicly disclose which candidates we select to forward to the Mayor.
Weeks of November 4th - 15 , the Mayor will go through her process, negotiations can
take place and we can hopefully have a candidate announced before Thanksgiving.
Should we select three candidates that the Mayor does not want to appoint, we will
have to start over - hopefully this will not happen.

Please call me with any edits, ideas, issues or concerns.  Thank you!



 
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

Melgar, Myrna (CPC); Rich Hillis
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: COMMENT ON “Summary of Impacts of Proposed Project—Disclosed in SEIR including Initial Study” Table s-

2
Date: Monday, September 23, 2019 8:59:36 AM
Attachments: Comment 14a-SOUTHBOUND 43 MASONIC DELAY.docx

Comment 14b-SEIR Project Delay.docx
Comment 14c-Reservoir-Related Delay In Relation to Reservoir Area MUNI Characteristics.docx
Comment 14d- TDM NON SEQUITUR.pdf
Comment 14--Summary of Impacts.docx

 
 
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
 

From: aj <ajahjah@att.net> 
Sent: Friday, September 20, 2019 10:24 PM
To: Poling, Jeanie (CPC) <jeanie.poling@sfgov.org>; CPC.BalboaReservoir
<CPC.BalboaReservoir@sfgov.org>; CPC-Commissions Secretary
<commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>
Cc: Yee, Norman (BOS) <norman.yee@sfgov.org>; Low, Jen (BOS) <jen.low@sfgov.org>; Maybaum,
Erica (BOS) <erica.maybaum@sfgov.org>; Board of Supervisors, (BOS)
<board.of.supervisors@sfgov.org>
Subject: COMMENT ON “Summary of Impacts of Proposed Project—Disclosed in SEIR including
Initial Study” Table s-2
 

 

COMMENT ON

“Summary of Impacts of Proposed Project—Disclosed in SEIR including Initial
Study” Table s-2

 

IMPACT TR-4 (Operation of proposed project would not substantially delay  public
transit)

 

Table S-2 shows for Impact TR-4  Less-than-significant Level of Significance.
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SOUTHBOUND 43 MASONIC DELAY:

MUNI STANDARD v. RESERVOIR PROJECT STANDARD



		SOUTHBOUND 43 MASONIC DELAY:

MUNI STANDARD v. RESERVOIR STANDARD



		ROUTE SEGMENT

		

		TIME POINT

		

		ON-TIME

		ADDITIONAL DELAY TIME



		

		

		

		

		MUNI on-time

		MUNI late standard

(4 min)

		Reservoir 

Late standard

(additional 4 min)



		ELAPSED TIME:



		

		Monterey/Gennessee

		

		0:00

		0:00

		0:00



		Monterey/Gennessee to Bookstore

Running time (r.t.)

		

		4 min running time

		

		+4 r.t.

		+4 r.t. + 4 late

		+4 r.t. +4 MUNI

+4 Reservoir



		[bookmark: _GoBack]ELAPSED TIME:

Monterey/Genn to Bookstore

		

		CCSF Bookstore

(City College Terminal)

		

		0:04

		0:08

		0:12



		Bookstore to BPS

Running time

		

		3 min running time

		

		+3 r.t.

		+3 r.t.

(4 min standard NOT allowed to be cumulative)

		+3 r.t. + 4 Reservoir

(4 min standard construed to accumulate)



		ELAPSED TIME:

Monterey/Gen 

to BPS

		

		Balboa Park Station

(Geneva/San Jose)

		

		

0:07

		

0:11

		

0:19
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Transit Assessment Memorandum.

TABLE 3.8-18

BesQORDMRDNDGD =

TRANSIT DELAY ANALYSIS

Weekday a.m. Peak Hour (seconds of delay)

Weekday p.m. Peak Hour (seconds of delay)

Northbound/ Southbound/
Corridor Eastbound Westbound

Transit Delay

Northbound/
Eastbound

Southbound/
Westbound

Existing Conditions

Frida Kahlo Way.

Ocean Avenue

Geneva Avenue 79

Existing plus Developer's Proposed Option

Frida Kahlo Way 18

Ocean Avenue

Geneva Avenue %

Existing plus Additional Housing Option

Frida Kahlo Way 21

Ocean Avenue

Geneva Avenue

Developer's Proposed Option

Frida Kahlo Way. 13

Ocean Avenue 66

Geneva Avenue 20

Additional Housing Option

Frida Kahlo Way. 16

Ocean Avenue 52

Geneva Avenue 0

SOURCE: ~ Kitelson & Associates, Inc. 2015,
NOTES:

Transit delay includes coridor delay transit reentry delay, and passenger boarding delay.

Developer’s Proposed Option

As shown in Table 3.B-18, vehicle and transit trips generated by the Developer's Proposed Option

would increase transit delay by a maximum of 73 seconds along Frida Kahlo Way (southbound

direction, weekday p.m. peak hour), a maximum of 100 seconds along Ocean Aventie (westbound

@~ o m o e 20







Reservoir-Related Delay In Relation to Reservoir Area MUNI Characteristics

[bookmark: _GoBack]



		LINE

		WEEKDAY HEADWAY

(minutes)

		BPS AREA RUNNING TIME ROUTE SEGMENT (between MUNI timepoints)

		RESERVOIR-RELATED TRANSIT DELAY THRESHOLD OF SIGNIFICANCE = 4 minutes

		



		



SOURCE OF MUNI DATA:  

CURRENT OFFICIAL MUNI RAILWAY ROTATIONS AND TRAINS, effective 9/5/2019

		Percentage of delay contribution to BPS Area route segment (deemed to be insignificant!)

		Percentage of delay contribution to City Charter’s MUNI  4- minute late criterion

(deemed to be insignificant!)

		



		K Ingleside

		AM PEAK

		MID-DAY

		PM PEAK

		KT

Geneva/San Jose-

St. Francis Circle

		23.5% to 30.8%





		100%

		



		

		IB: 

9-12

		IB

& OB:

10

		IB:

9-10

		AM: 14

MID-DAY: 13

PM: 17

		

		

		



		

		OB: 

8-10

		

		OB:

8-10

		AM: 15

MID-DAY: 15

PM:  16



		

		

		



		8/8BX

Bayshore

		AM PEAK

		MID-DAY

		PM PEAK

		8/8BX

Geneva/Mission–

Unity Plaza

		(For Inbound only)

50% to 66.7% 





		100%

		



		

		IB:

6-7

		IB:

 7

		IB:

6-7

		AM:  8

MID-DAY:  6

PM:  8

		

		

		



		

		OB:

7

		OB:

7-8



		OB:

7

		(not available)

AM: 

MID-DAY:

PM:  

		

		

		



		



		LINE

		WEEKDAY HEADWAY

(minutes)

		BPS AREA RUNNING TIME FOR ROUTE SEGMENT (between MUNI timepoints)

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

		



		29

Sunset

		AM PEAK

		MID-DAY

		PM PEAK

		29

19TH/Holloway-

Ocean BART

		25% to 33.3% 





		100%

		



		

		IB:

9

		IB

&

OB:

12

		IB:

10-12

		AM:  12

MID-DAY:  14

PM:  15-17

		

		

		



		

		OB:

10

		

		OB:

10

		AM:  15-16

MID-DAY:  15

PM:  16

		

		

		



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		43

Masonic

		AM PEAK

		MID-DAY

		PM PEAK

		43

Monterey/

Gennessee- Geneva BART

		44.4% to 57.1% 



		100%

		



		

		IB:

9

		IB 

&

OB:

12

		IB:

10

		AM:  9

MID-DAY:  8

PM:  8

		

		

		



		

		OB:

10

		

		OB:

10

		AM:  7-8

MID-DAY: 7

PM: 7

		

		

		



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



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



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		49

Van Ness

		AM PEAK

		MID-DAY

		PM PEAK

		49

Mission/Ocean-

Unity Plaza

		

50.0% to 57.1% 





		100%

		



		

		IB:

8

		IB 

&

OB:



9

		IB:

8

		AM:   8-9 

MID-DAY:  8

PM:  9



		

		

		



		

		OB:

10

		

		OB:

7-8

		AM:  8

MID-DAY:  7
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BALBOA RESERVOIR’S TDM NON SEQUITUR (5/23/2017) 


 


Nelson-Nygaard’s “Balboa Area Transportation Demand Management (TDM) Plan:  Existing Conditions” 
is available at http://default.sfplanning.org/plans-and-programs/planning-for-the-city/public-
sites/balboareservoir/Nelson_Nygaard_Balboa_TDM-Existing_Conditions_Memo.pdf 


IDENTIFYING TRANSPORTATION NEEDS FOR BALBOA PARK AREA 


The Nelson-Nygaard TDM Report reports on existing conditions.  Using a variety of resource materials 
and data, the Report, in the main, accurately describes the existing conditions.   


This section of the Report correctly identifies “limited roadway space, transit infrastructure, and 
financial resources” as problems.  Yet despite the obvious fact that the elimination of student parking 
and new Reservoir residents will increase demand placed on limited transportation resources, the 
Balboa Reservoir Project Team proposes no amelioration for adverse impacts other than TDM.  


The TDM Plan/solution is not a logical outcome of an objective analysis of fact, evidence and common 
sense.    The proposed TDM Plan is a pre-ordained, ideologically-driven solution.  It is based on hope, 
wishful thinking and generalities; not on fact and evidence.   


The 4/13/2016 TDM presentation to the Reservoir CAC followed the “logic” of the non sequitur. 


The TDM Report’s shortcomings are significant.   Here is an attempt to point out such shortcomings and 
their negative implications and consequences. 


LAND USE 


The Report’s very first paragraph in the “Land Use” section describes City College in one sentence:  “The 
CCSF Ocean Campus, zoned as public space, is located at the center of the study area and provides 
publically-accessible sports facilities.”   


 The Report’s characterizes CCSF as only being a provider of “publicly-accessible sports 
facilities.”  This characterization undermines and ignores CCSF’s primary importance as a 
critical provider of educational services to the broader Bay Area community. 


It leads to minimizing the need for the Reservoir Project to mitigate its adverse impacts on 
CCSF enrollment and attendance. 


The Report itself admits that the “information presented herein …essentially “sets the stage” for 
what TDM strategies and supporting measures will be considered… “     


MY CONCLUSION:   The Land Use section of the Report sets the stage to downplay adverse 
impacts to CCSF’s educational mission.  


 


MULTIMODAL CONDITIONS 


“Multimodal conditions” is fancy jargon for various modes of transportation.  The four modes of 


transportation examined in the Report are walking, biking, public transit, and driving. 



http://default.sfplanning.org/plans-and-programs/planning-for-the-city/public-sites/balboareservoir/Nelson_Nygaard_Balboa_TDM-Existing_Conditions_Memo.pdf

http://default.sfplanning.org/plans-and-programs/planning-for-the-city/public-sites/balboareservoir/Nelson_Nygaard_Balboa_TDM-Existing_Conditions_Memo.pdf
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Walking 


Highest pedestrian activity during AM and PM peak (rush) hours were at: 


 Balboa Park BART entrance on Geneva near San Jose Avenue (over 500 pedestrians/peak hours 


counted or modeled) 


 Ocean Avenue CCSF entrance (Wellness Center) at Howth  (over 500 pedestrians/peak hours 


counted or modeled) 


 Ocean/Phelan (201-500 pedestrians ) 


Biking 


Highest bike activity during AM peak (rush) hours [PM Peak bike counts/modeling were substantially 


lower] were at: 


 Geneva/San Jose  (over 40 bike riders) 


 Monterey/Congo (30-39 riders) 


 Ocean/Phelan (20-29 riders) 


 Ocean/Howth  (20-29 riders) 


Transit 


MUNI passenger data from SFMTA was only modeled for the MUNI Metro K line with no boarding data 


for the rubber tire lines.   


K-line Peak hour boardings: 


 Ocean/Lee  (501-1000 riders) 


 Ocean/Phelan (251-500 riders) 


Driving 


Highest auto activity: 


 Ocean Avenue east of Phelan ( over 20,000 vehicles) 


 Ocean Avenue west of Phelan (17,500- 20,000 vehicles) 


 Geneva Avenue west of Phelan (12,500- 15,000 vehicles) 


 Phelan Avenue south of CCSF entrance (10,000- 12,500 vehicles) 


 Phelan Avenue north of CCSF entrance and onto Judson (less than 10,000 vehicles) 


xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx 


Modal split order of magnitude 


Sensible use of the data contained in the TDM Report requires an understanding of the order of 


magnitude of the various modes: 
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 Walking is on the scale of 500 max  (walkers also include transit users and drivers who have to 


walk to reach their final destinations) 


 Biking is on the scale of 50 max 


 MUNI Metro K line is on the scale of 2000 


 Driving is on the scale of 20,000 


 


 


Xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx 


After providing a picture of the general traffic patterns for the Balboa Park Area, the Report continues 


on to address “CCSF Ocean Campus Vehicle Trip Generation.”  The Report accurately states that the 


Ocean Campus “is a major generator of person and auto traffic in the Balboa Area.” 


 That the Ocean Campus is a major generator of traffic is an indisputable truth.  However no 


context is provided regarding this truth.  Without providing context, the implication Is that 


people who drive to CCSF harm society.   


What is the unstated appropriate context?   The appropriate context is that the people who 


drive are going to a destination to learn, teach and support the educational needs of society.  
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The Balboa Reservoir has utterly failed to weigh the trade-offs involved between the 


educational needs and housing needs of the community. 


More importantly, although this is an existing conditions report, the Report fails to mention 


the future trip generation that the Reservoir Project itself will add to the TDM Study Area. 


 


COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT/SURVEYS 


In the build-up to the Iraq War, the head of British Secret Intelligence Service (M16) recorded in the 
‘Downing Street Memo’ how the war could be justified to the public: “… the intelligence and facts 
were being fixed around the policy.” 


The Balboa Reservoir Project does something similar.  To its credit, the Nelson-Nygaard Report presents 
legitimate surveys of the neighboring community.   But the survey data is not used to objectively 
formulate conclusions regarding transportation and parking.  Rather, the solution/policy had already 
been fixed.  To its credit, the Report admits:   


“ the survey findings also assessed peak utilization rates. They indicated that, during the midday 
period, five off-street parking lots at CCSF Ocean Campus experience peak utilization that are 
above the average peak parking demand. For example, the survey findings indicated that Res. 1 
and Lots A, H, S, U all experience peak parking occupancies between 98% and 100%. Therefore, 
on any given day, the majority of employee-only lots and the student lot (Res. 1) are completely 
full during the midday period. The weekday peak parking utilization for Res. 2 Lot was 9%.” 


The policy of TDM had already been fixed, prior to, and regardless of the evidence contained in the 
surveys that were conducted subsequent to the TDM policy decision. 


THE TDM NON SEQUITUR 


The City Team, instead of formulating the Development Parameters based on evidence and data, had a 
priori concluded that TDM is the solution to adverse impacts that would be generated by new Reservoir 
residents and by the eviction of student parking.   


TDM is a legitimate part of an overall Transportation Sustainability Program for the City as a 
whole.  However, TDM as applied to the proposed Balboa Reservoir Project is not a suitable or realistic 
solution.   TDM in the context of Balboa Reservoir will not be able to solve the problem of student 
access to education created by the Development Parameters.  Nor will TDM measures be able to 
meaningfully solve transportation and parking problems generated by the Project. 


Based on the survey results, TDM is a non sequitur: 


CCSF TRANSPORTATION SURVEY 


The most telling question in the CCSF Transportation Survey was:  “When choosing how you typically 
travel to/from CCSF Ocean Campus, what are you most concerned about?” 


The question listed the valid concerns of cost, distance, travel time, arriving on time, and comfort/safety 
of trip for CCSF stakeholders. 
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·         “Travel time” and “Arrival on time” were overwhelmingly most important concerns (90% and 73.2 % 
respectively) 


Most of us want to be “green” and support the idea and practice of walking, biking and public 
transit.  However the response to “What would encourage you to use other transportation modes? 
(select all that apply”) is grounded in the real-world needs of CCSF stakeholders. 


Overwhelmingly, the most important consideration for respondents was “reducing travel time.”  That 
efficient use of time is important should not be surprising to the City Team. 


The CCSF Ocean Campus Transportation Survey results just confirm common sense.  The survey 
confirms the common sense input that ordinary citizens have been trying to communicate to the 
Mayor’s Office and Planning Department to little effect—because the City Team’s “sustainable” 
Transportation Demand Management (TDM) “solution” had been pre-ordained in contradiction and 
opposition to the real world lives of CCSF and neighborhood stakeholders. 


TDM is the City Team’s solution for transportation and parking problems that will be generated by the 
Balboa Reservoir Project.  According to Planning Department’s Transportation Sustainability Program, 
“TDM is the “Shift” component of the Transportation Sustainability Program. A series of development focused 
TDM measures incentivize on-site amenities intended to provide sustainable alternatives to driving – or 
“shifting” people’s usual practice of driving alone in their cars – by providing residents, business tenants, and 
visitors with sustainable alternative travel options.” 


However, instead of just applying TDM measures to the beneficiaries (“residents, business tenants, and 
visitors”) of the Balboa Reservoir Project, the City Team has shifted the brunt of the application of TDM 
to the pre-existing stakeholders  of CCSF, Riordan, Sunnyside Elementary, St. Finn Barr, Lick Wilmerding, 
and the Ingleside, Westwood Park and Sunnyside neighborhoods. 


No matter how the City Team tries to convince the public that its TDM Study will be comprehensive in 
nature, the fact remains that TDM is self-defined within its own parameters.  The Reservoir Project’s 
TDM solution is straightforwardly documented:  “The Planning Department and SFMTA are proposing a 


Transportation Demand Management (TDM) study in coordination with CCSF Ocean Campus to reduce single-
occupant vehicle trips by college staff, faculty, students, and neighborhood residents.” 


One of the components of the City’s Transportation Sustainability Program is “Shift.”  The idea is to shift 
car drivers onto other more sustainable modes of transportation.  However, in the Balboa Reservoir 
context, “shift” has another more important meaning. 


The different and more important real-world meaning of “shift” is:  shifting the burden of mitigation 
of CEQA-related adverse impacts onto school stakeholders and neighborhood residents.  This is 
unacceptable.  


COMMUNITY SURVEY (Dept of Environment) 


The section on the Community Survey conducted by the Dept of Environment highlighted two survey 
questions.  The two questions pertained to the Existing Mode Split and to “Willingness to Try Different 
Modes of Transportation.” 


The main concept of TDM is to get car drivers to walk, bike and take public transit.  However the Nelson-
Nygaard Report failed to show survey results for a critical question that would show the likelihood of 
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respondents changing mode of travel.  The Report does not show the survey results for Question #9-- 
What is most important to you when you choose how you get to work? 


Although the Report fails to provide survey results for this question, I bet it would be similar to the 
results for the CCSF Survey:  that ‘Travel Time’ would be one of the most important.  I would also guess 
that ‘Reliability’ would also be close to the top.  If my guess about responses to this question is right, 
how effective would the Balboa Reservoir Project’s TDM measures be able to resolve Travel Time and 
Reliability concerns? 


 Since the data for Question 9 of the survey has not been presented in the Nelson-Nygaard 
Report, I will venture this unsubstantiated (but probably correct) conclusion: 


 The TDM objective of shifting substantial numbers of car drivers onto public transit and biking will be 
unsuccessful because of the real-world importance of Travel Time, Reliability, and Convenience for 
people leading busy lives…….and who are not privileged to be members of the leisure class. 


--aj     1/3/2017, updated 5/23/17 






COMMENT ON 

“Summary of Impacts of Proposed Project—Disclosed in SEIR including Initial Study” Table s-2



IMPACT TR-4 (Operation of proposed project would not substantially delay  public transit)



Table S-2 shows for Impact TR-4  Less-than-significant Level of Significance.



I summarize how this determination is incorrect.



1. The threshold of significance that is used to come to the LTS determination is based on an inordinately low standard for the threshold.  The establishment of a 4-minute late threshold before Reservoir-related transit delay “might” be considered significant is big enough for a tank to go through.  By defining the transit delay threshold to be 4 minutes, the Reservoir Project is issued a “get out of jail free card”.

2. The City Charter establishes performance criteria for MUNI.  Section 8.A 103 (c) establishes that a MUNI bus/car that arrives over 4 minutes late to a timepoint is considered to be late, for the purposes of the City Charter mandate.

3. The SEIR/Reservoir Project threshold of significance gives the Project the privilege of independently adding 4 minutes of additional delay to MUNI before the Reservoir Project transit delay “might” be considered significant.  This freedom and privilege to independently add 4 minutes Reservoir-related delay flies in the face of the intent of the Transit First Policy.

4. Attached for your convenience, I include 3 tables:

a. SB 43 Masonic Delay: MUNI Standard v. Reservoir Standard

· This Table relates to the 43 line between the Monterey/Gennessee timepoint and the Balboa Park Station timepoint:

· The running time between the two timepoints is 7 minutes;

· The MUNI late standard is 11 minutes;

· The SEIR/Project threshold of significance is 19 minutes:  a 171% increase over the scheduled 7 minutes.

b. SEIR Table 3.B-18 Transit Delay Analysis

· This Table presents SEIR’s own numbers for “Project-Related Increase in Delay”

· The Table lowballs the actual delay for the 43 Masonic.  The SEIR presents delays of 73 seconds and 83 seconds for Options 1 and 2, respectively.  The numbers presented by the SEIR omit the 43 segment between City College Bookstore and Balboa Park Station.

When the Bookstore-BPS segment (Geneva Ave EB) is factored in properly, the delays come out instead to 115 seconds (1.9 minutes) and 141 seconds (2.4 minutes) for Options 1 and 2, respectively.  115 seconds and 141 seconds of Project-related delay constitute increases of 27.4% and 33.6% over the 7-minute Monterey/Gennessee-BP Station segment’s running time.

· Comparing the Reservoir-related delay for the 43’s Monterey/Gennessee-BP Station segment to the City-Charter-mandated 4-minute late allowance:

· Option 1’s delay of 115 seconds consumes 48.0% of the 4 minutes of lateness allowed to MUNI;

· Option 2’s delay of 141 seconds consumes 58.8% of the 4 minutes of lateness allowed to MUNI

· These percentages of 171%, 27.4%, 33.6%, 48.0%, and 58.8% are objectively significant.  These percentages can only be made “less than significant” by the establishment of a threshold of significance of 4 minutes, which is constructively a “get out of jail free card.”

c. Reservoir-Related Delay In Relation to Reservoir Area MUNI Characteristics 

· This Table is compiled from current (effective 9/5/2019) MUNI schedules for KT, 8/8BX, 29, 43, 49, 54 lines.  For weekday AM Peak, Mid-day, and PM Peak, I have compiled headways and running times.  

· Using the SEIR’s 4-minute threshold of significance, the last two columns provide Reservoir Project-related contribution percentages to running time delay and to MUNI’s 4-minute late allowance:

· K Ingleside:  23.5% - 30.8% delay contribution between BP Station-St. Francis Circle;

· 8/8BX Bayshore (IB only):  50% - 66.7% delay contribution between Unity Plaza-Geneva/Mission;

· 29 Sunset:  25.0% - 33.3% delay contribution between 19th/Holloway- Balboa Park Station;

· 43 Masonic:  44.4% - 57.1% delay contribution between Monterey/Gennessee- Balboa Park Station;

· 49 Van Ness:  50.0% - 57.1% delay contribution between Mission/Ocean- Unity Plaza



The LTS determination for Impact TR-4 cannot be objectively sustained.  The LTS determination is a case of “intelligence and facts being fixed around policy.”

***************************************************************

IMPACT C-TR-4 (The proposed project, in combination with reasonably foreseeable future projects, may result in a potentially significant cumulative impact related to public transit delay and the project could contribute considerably.)



C-TR-4 is founded on a distortion of reality.  Via manipulation of the threshold of significance for evaluating transit delay, the impact of the Balboa Reservoir Project has been determined to be less-than-significant.



It is only with willful disregard for reality that the SEIR can come to a conclusion that a 1,110- 1,550 unit project will have less than significant impact on an area which the Nelson-Nygaard TDM Study described as having “limited roadway space, transit infrastructure, …”



The SEIR finds significant cumulative impact for C-TR-4.  In the topsy-turvy Red Queen world of the Planning Dept, the 1,100- 1,550 unit Reservoir Project is determined to have LTS impact on transit delay.  Yet, the SEIR portrays the CCSF Facilities Master Plan as being a big contributor to future cumulative transit delay despite the fact that the FMP is primarily a replacement and renovation program.  A replacement and renovation program will have much less of an impact in increasing travel demand than an 1,100- 1,550 unit new development of mostly market-rate/unaffordable  housing.



Mitigation Measure M-C-TR-4:



As discussed in earlier submissions, Table M-C-TR-4 “Transit Travel Time Performance Standard” provides the Reservoir Project an extremely generous allowance of 4 minutes of Reservoir-related transit delay.  Merry Christmas!



The damage to transit delay by the Project itself will already have been done before M-C-TR-4’s Monitoring  and Implementing Feasible Measures  for cumulative impacts even gets rolling.  



Given the Nelson-Nygaard TDM Study’s recognition of limited roadway space and transit infrasturcuture, there will be no feasible measures to implement, other than hoping for success of TDM measures.



Regarding the effectiveness of TDM as mitigation, please examine the attached “Balboa Reservoir’s TDM Non Sequitur.”



Submitted by: 

Alvin Ja

[bookmark: _GoBack]9/20/2019



 



 

I summarize how this determination is incorrect.

 

1.      The threshold of significance that is used to come to the LTS determination is
based on an inordinately low standard for the threshold.  The establishment of a 4-
minute late threshold before Reservoir-related transit delay “might” be considered
significant is big enough for a tank to go through.  By defining the transit delay
threshold to be 4 minutes, the Reservoir Project is issued a “get out of jail free card”.

2.      The City Charter establishes performance criteria for MUNI.  Section 8.A 103 (c)
establishes that a MUNI bus/car that arrives over 4 minutes late to a timepoint is
considered to be late, for the purposes of the City Charter mandate.

3.      The SEIR/Reservoir Project threshold of significance gives the Project the
privilege of independently adding 4 minutes of additional delay to MUNI before the
Reservoir Project transit delay “might” be considered significant.  This freedom and
privilege to independently add 4 minutes Reservoir-related delay flies in the face of
the intent of the Transit First Policy.

4.      Attached for your convenience, I include 3 tables:

a.      SB 43 Masonic Delay: MUNI Standard v. Reservoir Standard

·   This Table relates to the 43 line between the
Monterey/Gennessee timepoint and the Balboa Park Station
timepoint:

o   The running time between the two timepoints is 7
minutes;

o   The MUNI late standard is 11 minutes;

o   The SEIR/Project threshold of significance is 19
minutes:  a 171% increase over the scheduled 7
minutes.

b.      SEIR Table 3.B-18 Transit Delay Analysis

·         This Table presents SEIR’s own numbers for “Project-
Related Increase in Delay”

o   The Table lowballs the actual delay for the 43 Masonic. 
The SEIR presents delays of 73 seconds and 83 seconds
for Options 1 and 2, respectively.  The numbers presented
by the SEIR omit the 43 segment between City College
Bookstore and Balboa Park Station.



When the Bookstore-BPS segment (Geneva Ave EB) is
factored in properly, the delays come out instead to 115
seconds (1.9 minutes) and 141 seconds (2.4 minutes) for
Options 1 and 2, respectively.  115 seconds and 141
seconds of Project-related delay constitute increases of
27.4% and 33.6% over the 7-minute
Monterey/Gennessee-BP Station segment’s running
time.

o   Comparing the Reservoir-related delay for the 43’s
Monterey/Gennessee-BP Station segment to the City-
Charter-mandated 4-minute late allowance:

§  Option 1’s delay of 115 seconds consumes
48.0% of the 4 minutes of lateness allowed to
MUNI;

§  Option 2’s delay of 141 seconds consumes
58.8% of the 4 minutes of lateness allowed to
MUNI

·         These percentages of 171%, 27.4%, 33.6%, 48.0%, and
58.8% are objectively significant.  These percentages can
only be made “less than significant” by the establishment of
a threshold of significance of 4 minutes, which is
constructively a “get out of jail free card.”

c.       Reservoir-Related Delay In Relation to Reservoir Area MUNI
Characteristics

·         This Table is compiled from current (effective 9/5/2019)
MUNI schedules for KT, 8/8BX, 29, 43, 49, 54 lines.  For
weekday AM Peak, Mid-day, and PM Peak, I have compiled
headways and running times. 

·         Using the SEIR’s 4-minute threshold of significance, the last
two columns provide Reservoir Project-related contribution
percentages to running time delay and to MUNI’s 4-minute late
allowance:

o   K Ingleside:  23.5% - 30.8% delay contribution
between BP Station-St. Francis Circle;

o   8/8BX Bayshore (IB only):  50% - 66.7% delay
contribution between Unity Plaza-Geneva/Mission;

o   29 Sunset:  25.0% - 33.3% delay contribution between
19th/Holloway- Balboa Park Station;

o   43 Masonic:  44.4% - 57.1% delay contribution between



Monterey/Gennessee- Balboa Park Station;

o   49 Van Ness:  50.0% - 57.1% delay contribution
between Mission/Ocean- Unity Plaza

 

The LTS determination for Impact TR-4 cannot be objectively sustained.  The LTS
determination is a case of “intelligence and facts being fixed around policy.”

***************************************************************

IMPACT C-TR-4 (The proposed project, in combination with reasonably foreseeable
future projects, may result in a potentially significant cumulative impact related to
public transit delay and the project could contribute considerably.)

 

C-TR-4 is founded on a distortion of reality.  Via manipulation of the threshold of
significance for evaluating transit delay, the impact of the Balboa Reservoir Project
has been determined to be less-than-significant.

 

It is only with willful disregard for reality that the SEIR can come to a conclusion that a
1,110- 1,550 unit project will have less than significant impact on an area which the
Nelson-Nygaard TDM Study described as having “limited roadway space, transit
infrastructure, …”

 

The SEIR finds significant cumulative impact for C-TR-4.  In the topsy-turvy Red Queen world of
the Planning Dept, the 1,100- 1,550 unit Reservoir Project is determined to have LTS impact
on transit delay.  Yet, the SEIR portrays the CCSF Facilities Master Plan as being a big
contributor to future cumulative transit delay despite the fact that the FMP is primarily a
replacement and renovation program.  A replacement and renovation program will have much
less of an impact in increasing travel demand than an 1,100- 1,550 unit new development of
mostly market-rate/unaffordable  housing.

 

Mitigation Measure M-C-TR-4:

 

As discussed in earlier submissions, Table M-C-TR-4 “Transit Travel Time Performance
Standard” provides the Reservoir Project an extremely generous allowance of 4 minutes of
Reservoir-related transit delay.  Merry Christmas!



 

The damage to transit delay by the Project itself will already have been done before M-C-TR-
4’s Monitoring  and Implementing Feasible Measures  for cumulative impacts even gets
rolling. 

 

Given the Nelson-Nygaard TDM Study’s recognition of limited roadway space and transit
infrastructure, there will be no feasible measures to implement, other than hoping for success
of TDM measures.

 

Regarding the effectiveness of TDM as mitigation, please examine the attached “Balboa
Reservoir’s TDM Non Sequitur.”

 

Submitted by:

Alvin Ja

9/20/2019
 



 
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
Subject: FW: Letter regarding office space allocations, 546 Howard St.
Date: Monday, September 23, 2019 8:55:40 AM
Attachments: 20190918 OFA memo, 546 Howard.docx

 
 
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
 

From: Cynthia Gómez <cgomez@unitehere2.org> 
Sent: Friday, September 20, 2019 5:51 PM
To: Ionin, Jonas (CPC) <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>; Durandet, Kimberly (CPC)
<kimberly.durandet@sfgov.org>
Subject: Letter regarding office space allocations, 546 Howard St.
 

 

Hello Mr. Ionin and Ms. Durandet, 
 
Attached is a letter regarding the 546 Howard Street project. Mr. Ionin, can you please forward this
to the Planning Commissioners? Ms. Durandet, can you please include this in the project's OFA file?
 
Thank you,

--
Cynthia Gómez
Senior Research Analyst
UNITE/HERE, Local 2
209 Golden Gate Avenue
San Francisco, CA 94102
cgomez@unitehere2.org
415.864.8770, ext. 763
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September 20, 2019



Jonas Ionin

Secretary, Planning Commission Affairs

City and County of San Francisco

1650 Mission Street

San Francisco, CA 94103

[bookmark: _GoBack]For distribution to full Planning Commission

Dear Mr. Ionin,

On or shortly after October 17, the City’s annual “bank” of Prop M office space allocations is expected to kick in. Shortly after, we can expect to see a wave of projects competing for this space. As explained in a July 22, 2019 memo by Planning Director John Rahaim, there are a total of six large projects expected to go before the Commission between October 2019- March 2020 for office allocations and other approvals. Collectively, these projects represent a total of 2,207,796 square footage of proposed office space, or 818,299 more square footage of office space than exist in the “bank”[footnoteRef:1], which should necessitate some difficult decisions about priorities. We argue that the Planning Department and Planning Commission should take into consideration the proposed community benefits attached to each project. With so many projects seeking approvals, there is no reason why a project without substantial community benefits should not just move to the end of the line.  [1:  This includes 22,700 square feet available after July 25, as envisioned in the memo; 875,000 square feet added to the bank after October 17, and 485,770 recovered from previous projects] 




The proposed office/condo/hotel project at 542-550 Howard, also known as the Parcel F project, will be seeking 275,000 square feet of office space allocation. The project is currently scheduled for all of its major approvals on November 21. There is no agreement guaranteeing a neutral process for unionization for the workers at the proposed hotel, nor is there a Project Labor Agreement. A project of this size would typically come with not only these two types of agreements, but would come with evidence of other substantial agreements with community groups.



This is of special concern when noting the project’s other impacts. The project is projected to cast a shadow on Willie "Woo Woo" Wong playground in Chinatown, from approximately 7:45-8:15 a.m. in August-September and again in March. Chinatown residents will tell you just how precious their parks are, and a visit to many a well-used Chinatown park and playground will reveal children and seniors starting the day enjoying the early morning sun. The city's brand-new, one-of-a-kind Transbay Park will feel a shadow impact "every day of the year," according to the report: shadow will fall on the park's amphitheater, restaurant, children's play space, and open grass spaces, from 7:13 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. What a shame, then, that this park is not under Section 295 jurisdiction and thus officially does not get the same kind of protections as other parks do. This is also true of 2nd and Howard Plaza, of Mission Square, and of the six nearby outdoor POPOS all facing shadow impacts as well.



As stated earlier, there are far more proposed square feet of office space than the City is in a position to allocate. Perhaps these office space allocation hearings should be rescheduled for such time as they come with a more robust package of community commitments. Why should the City prioritize projects that do not prioritize the city, and its communities?



Thank you,



Cynthia Gómez

Senior Research Analyst

Unite Here, Local 2 





 
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
Cc: Poling, Jeanie (CPC); Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: Public Comment on Draft EIR Balboa Reservoir
Date: Monday, September 23, 2019 8:55:00 AM

 
 
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
 

From: Sally <chencho415@yahoo.com> 
Sent: Sunday, September 22, 2019 10:33 PM
To: Ionin, Jonas (CPC) <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>
Subject: Public Comment on Draft EIR Balboa Reservoir
 

 

I’m writing to you about the Draft Environmental Impact Report for  the Balboa
Reservoir Project. I had attended your 9/12 /19 meeting but was unable to give public
comment because the time for public comment had gotten moved back and I had to get
to my job.
 

What I had wanted to say was that I’m deeply disappointed in the Draft EIR . I feel
it is tragic that it fails to consider City College of San Francisco and its viability, health
and importance to the community as a critical and important element
in any plans for development of the  Balboa Reservoir.  
 

CCSF is San Francisco’s only community college and it is a precious and AMAZING
place. It is a place where EVERYONE can come to learn.  It’s selection of class offerings
each semester is unbelievable….. I personally have a HUGE list of classes that I’m hoping
to get to take sometime in my lifetime.  It is accessible to students of all income levels
and to students of all ages and cultural backgrounds. This place is one of the main
treasures of our city and that is why the Balboa Reservoir must not be sold off for private
development ….and builder greed. The city is over run with this exploitive profiteering
and it can’t be allowed here.
 

CCSF has had use of this public PUC land for many decades and it is necessary for

mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
mailto:dennis.richards@sfgov.org
mailto:Frank.Fung@sfgov.org
mailto:Milicent.Johnson@sfgov.org
mailto:Joel.Koppel@sfgov.org
mailto:kathrin.moore@sfgov.org
mailto:Myrna.Melgar@sfgov.org
mailto:richhillissf@gmail.com
mailto:jeanie.poling@sfgov.org
mailto:Josephine.Feliciano@sfgov.org
mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
http://www.sfplanning.org/


the students of CCSF in order for them to be able to access this life changing education
that CCSF offers.  Students attending CCSF need easy comfortable access to their classes
and if the Balboa Reservoir is sold off for private development it will kill CCSF as we
know it. 
 

As a low income working mom I needed  to use the Balboa Reservoir all the time
to be able to get to my child development classes. I could not take my kids to school on
the bus and then bus to CCSF and arrive on time and then get to work. It would have
been an impossible. I would have had to drop out of school and not pursue the career in
education that I dreamt of.
 

Please let CCSF do the job it does best which is offering rich and valuable
educations to the people of San Francisco.  Let’s take care of this precious College and not
threaten it all the time with greed based land grabs just because it ‘s happening ALL over
the city. This is a place for future generations also … Future generations that if they can
have access to the education will be the ones able to envision and help create the
changes humanity needs.   Our future educators, social workers, artists musicians,
political representatives, gardeners chefs, nurses, doctors, scientists , ambassadors and
parents will be able to come from this place, if we keep it safe and accessible.
 

Please don’t let these public lands be stolen from this community college that
desperately t needs it.   If CCSF were a Public Hospital would we consider selling off
access to the hospital ... regarding it as frivolous and inconsequential and then provide no
parking and thus no easy way to even BE  at the hospital? Would we instead ask patients
find their own way there on an erratic and congested public transit system? 
 

CCSF offers a lifeline to at least 70,000 people  per semester. It is a critical San
Francisco resource and is part of the fabric  of the city and it needs to be deeply
considered FIRST in any type of “land grab” proposal  that comes before you.
 
Thank you for your time and consideration.
 
Sincerely,
 
Sally Magnuson
 
  

 



 
This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

From: CPC-Commissions Secretary
To: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: 9-19-19 Commission: Director"s Qualifications
Date: Friday, September 20, 2019 11:43:00 AM
Attachments: 9-19-19 Comm-Director"s Qualifications.pdf
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
 

From: Kathleen Courtney <kcourtney@rhcasf.com> 
Sent: Thursday, September 19, 2019 12:42 PM
To: Melgar, Myrna (CPC) <myrna.melgar@sfgov.org>; Koppel, Joel (CPC) <joel.koppel@sfgov.org>;
Moore, Kathrin (CPC) <kathrin.moore@sfgov.org>; Richards, Dennis (CPC)
<dennis.richards@sfgov.org>; Fung, Frank (CPC) <frank.fung@sfgov.org>; Johnson, Milicent (CPC)
<milicent.johnson@sfgov.org>; Commissioner Rich Hillis <richhillissf@yahoo.com>
Cc: Jamie Cherry RHCA <jcherry@rhcasf.com>; John Borruso <borruso@mindspring.com>; Chris
Bigelow <cgbigelow@gmail.com>; Robyn Tucker PANA <venturesv@aol.com>; Jerry Dratler
<dratler@sonic.net>; Gary Weiss <garysfx@gmail.com>; CPC-Commissions Secretary
<commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>
Subject: 9-19-19 Commission: Director's Qualifications
Importance: High
 

 

Attached and pasted below is the RHCA statement regarding Director’s qualifications.  Thank
you.
 

Russian Hill Community Association
1166 Green St.   San Francisco, CA 94109   510-928-8243    rhcasf.com

 
September 19, 2019
 
President Myrna Melgar &
San Francisco Planning Commission
 

mailto:commissions.secretary@sfgov.org
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mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
http://www.sfplanning.org/



RHCA PLAN.COMM 9-19-19 Director Qualifications Page 1 
 


Russian Hill Community Association 
1166 Green St.   San Francisco, CA 94109   510-928-8243    rhcasf.com 


 


September 19, 2019 


 


President Myrna Melgar & 


San Francisco Planning Commission 


 


  Re: Commission Agenda 9/19/19: C (c) Director’s Qualifications 


 


Dear President Melgar & Planning Commissioners: 


 The Russian Hill Community Association appreciates your invitation for the community to comment on critical 


qualifications for the new Planning Director.  The RHCA urges the Commission to consider an applicant with a 


Commitment to Process and Procedures.   


 Community organizations rely on a consistent application of PROCESS in order to adequately assist members and 


inform the public. Without the understanding, appreciation and implementation of the PROCESS which the community 


and public entities have developed over decades the foundation of a good planning system deteriorates.   


 Community organizations rely on a planning department and planners who understand the PROCEDURES which 


form the framework of the PROCESS.  There is no procedural manual for the Planning Department.  At times past 


Commission Secretary Jonas Ionin assembled, I believe, notes which served as a type of training guide for new and 


inexperienced planners…but it was not a procedural manual.  Nowhere are guidelines to the General Plan, Residential 


Design Guidelines, Zoning Administrator Bulletins et al assembled.   


 Many of us were mentored by the extraordinary Mary Gallagher – a former San Francisco Planner, San Mateo 


Planning Director and a consultant.  The notorious 60 Russell Street is a case in point where the parameters regarding 


matching light wells were a question and it took Ms. Gallagher to clarify the guidelines for planners and community alike.  


The RHCA has a similar challenge on Union Street now where a planner – probably using Google earth and a developer’s 


statement, made an assessment, later withdrawn after her assumptions proved inaccurate.  An overworked Zoning 


Administrator cannot be the source of all information and overwhelmed community members can’t catch all questionable 


decisions. 


 PROCESS and PROCEDURES – a commitment to both – are critical qualifications for the new Planning 


Director. 


 Thank you for your consideration. 


Kathleen Courtney 
Chair, Housing & Zoning 
kcourtney@rhcasf.com 
510-928-8243 
 
Cc: Jamie Cherry, John Borruso, Chris Bigelow, RHCA; Robyn Tucker, PANA; Jerry Dratler, SFLUC; Gary Weiss,  


 



mailto:kcourtney@rhcasf.com





                        Re: Commission Agenda 9/19/19: C (c) Director’s Qualifications
 
Dear President Melgar & Planning Commissioners:

            The Russian Hill Community Association appreciates your invitation for the community to
comment on critical qualifications for the new Planning Director.  The RHCA urges the Commission
to consider an applicant with a Commitment to Process and Procedures. 

            Community organizations rely on a consistent application of PROCESS in order to
adequately assist members and inform the public. Without the understanding, appreciation and
implementation of the PROCESS which the community and public entities have developed over
decades the foundation of a good planning system deteriorates. 

            Community organizations rely on a planning department and planners who understand the
PROCEDURES which form the framework of the PROCESS.  There is no procedural manual for the
Planning Department.  At times past Commission Secretary Jonas Ionin assembled, I believe, notes
which served as a type of training guide for new and inexperienced planners…but it was not a
procedural manual.  Nowhere are guidelines to the General Plan, Residential Design Guidelines,
Zoning Administrator Bulletins et al assembled. 

            Many of us were mentored by the extraordinary Mary Gallagher – a former San Francisco
Planner, San Mateo Planning Director and a consultant.  The notorious 60 Russell Street is a case in
point where the parameters regarding matching light wells were a question and it took Ms. Gallagher
to clarify the guidelines for planners and community alike.  The RHCA has a similar challenge on
Union Street now where a planner – probably using Google earth and a developer’s statement, made
an assessment, later withdrawn after her assumptions proved inaccurate.  An overworked Zoning
Administrator cannot be the source of all information and overwhelmed community members can’t
catch all questionable decisions.

            PROCESS and PROCEDURES – a commitment to both – are critical qualifications for the
new Planning Director.

            Thank you for your consideration.

Kathleen Courtney
Chair, Housing & Zoning
kcourtney@rhcasf.com
510-928-8243
 
Cc: Jamie Cherry, John Borruso, Chris Bigelow, RHCA; Robyn Tucker, PANA; Jerry Dratler,
SFLUC; Gary Weiss,

 

mailto:kcourtney@rhcasf.com


From: CPC-Commissions Secretary
To: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: Support for Item 11, 33 Capra Way
Date: Friday, September 20, 2019 11:42:15 AM

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

-----Original Message-----
From: John-Michael Lisovsky <lisovskyj@sfusd.edu>
Sent: Friday, September 20, 2019 10:46 AM
To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>; Melgar, Myrna (CPC)
<myrna.melgar@sfgov.org>; Koppel, Joel (CPC) <joel.koppel@sfgov.org>; Fung, Frank (CPC)
<frank.fung@sfgov.org>; richhillissf@gmail.com; Dito, Matthew (CPC) <matthew.dito@sfgov.org>
Cc: hello@northernneighbors.org; StefaniStaff, (BOS) <stefanistaff@sfgov.org>
Subject: Support for Item 11, 33 Capra Way

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources.

To the members of the Planning Commission:

I support the project to replace a single-family home with a 3-home building at 33 Capra Way. This project is 100%
code compliant and adds badly needed housing in San Francisco. We are in a housing shortage and we should not
delay projects that conform to the planning code.

Thank you,

John Lisovsky

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
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC); Sanchez, Diego (CPC)
Subject: FW: Job Housing Linkage Fee
Date: Friday, September 20, 2019 11:41:20 AM
Attachments: BEC Job Housing Linkage Fee Letter.pdf

 
 
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
 

From: Mary Roque <mary.roque@sfbec.org> 
Sent: Thursday, September 19, 2019 12:08 PM
To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>; Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
<jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>
Cc: Luisa Antonio <luisa.antonio@sfbec.org>
Subject: Job Housing Linkage Fee
 

 

Dear Mr. Ionin, 
 
On behalf of the Bayanihan Equity Center, I am submitting our organization's letter of support for
the approval of the Job-Housing Linkage Fee (JHLF).
 
Sincerely, 
Mary Roque 
 
--
Mary
Roque
Administrative
Assistant
Data
Collection Specialist
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1010 Mission Street, Suite C, San Francisco, CA 94103 || 415-255-2347 || Fax 415-255-2358 
 


 
 
September 19, 2019 
 
 
 
San Francisco Planning Commission 
1650 Mission Street, Ste. 400 
San Francisco, CA. 94103-2474 
 
  RE:  JOB HOUSING LINKAGE FEE 
           (ITEM # 10, Planning Commission Agenda for September 19, 2019) 
 
Dear Commissioners, 
 
I am writing on behalf of the Bayanihan Equity Center in support of the approval of the Job-
Housing Linkage Fee (JHLF) which was introduced by District 6 Supervisor, Matt Haney.  The 
proposed amendment before you seeks to address the growing demand for affordable housing. 
   
The Bayanihan Equity Center (f.k.a. Veterans Equity Center) has been a service provider for 
twenty years and serves the very-low income older adults and adults with disability in the city.  
Affordable housing opportunities for our consumers have been scarce and when they become 
available through the city’s lottery system, they are extremely competitive and difficult to 
navigate.   
 
The JHLF amendment will generate over $5 million for affordable housing construction and 
preservation and/or acquisition of existing housing; it will also allow land dedication as a 
potential alternative to fees for all projects which is only allowed for Central SOMA projects.  
With the additional resources and opportunities, the proposed amendment to the existing JHLF 
will help alleviate the crisis and will give relief to those in dire need of affordable housing.  We, 
at the BEC, recommends the San Francisco Planning Commission to approve the proposed 
amendments to the current Job-Housing Linkage Fee. 
 
Thank you. 
 
Yours very truly, 
 


 
 
Luisa M. Antonio 
Executive Director 







1010
Mission Street, Suite C
San
Francisco, CA 94103
Tel: (415) 255-2347 | Fax: (415) 255-2358



 
This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
To: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: 45 Culebra Terrace - Neighborhood resolution - Agenda item nos. 17a-b - Case no. 2018-009534CUA/VAR
Date: Friday, September 20, 2019 11:41:06 AM
Attachments: Executed Letter of Conditional Support 09.19.19.pdf

45 CULEBRA PARKING DIAGRAM 3.pdf
45 CULEBRA PARKING DIAGRAM 2.pdf

 
 
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
 

From: Ryan Patterson <ryan@zfplaw.com> 
Sent: Thursday, September 19, 2019 12:10 PM
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
Cc: Lucas Eastwood <lucas@eastwoodsf.com>; Ali Murphy <ali@eastwoodsf.com>; Shoshana
Raphael <shoshana@zfplaw.com>; Peter Diune <pdiune@gastarchitects.com>; Dennis Budd
<dbudd@gastarchitects.com>; Michele Scott <michele@edsinger.net>; Ed Singer
<ed@edsinger.net>; Julie Du <julie@zfplaw.com>; Alexander, Christy (CPC)
<christy.alexander@sfgov.org>; Asbagh, Claudine (CPC) <claudine.asbagh@sfgov.org>; CPC-
Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>; Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
<jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>
Subject: 45 Culebra Terrace - Neighborhood resolution - Agenda item nos. 17a-b - Case no. 2018-
009534CUA/VAR
 

 

Dear President Melgar and Commissioners:
 
I am happy to report that we have reached an amicable resolution with the neighbors of this project.
Attached, please find their letter of support for the project, with a garage as proposed, including its
CUA and variance.
 
Thank you,
 
Ryan J. Patterson

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
Email: ryan@zfplaw.com
www.zfplaw.com
 
 
This communication and its contents may contain confidential and/or privileged material for the sole use
of the intended recipient. Any review or distribution by others is strictly prohibited. If you are not the
intended recipient, please contact the sender and delete all copies. Unless expressly stated, nothing in
this communication should be regarded as tax advice.
 

https://east.exch029.serverdata.net/owa/redir.aspx?SURL=ChGeaZrpD8PHzbcw60jDRZn-LPJ2JCMksSXGGny0fDGU2M0s7k7TCG0AYQBpAGwAdABvADoAcgB5AGEAbgBAAHoAZgBwAGwAYQB3AC4AYwBvAG0A&URL=mailto%3aryan%40zfplaw.com
https://east.exch029.serverdata.net/owa/redir.aspx?SURL=wYWABWm6VfDOQc3OZH7nl2-3wKvBbw_6zgd1d1Rib5CU2M0s7k7TCGgAdAB0AHAAOgAvAC8AdwB3AHcALgB6AGYAcABsAGEAdwAuAGMAbwBtAC8A&URL=http%3a%2f%2fwww.zfplaw.com%2f


From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
To: Richards, Dennis (CPC); Fung, Frank (CPC); Johnson, Milicent (CPC); Koppel, Joel (CPC); Moore, Kathrin (CPC);

Melgar, Myrna (CPC); Rich Hillis
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC); Poling, Jeanie (CPC)
Subject: FW: Proposed development of Balboa Reservoir
Date: Friday, September 20, 2019 11:37:42 AM

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
From: Marria Evbuoma <marria.evbuoma@gmail.com>
Sent: Thursday, September 19, 2019 4:00 PM
To: CPC.BalboaReservoir <CPC.BalboaReservoir@sfgov.org>
Cc: Breed, Mayor London (MYR) <mayorlondonbreed@sfgov.org>; Ionin, Jonas (CPC) <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>;
Board of Supervisors, (BOS) <board.of.supervisors@sfgov.org>; Hood, Donna (PUC) <DHood@sfwater.org>;
alexrandolph@ccsf.edu; ttemprano@ccsf.edu; Fewer, Sandra (BOS) <sandra.fewer@sfgov.org>; Yee, Norman
(BOS) <norman.yee@sfgov.org>
Subject: Proposed development of Balboa Reservoir

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources.

Dear SF Officials,

As a former CCSF student and mother, I'm writing you to voice my concern over the selling off of the lower Balboa
Reservoir to a private company.  Selling this this land to private developer puts at risk the future vitality of City
College, Ingleside, and San Francisco as a whole.

When I was teaching in Mill Valley, living in the Outer Richmond, and earning my Early Childhood Education
certification from CCSF, a car was a must.  Without the parking lot, I cannot imagine how I would be able to get to
evening classes on time.  Even back in 2005, commuting cross-town was difficult.  And with so many people now 
"gigging" as independent contractors, cars are vital.  Unfortunately, MUNI and BART are just not efficient enough
for people who work and go to school to depend on.  People should not have to choose between work and
education.  For me, gaining my ECE units meant I went from being an assistant teacher to a lead teacher- a huge
gain for my career and finances.  If this land is to be developed, plans should at least include parking for CCSF
students.

Also, the land was supposed to have been the site for the Performing Arts Education Center.  My son just started
Kindergarten at Creative Arts Charter School in the Western Addition.  I chose this school because I know how
much academics are improved through art.  There’s a reason why schools switched from S.T.E.M. to S.T.E.A.M. 
Art is essential for a well rounded education!  Should my son want to take up performing arts, I should hope he
could have the opportunity to study in the city where he was born instead of leaving and/or having to spend
thousands of dollars to attend a private art school.
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On the subject of leaving San Francisco, too many families have been promised "affordable housing" only to find
themselves on a ridiculous waitlist.  Have you ever been in a housing lottery?  I have.  There were over 1,000 other
applicants for 30 apartments.  And when my application was finally looked at a year later, I had 24 hours to gather
the paperwork to prove my eligibility.  It's a demoralizing process.  If this land is to be developed into housing, the
city should own the property, not Avalon Bay. We should invest in our residents, our workers in all trades- not just
tech.  And having publicly owned housing would do this.

I urge you to stop this project, for our collective future.

In Kindness,

Marria Evbuoma
415.317.7602
IG: @disarmsf
marriaevbuoma.com
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Please see attached.
 
Aaron Starr, MA
Manager of Legislative Affairs
 
Planning Department, City and County of San Francisco
1650 Mission Street, Suite 400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 415-558-6362 Fax: 415-558-6409
Email: aaron.starr@sfgov.org
Web: www.sfplanning.org
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Land Use Committee 


• 190450 Hearing - State of the Restaurant Industry. Sponsors: Fewer; Mandelman, Mar and 


Ronen. Staff: Starr. Item 2  


 


This week, the Land Use Committee held a hearing on the state of the restaurant industry in San 


Francisco. The hearing was called by Supervisor Fewer, but Supervisors Mandelman, Mar and 


Ronen co-sponsored the hearing. Representatives from the Golden Gate Restaurant Association, 


OEWD, DBI, DPW, DPH, The Treasurer Office and Planning all gave presentations on what has 


been done to improve the restaurant permitting process and recommendations for further 


improvements. For Planning’s part we talked about the 2011 Restaurant definitions rationalization 


ordinance, improved web-based tools, the CB3P program, the elimination of neighborhood 


notification for businesses in D11 and D4, and a dedicated liaison between Planning and OEWD. 


For possible further action, Planning suggested reviewing current CU requirements for 


Restaurants in NC Districts and removing notification in more neighborhoods to shorten the 


approval process.  


 


Issues raised by restaurant businesses at the hearing included the long and costly permitting 


process, burdensome fees, homelessness and drug activity, street cleanliness, and perhaps most 


significant affordable housing for their workforce. The hearing concluded with the Supervisors 


dedicating themselves to continuing the conversation in order to look at ways to reduce the 


barriers for new restaurants and to find ways to help existing restaurants stay in business. The 


hearing was continued to the call of the chair.  


 


Full Board   


• 190812 Planning Code - Allowing Long-Term Parking of and Overnight Camping in Vehicles and 


Ancillary Uses at 2340 San Jose Avenue. Sponsors: Safai; Yee and Ronen. Staff: D. Sanchez. 


Passed First Read 
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Dear San Francisco Planning Commission Staff,

am writing to express my support for Community Music Center's Campus Expansion Project at
552 Capp Street. I am a r ~ (AFFILIATION) of Community
Music Center.

The proposed project will bring important benefits to the neighborhood in which it will reside.
Commu~ pity Music Center as a nonprofit provider of affordable and free music lessons and
concerts is a resource for music education and a; predation in the neighhorhoo~, as .t has begin
for nearly 100 years. The proposed new facility will provide a numter of upgrades that wiii maKe
the music center accessible to anyone who wishes to use it. The additional teaching rooms in
the new facility will provide more space for affordable and tuition free music lessons, as well as
community gathering spaces. The seismic, climate (air conditioning/heat), and safety upgrades
will provide a facility where people can rest-assured that they will be safe and comfortable while
taking lessons, watching a performance, or attending a community event. The ADA fully
accessible new facility will provide access far people of all physical abilities.

The proposed Community Music Center Expansion will positively impact the Mission District
neighborhood,-~ recommend that the Planning Commission approve the project.
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